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GROUP OVERVIEW

Shoucheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”/”Shoucheng
Holdings"”) as a professional infrastructure asset administrator,
based on the precise layout in parking business and infrastructure
and real estate fund business, excellent operation and industry-
finance innovation, and providing leading one-stop asset
management services to asset holders, making an “infrastructure
asset operation center + infrastructure and real estate fund
management platform”.

BRZERERAE (THAF)) / THRER)) FAZENERRSHE
EEEE ERNTEFEELT EXREZEENEENMRE SHESH
ERMER ABERAERBELN I EEEERT TE TE#
RMEESWEET O+ ERRHABERETEIETFE)] °
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Quality first Outcome - oriented Full of passion
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Opigl—grw;:c:eand Embracing change Loyal dedication
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Be a leader in parking asset

Our Mission management industry
and Vision  Be the trailblaser of China's

o m= = infrastructure real estate fund
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1991

The Company is listed on the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange
KRABRE A ZPTER TS

2016

Commenced asset restructuring, and sold Qinhuangdao
business, including steel manufacturing, mineral mining
and processing

HREESH HEREEED  OFMHMRS - BEY
BRI TR

2018

Insisted firmly on the transformation strategy,
developed the main business, reduced the side of old
business, divested relevant assets, and introduced
strategic shareholders for

coordinated development

BREHUHKE BRISET GREBEBRE
HIBEEREEE 5| ABBEKRR HEBEERE

2020

The Company has officially changed its name to Shoucheng
Holdings Limited, the new name reflects the Group's
current strategic and business development direction and
focused on the parking business and infrastructure and real
estate fund management business.
RAEANELAERERABRAT BB RIRAEH
REERAEBERAR 2HREEREFERITER
RERIEABEESEERER

2022

Deeply cultivating the field of infrastructure assets
represented by carparks, with stable income and good
interoperability, with the opportunity of the era of publicly-
offered infrastructure REITs in Mainland China, to realise the
integration of industry and finance in infrastructure operation
and asset securitisation

AU B ARNRNEREZ IS EEE > FEKRGR
TE MM REFBORIE M - 5 B AR B A it B BE 5% T /A SREITs
MRS BIRERRMESNEERSEN
ERAES

)/

MILESTONES

1992

Shougang Group and Cheung Kong
(Holdings) Limited (now known as CK
Hutchison Holdings Limited) successfully
acquired the Company in 1992
BilEEHSRIEE (5E) BRAA
GEREIMCEBXARAR) 1119926
FRINUTEE AR A B]

2017

Completed business transformation, and
acquired parking asset operation and private
equity management business in China
TTREFEL TEFEEEEKESEIE
MIWEESEEER

2019

Completed business restructuring,
enhanced capital reserves, spread out
business in China, and formed a solid
foundation for business development
TEMEBEERE BABESHEE > #HH
PREER AXEBUEREETRENER

2021

In line with national policy opportunities,
the Company made every effort to deploy
publicly-offered infrastructure REITs in
Mainland China, seize the first-mover
advantage, and cover all categories of
publicly-offered infrastructure REITs;
iterated the product matrix and improved
the management efficiency, and
strengthen the leading position in the field
of parking business; divested partial equity
interest in Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (“Shougang Resources”)
to optimise the asset structure

JIEs P& (20 2R B SR 4% 38 > & 71 e R B P9 3t
E RSt /A BREITs - BT BB > 1 E
BEREUMASRIT2REEE  EREM
FREEA BEMETERA  FERT
EEMELEMARIER ; HESMHE
WEREBSRAR (MB#HMEIR)) 52
e BIREEEBCRE
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GROUP STRUCTURE
SBEXE

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “"Group”) is committed
to building China’s leading parking business and infrastructure

and real estate fund management business.

ARABREWNE AR (TRER)) RAORTE
PEEENEFELETESNERREIHE
BEeE@ERo

As at 31 December 2021
#2021 F12 B 31 H

Shoucheng Holdings Limited

HREZRARAR
(697.HK)

Parking business

FEHITES

Infrastructure and
real estate fund
management business
ERZHAHEEERE
pLE

100% f

100%

E Park Investment Shoucheng Rongshi

Management (Beijing) Fund

Co., Ltd. Management
(5228 (Ib5) Company Limited*
KEBEARAR) (formerly known
as Jingji Tiancheng

(Beijing) Fund

Management

Company Limited*)
(E2Ra Ut
B BEERAR)
(AIBRARERN
(Jtx) B 52
BIRAR)

*  For identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

HENANMBLEE
2020

HKS$ Million HK$ Million Variance(%)

BEEET B EET ZE(%)

Revenue e 706 69.3

Gross profit margin ESTUES 24.8% 21

Operating profit &R 62 817.7
(Loss)/earnings per share =5 (B8 &BF

(HK cents)* (B * 9.62 -257.9

i3 Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in March 2020 e BRZZTZF=ZRRHEHMIEL AR
As at 31 December
128318
2020
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million Variance(%)
B EET B EET ZE)(%)
Total assets BEMAE 14,126 -5.3
Net assets attributable to EN/NCTEZ T =N
owners of the Company fELZFEE 11,772 -13.8
Bank balances and cash IRIT4E R MIRE 3,739 -31.2
Wealth management BYMERK
products and fixed income B U 55 & F
financial assets BE 887 23.6
Debt equity ratio* BEERLEE 4.1% 3.3%
e Debt equity ratio = Total borrowings/Equity attributable to the  * BEEARILE - BRERE/XATEEAER

owners of the Company

BRRERARQAE 2021FE®
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M F5HEE
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Dear shareholders, investors, clients, employees, and
partners of Shoucheng Holdings:

This is my fifth report as the Chairman of Shoucheng Holdings
(hereinafter referred to as the Company) Board of Directors.
Over the past five years, breakthrough growth in our key
operating indicators has been achieved. In the first year of the
transformation of the Company’s main business, the turnover
increased from HK$ 177 million to HK$ 1.195 billion in 2021,
which is an increase of 577%, representing a 69% year-on-
year increase in 2021 compared to that of 2020; the net profit
before tax and after deduction of non-recurring profits and
losses increased from HK$ 57 million in 2017 to HK$ 695
million in 2021, which is a 1,1719% growth; and in exclusion
of the overall impacts in 2021 of Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (“Shougang Resources”), a company listed in
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) with stock code 639, there was a
comparable year-on-year increase of 12% in 2021 to that of
2020; the gross profit margin that was 0.2% in 2017 rose
to 45.8% in 2021, having a year-on-year increase of 21% in
2021 compared to that of 2020; and in exclusion of goodwill
net assets, there was an increase from HK$ 3.657 billion at
the beginning of 2017 to HK$ 10.085 billion at the end of
2021, which is an increase of 176%; the cash dividends of
the Company in the past five years totalled HK$ 2.8 billion,
and the Company’'s strategic investors and small to medium
shareholders, have fully shared in the fruitful results of the
Company’s growth and business developments.

What is it in hindsight that has allowed us to give an impressive
performance and rapid growth in the past five years? What
kind of feasible business model have we explored over the past
five years? What can we rely on to achieve high-quality and
sustainable development for the future? On behalf of the Board
of Directors, | would like to answer and reflect on the above
questions.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EHNEEERORR - REA-ER BT
R -

ERHEEADESFTEEMURNEAMNDR
Ho AT BMNFELSIERER T RE
HEWIER T EEEBRERNYNEN1.771
B R2021E8911.95F 8K 12I1EA577%
2021 A LE2020F 1 1B 7369% ; FNIFE AR
BIBA Y 2017F0.57EHF TE2021EH
6.95(E B M MIEA1,119% > 2021 EFIGE
HELEREEARAR (HWMER) > —
BREBHERZMERLE (THRAR) £
R RS ASE630 IRIEEREE FLE
2020F 1818 212% ; EFIZR2017FM0.2%
EARN20215F8945.8% > 202 1R EE20204F
BIEAR21%; 2IREERNFEEN 20174
FIH936. .57 B R|2021FEEMN100.85(28
M IRIEA176%; AERATNIREHDALAR
BRARE28EA  AEINEHBEEZE A )
BRERDDET AR EMERERERFAT R
BEEM R -

RER BROFEMNREERNEER > M
WHTHE?RFHR ZFARREERATTH
BERA?EBRE RFAKEFEAIUER
SEE -TFENER?TH RARATE
FER LARE MEEENEE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHREE

CHAPTER ONE A SUMMARY OF THE

FIVE-YEAR STRATEGIC
TRANSFORMATION

Looking over the past five years, we have been firm to

implement our strategic transformation, focused on building

our leading edge in the parking industry, forming a business

model with the operational advantages of “Infrastructure Asset

Efficient Operation Center + Infrastructure Real Estate Fund

Management”, and established a well-aligned and efficient

organization, achieving a win-win situation for both social

services and commercial value.

10

Quality Service Development Mission

What is the purpose of an organization? What is our
mission? How do we create long-term value? Only when
we think in a bigger picture can we have the answers:
what kind of social problems have we solved and what
kind of customer value have we created.

As China enters a new stage of high-quality
development, what we now face is the contradiction
between unbalanced and inadequate development
and the people’s ever-growing needs for a better life.
In context of the people’s livelihood, the inadequacy
of parking lots and chaotic parking closely relate to
the people’s urban life that is particularly prominent.
The construction of infrastructure and highly-efficient
operation have become one of the focuses of social
development in the new era. Therefore, our mission
must involve planning with new historical positioning
and coordinates in mind, and address social concerns as
well as to serve the real needs of the society.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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We aspire to be a great world-class corporation, one
that must solve major social problems, and must
create sustainable value for customers. The greater the
problem we solve, the greater the value we create.
All the business success and financial rewards can be
attributable to the right choice at the right time.

Over the past five years, we have always firmly believed
in the long-term development resilience of China’s
economy for the better and see a positive full picture of
the industrial directions supported by national policies.
Shoucheng Holdings' missions are not abstract concepts,
we chose to persevere in providing meaningful and
influentially lasting services and products for society, to
become today's most efficient and leading infrastructure
asset operations central in the fields of infrastructure
real estate fund management and parking. Accordingly
and in getting through the relevant chains, then building
in order to reach this goal, we will also set up an
infrastructure real estate asset management platform
based on the efficient operations. At present, we are on
track to become a trailblazer of China’s infrastructure
real estate funds (REITs) and committed to being a leader
in the parking asset management industry.

We firmly believe that China’s is the best. A world-
class infrastructure operator and asset manager will
surely emerge in China. By seizing the opportunities
of the times, we look forward to becoming such an
organization.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Pragmatic Development Strategy

Under the conventional business structure, the
Company's operation had experienced serious
difficulties due to the impact of the industry cycle.
Since 2017, based on the predictions of China's long-
term economic growth, we seized the opportunity of
the times presented by the cycles of the industry and
the technological changes. With the relentless efforts
of our team as well as the strong support of new
and existing shareholders, over a five year period, by
replacing conventional business forms with new business
forms, and conventional models with new models,
we successfully implemented new transformation in
enterprise development.

In the past five years, we have firmly implemented
strategic transformation, continued to sell non-core
assets, and promoted the divestiture or restructuring of
old businesses. The Company bought new core business
assets in 2017, sold the equity interest in Shougang
Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang Century”), a
company listed in the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with
Stock code 103, in 2018, ceased the trading of iron
ore completely in 2019, and sold the equity interest
in Shougang Resources in 2021. This series of actions
executed has allowed the Company to break out of
the influence of conventional industry cycles, which
demonstrated our strength as a whole and our firm
determination to focus on the main business, and
showed our fulfilment to our promise to investors.

Over the past five years, we were strongly optimistic
about the broad market prospect of China’s parking
sector and have placed our strategic resources in
focusing on this main race track. In the new strategic
direction, we take market demand as the guide,
innovate and refine the product system, actively expand
the market and development space, and continue to
increase technological innovation to improve operational
efficiency. We have now built a mature product
system in China’s parking sector, built up our core
competitiveness and moat, established a leadership
position, and gradually widened the leading gap with
our competitors. The momentum of business growth
remains strong despite the pandemic, which fully
demonstrates our market resilience and broad prospects
of the main race track. In the future, we will strive to
win greater market opportunities.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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In the past five years, we have persisted in our efforts
in the infrastructure real estate sector and made great
strides in the scale and management capabilities of
our infrastructure funds. In this model, the scale and
influence of infrastructure real estate funds, can make
deeper and wider the industry moat of protection by the
released gathered effects from grouping clusters at land
bases and the advantages of industrial integration. In
2021, our infrastructure real estate fund management
business witnessed a new policy boost, and the market
is blessed with “deeper water and bigger fishes” as well
as a promising future. We have explored a revolving
development model of “fund + property + industry”,
and through strategic investments, we are exploring
in-depth the investment opportunities derived from
land bases and industries, growing together with the
entities by adhering to the principle of “less frequent
large investment industry empowerment, and no
investment with no empowerment”. Although strategic
investment is not as large as infrastructure real estate
investment, it can generate certain investment benefit,
synergy effect and social value which are complementary
to infrastructure real estate. This fully embodies the
unique value of “adhering strictly to the right path to
achieve success by innovation and building a mutually-
complementary ecosystem” behind the business model.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Through a successful strategic transformation, the
Company’s business structure has been fully transformed
from a typical periodic industry to an infrastructure
asset management field that spans economic cycles with
sound cash flow and stable and healthy operations.
Focusing on the core business, with its operating
results continuing to improve, the Company has
been rejuvenated and entered a new phase of rapid
development.

Coordinated Business Structure

According to a research report by the Company’s
Wanwu Research Institute (www.wwresearch.com),
the size of China’s stock infrastructure scale is worth
between RMB160 trillion and RMB180 trillion. If only
1% of it is securitized, a trillion-Yuan market will be
built. Problems such as limited financing channels
and difficulty in capital exit still exist in the traditional
investment and financing models of infrastructure
in China. The development of publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs can recover the existing stock of
assets, reduce leverage, resolve local debt risks, provide
social capital with multiple exit options, and enable
ordinary investors to share the returns of infrastructure
investment. This provides a wider platform for the
development of infrastructure asset management in
China.

China ushered in the era of the publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs with two batches of publicly-
offered REITs being listed in 2021, which is a historical
opportunity that we have waited on and prepared for
many years. Before any event happens, there is always a
chance of it occurring, the probability is always neither
0% nor 100% but once it occurs, the chance is 100%.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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In the past year, we have given all our efforts on the
REITs sector, and our team has deeply involved in REITs
issuance, helping Shougang Green Energy (180801.52)
to successfully list as one of the first REITs projects in
China; We have established several strategic placement
funds and became an important long-term strategic
investor for almost all listed REITs projects. In addition,
we have launched a RMB10 billion scale of Pre-REITs
fund for green and environmental protection, with
an initial phase of RMB 4.5 billion in cooperation
with China Life. We intend to acquire high-quality
infrastructure assets for stockpiling and cultivation,
realize project value appreciation by empowering the
assets, and place mature projects upon incubation
into the publicly-offered infrastructure REITs funds to
complete exits in the future, thereby establishing the
Company’s closed-loop model in the entire REITs chain.
Our participation in strategic placement investment is
only the beginning and entry point of the Company’s
REITs layout. In the future, we will accelerate the
development of our unique whole REITs chain operation
and development model with our strong fund-raising
ability, precision industry investment ability, lean
operation and management ability, as well as mature
and comprehensive exit capability.

In the field of parking, the number of car ownerships
in China has exceeded 300 million in 2021, and the
shortfall of parking spaces has exceeded 80 million. The
falling behind management of public parking resources
and the lack of innovative products on the supply side
have made the problems of “parking difficulty and
parking chaos” more and more prominent. Since entry
into the parking asset management field in 2018, we
have built a comprehensive capability of planning and
design, investment and construction, management and
operation, innovation and value-addition in the whole
business cycle and whole industry chain.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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It is definite that top world-class companies will emerge
from China and surpass to stand out amongst peer
companies across Europe, America and Japan. Although
we are still an order of magnitude away from our peers
in the industry in terms of scale, we will definitely
become the best parking company in China as long as
we firmly walk in the way of Chinese characteristics
and persistence using the effective means of combining
industry and finance, technological innovation and asset
efficiency to serve the city’s smart mobility and people’s
parking needs.

Until now, we have formed a mature and diversified
product system, featuring three mainstream business
categories, including transportation hub, municipal
infrastructure and commercial real estate. We have
established complementary and flexible cooperation
models, with franchising, long-term leasing, cloud
hosting services and entrusted management as the
main operation models to effectively mitigate the risks
that can arise from a single model. In addition to the
efforts of our own business development team, we have
established close partnerships with local governments,
key central and state-owned enterprises, various types
of developers and resource holders. Our organization
and teams have penetrated into mega-city clusters, and
our business has covered the most dynamic economic
regions in China, such as Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region,
Southeast Region, Chengdu-Chongging Region and
Greater Bay Area; as to science and technology,
always focusing on improving operational efficiency,
furthermore we have formed a technology service
capability that is ahead of the industry, and started to
export our technological capabilities within the industry.
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The synergy between infrastructure and real estate fund
management and parking sectors will create greater
value. The publicly-offered infrastructure REITs provide
development channels and exit paths for parking asset,
and the experience we have accumulated in the latter
has laid a solid foundation for the business development
in REITs. This business model forms a closed-loop from
asset acquisition to asset operation and upgrade to
asset securitization. The multi-level linkage and synergy
of core business is the core competitiveness of the
Company in the long business cycle, which will also be
further optimized and verified in the future.

Efficient Organizational Structure

In the past five years, we are followed our mission
to serving the society, we completed the strategic
transformation, and achieved synergistic progress of
our business, in which we could not have accomplished
without the backup of a dedicated and committed
team. Over the past five years, we have built a flat
organization, efficient operation rules, a professional
talent team, a market-oriented incentive mechanism
and collective values, which ensured the efficiency,
vitality and pioneering spirits of the organization and
guaranteed the strategic implementations and attained
the operational targets.

In terms of organizational structure, continuous
efforts were made to create a flat organization. Too
many levels of organization will inevitably lead to
inefficient decision-making and make the company
insensitive to the market front line. To prevent this from
happening, we aim to achieve efficiency and quality in
management decisions by streamlining and optimizing
the organizational structure, reducing management
levels, and optimizing the authorization and decision-
making system with the goal of “making things happen
efficiently”.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

HERSEIAEESEEAFERT
MEXFZHEFAEEREER ER
R ABREITsAFBEHRITEERME
BHEEMEBHMNER  RMEREE
HITEBMBENKCRARRRKER
FEEECRETNEREREETTRE
NER - E—EEREER T REE
ENIEEEEHABRBIEERS®L
HERIRE > ROEBNLE X
MiHpER R ERBHANZ O FAE
B ERKREEE—FEBLEMNR

2%

ag ©

= AR R

BERF RABTTRBLEHOE
o SR T BRH SR E BT X
HFHRMELE EERESIH —X&
DEI - REBEOEB - AFR R
MBEBBERTHNES SUNET
RANFERZN AT B B HERHE
WRNBESERNEES  BiRT 4
BEY S B DMEER > RIE T BBLSE
S E B RBIERL

FHBEB L FESNITERTE
HE BB RMEBE R BARBEURER
MENBET BEEREZHME K
ERE - Rt RPIUTESHAE &
B - BRGEHECEREHE HLE
BERE®R BLRERRRER HEE
REBERRNBEXNER-

BREERARAT 2021FFR 17



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

18

In terms of operating rules, we have built a streamlined
process and system. An efficient organization needs not
only a flat structure, but also efficient operation rules.
To this end, we continue to streamline work processes,
draw upon practical lessons, and to created and improve
the incentive mechanism, collaboration, negative list
management model and internal settlement so that
the team can devote more efforts to producing more
innovative work.

In terms of human resource talent development, we
insist on the concept of drawing talents to our business
and cultivating them in the business. We firmly believe
that the cornerstone of an organization is its talents,
and only by attracting and cultivating more excellent
partners can the company have a future. Over the past
few years, we have continued to build an excellent
career development platform, recruited outstanding
professionals, built a sustainable career ladder, gave
promotions to internal staff, and strengthened skills
development and training. During the past year, we
focused on increasing the training and integration
of our middle and senior management teams. Our
subsidiary CANPLUS, has built a middle and senior
management talent training system around leadership
and management improvement for this group; our
subsidiary, Wanwu Research Institute, has established a
mutual transformation mechanism between research and
investment by driving targeted investment with in-depth
research. These two systems have enabled the Company
to move gradually with the change implementation from
gathering talents to training talents.
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In terms of system of rewards and incentives, we
adhere to the market-oriented direction. The Company
establishes and continuously updates the rewards
system with the oriented by the changing market,
driving the initiatives and motivations of employees
through a challenging and stimulating performance
management model; by building a competitive salary
incentive system, allowing hard-working employees to
share in the risks and benefits with the Company, and
gain sufficient respect and rewards. During the past
year, the Company’s equity incentive plan was officially
launched. This is an incentive for the core management
staff and talents who has contributed to the Company’s
transformation.

In terms of corporate culture, we build common and
positive corporate values. We have always attached great
importance to the culture and values of our common
team. The collective way of thinking and acting is both
an important guarantee for the whole organization to
work together, and an indispensable soft power for
the efficient operation of the organization. In the past
few years, the values and codes of conduct we have
established have been deeply understood and thoroughly
practiced. We hope that we will continue to pass on our
culture and values to create an organization with mission
and responsibility, with ideals and beliefs, and with an
ethical behavioural bottomline.

Our efforts in the above five dimensional areas has
setup the foundation for the efficient operation of the
organization, and such a foundation is our guarantee
for innovative development, collective efforts and
cultural integration. Organizational building is an
ongoing process where there continues to be room for
improvement, however investing in the right projects
and right people is especially important for us. Building
on the foundation of gathered talents and knowledge,
the key focus to building our organisation in the future
will be growing the next generation army of trainees.
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CHAPTER TWO  THE FUTURE UNDER A NEW

BUSINESS LANDSCAPE

At this new development stage, we can win the future only by
building a business model where we can demonstrate our own
characteristics, leverage our resource endowment and form
differentiated core competencies and focus on the future.

Over the past five years, we have been actively laying out
the promising infrastructure real estate businesses including
parking, industrial park, redefining product categories
through the linkage of cross-disciplinary resources, and have
comprehensively improved the efficiency and capability of
industrial operations. With the official launch of China’s
publicly-offered infrastructure REITs, our advancing asset layout
and the existing operational capabilities have become more
significant, and our business model of “efficient infrastructure
asset operation center + infrastructure real estate fund
management” has taken shape.

To build an efficient infrastructure asset operation centre
requires making strongholds tying strong knots, staying in the
battle, although it is labour intensive and tiring, but operating
is actually the basis to asset return. Rooted on the basis of the
actual economy with strong competency is the cornerstone
of asset management and financial innovation; financial
innovation built on the basis of efficient asset operation can
result in appreciated asset value, which means the longer
we hold asset, the greater the absolute returns. The organic
combination of industrial operations and asset management
will bring a “Davis double-killing effect” on top of the liquidity
of China’s REITs market.

1. Infrastructure real estate fund management:
REITs’ development and market space

During the year 2021, China’s first REITs in the
infrastructure sector were officially listed. This is the
trumpet of a new era! China's REITs market focuses on
infrastructure real estate, and the central government
encourages pilot REITs in areas such as transportation,
energy, municipal infrastructure, ecological and
environmental protection and storage & logistics.
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As of 30 March 2022, the market value of the 11 listed
Chinese REITs has reached RMB44.34 billion. Considering
China’s globally leading advantage in infrastructure
scale, it will soon witness the birth of a trillion-Yuan
publicly-offered infrastructure REITs market as a large
number of excellent infrastructure assets will hit the
market through this mechanism in the next five years.

At the same time, with the "awakening” of the
“dormant” infrastructure assets, the areas covered by
REITs in China will generate sufficient liquidity, which will
eventually be manifested in the asset market value. Most
infrastructure assets, previous collateral or guarantees,
had their value calculated at a discount in the eyes
of traditional funds and their cash flow value could
not be fully reflected. Publicly-funded REITs provide
an important opportunity for our infrastructure to be
revalued and to have their prices increased.

| have listed below the cumulative return rates and
cash dividend distribution rates of the 11 REITs that
have been listed. You can see that domestic REITs have
performed very well in the secondary market, with sound
fundamentals and favorable trading factors to help
domestic REITs achieve excess returns outperforming
most asset classes. Since the first publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs were listed on 21 June 2021, as of
31 December 2021, listed publicly-offered infrastructure
REITs have increased accumulated by 25.49% on
average, while the CSI 300 witnessed a total increase
of -3.18% over the same period, the publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs delivered a relative excess return
of 28.67% comparing to the CSI 300. From the
overseas REITs market practice, the return of publicly-
offered infrastructure REITs is usually at a high level. For
example, the annualized return of them in the United
States is nearly 20% in the past 5 years, which is in
the first echelon of all types of REITs and well above-
average. With huge growth potential and inimitable
unigque advantages, the domestic infrastructure REITs can
bring considerable returns to investors in the future.
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Market
Value by
Cash Cash Dec, 31,  Accumulative
Dividend Dividend 2021 Return
Rate Rate (100 million Rate
REITs Asset Class (2022.3.30) (2022E) RMB)  (2021.12.31)
RE Rg  2021.12.31 it
RikE Dk & W
REITs% 18 HERY (2022.3.30) (2022E) (BAR®)  (2021.12.31)
China Merchants Shekou Industrial Zone Property rights 3.29% 4.46% 25 19.96%
Holdings Co., Ltd.
wOER ER
Global Logistic Properties Property rights 3.46% 431% 73 25.06%
ERE ElE
Yantian Port Property rights 3.08% 4.40% 24 33.04%
BHE ER
Zhongguancun Industrial Park Property rights 2.94% 4.78% 40 39.00%
R ER
Zhangjiang Everbright Park Property rights 3.18% 4.04% 19 24.58%
RILAK ER
Dongwu Suyuan Property rights 3.73% 4.36% 41 17.16%
RREE ER
Fullgoal Capital Water Franchise 5.67% 9.08% 27 46.30%
HEIKH RetEER
Shougang Green Energy Franchise 5.75% 7.63% 17 30.43%
EliEEa RetER
Yuexiu REIT Franchise 5.87% 7.87% 27 28.08%
HEBE RerER
Zhejiang Hanghui Expressway Co Franchise 8.75% 9.91% 51 16.01%
pRR RetEER
Ping An Guangzhou Comm Invest Franchise 6.88% 6.87% 92 0.72%
Guanghe Expressway
BN RetER
Average 25.49%
T
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We believe that REITs will bring profound changes to the
investment and financing structure as well as operations
of infrastructure assets. The Company has already
laid out large-scale infrastructure assets in the fields
of parking and industrial parks through the Pre-REITs
model many years ago, and is committed to improving
the efficiency of and returns on assets through lean
operations. It is believed that under a good environment
of a complete opening of China’s REITs market, the
better cycle of "asset value creation — capital return
— expanded asset management scale” will gradually
become a reality.

Efficient infrastructure asset operation centre:
a large potential for parking industry

Along with the launch of China REITs, the closed-
loop parking business model is about to be built. We
kept increasing the supply of parking spaces through
BOT and PPP models, devoting ourselves to reducing
urban parking pain points. By optimizing the resource
efficiency of the existing parking spaces through
operational efficiency and technological empowerment,
we are also converting the past inefficient assets into
value-creating projects to better serve the society. When
the project scales up, these long-term, high-quality
and high-return parking assets will be issued through
REITs to deliver capital recouping, and the funds will be
reinvested in urban infrastructure fields such as parking
in a circulating manner to further expand the network
density and better sort out the network nodes for
intelligent urban transportation.
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Currently, our synergy and extension effect in asset
management is beginning to bear fruit. Through the

24

management and operation of the parkland assets, we
have a deeper understanding of commercial real estate
and stronger resource links. During the year, we helped
a number of developers and state-owned platforms with
abundant parking resources to have achieved substantial
improvement in the operational efficiency of parking
resources and to realize asset-backed securitization,
effectively optimizing the liability structure and creating
capital return. This is an important breakthrough in
our transition from property management to asset
management of parking assets.
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We are also helping the parking lots owned by the
REITs" original owners to conduct space renewal and
to improve the efficiency of the parking assets to
provide better service to the car owners by adding more
functions through operational technology system. For
most of the REITs original equity holders, parking assets
are like “ribs”, but we have initially restored the proper
value of parking assets through professional operation.
In the future, we will also help the original equity
holders to securitize the parking assets to create more
asset value.

On top of the stable income generated from asset
management, we also caught good strategic investment
opportunities in familiar areas and provide integrated
industrial services to the companies we invested in.
During the year, the investment business contributed
excess earnings of HK$258 million to the Company.
These excess earnings were achieved after HK$2.49
billion was paid out in cash returns to the investors (or
LPs) of the funds managed by the Company's strategic
investment business.

What lies between the risk and the benefit is always
the ability, the stronger the ability, the less risk and the
greater the return. Ability to build requires a high rate
of trial and error and much experience gained over the
years. This is what we have been doing in parking asset
management for many years, and perseverance will
deliver more industrial expansion and possibilities.
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CHAPTER THREE THE GUARANTEE FOR

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

The business model we are exploring in the parking sector

systematically solve social problems and logically create

business value. We have consolidated our leading position

in the parking field through a wide range of new products,

continuous service and technology innovations that creates

value for our various customers.
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Continuous improvement of asset
management efficiency

As a leading company in China’s parking asset
management industry, the continued improvement of
asset management effectiveness is central to whether
our business model can succeed. The revenue from
parking which was HK$614 million in 2021, represented
a year-on-year increase of 28%, and accounted for 51%
of our corporate revenue. Through multi-dimensional
mining and innovation of parking scenario, our non-
parking fee revenue reached HK$65 million. Through
the upgrade of intelligent hardware equipment and the
enhancement of digital intelligence system, we have
reduced management costs and achieved unmanned or
flexible manpower line management in some car parks,
with the number of parking spaces managed per capita
growing from 50 to 72. Our management effectiveness
is at an industry-leading level and headed in every
dimension to being the best in the industry.
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Continuous innovative asset value mode

Parking assets are wide spread in taking part in many
scenarios of people’'s daily mobility. In the past five
years, we continue to have the users needs at the
core of what we do, working around different parking
assets, addressing the needs of differing demands to
differentiate ourselves, participating with humility,
continually innovating and building our value-creation
model.

(1)  Transportation hub projects oriented towards
SOE assets holders.

The transportation hub category is characterized
by large scale, huge traffic flow, wide space
for innovation, and scarce resources, making it
an unparalleled quality asset. As asset owners,
large state-owned enterprises such as Capital
Airports Holdings Ltd and China Railway, are our
important partners. As a leader in the operation
of parking assets in domestic transportation
hubs, we always focus on how to continually
improve service quality, how to recreate high
capacity traffic flow commercial space, and how
to explore the long-term value of assets. We
broke the cost-oriented entrusted management
model with our partners and transformed the
traditional client relationship into a long-term
strategic partnership, creating comprehensive and
customized parking solutions for them.
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In the past five years, through precision
investment, the number of operating projects at
airports and high-speed railway station parking
lots has reached 23. It is believed that this
number will expand rapidly in the near future,
and it is foreseeable that the potential point-
to-point business will be enormous after the
joint connection and linkage of aviation and
land resources in the future; in the past five
years, through in-depth and thorough detailed
efforts, we have revived the traditional resource
of transportation hubs, allowing the single
parking space to be superimposed with diversified
commercial functions and service functions.

During this year, new agreements were signed
on 14 transportation hub projects including
Ningbo Lishe International Airport, Zhengzhou
Xinzheng International Airport, Zhangjiakou
Ningyuan Airport, Zhaotong Airport in Yunnan>
as well as parking lot projects at 10 high-speed
railroad stations along the Beijing-Harbin Railway,
Beijing-Zhangjiakou Railway and Beijing-Xiong‘an
Intercity Railway. At the same time, Beijing Daxing
International Airport, Beijing Capital International
Airport and Shanghai Honggiao International
Airport agreed to extend the terms of cooperation
with the Company. Our continuous efforts and
effective input in such assets and projects have
yielded multi-win results for both the asset
owners and the car owners, and won a high
level of trust and the full support of our strategic
partners. We have become the industry leader in
the transportation hub category by acquiring the
largest number of airport projects.
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Projects of municipal infrastructure with
governments as asset holders

In municipal infrastructure projects, we mainly
provide service for governments at all levels,
as well as the city administration and traffic
management departments associated with
them. The value of this type of projects is to
add more urban parking spaces, alleviating
the imbalance between supply and demand,
integrating fragmented municipal assets for our
partners in government departments, enhancing
the efficiency of resource use and achieving the
effects of urban governance. Our parking industry
fund has established a mutually beneficial
cooperation framework with local governments
and platform companies, and these high-quality
parking assets have provided a solid foundation
for subsequent asset-backed securitization.

In the past five years, we have partnered with
regional governments to build high-density
“parking stations” through the use of underused
land and marginal land in the city, and supplied
incremental parking spaces to core areas, old
neighborhoods, central hospitals and other
areas in a BOT model. Such cooperation mode
reduced the financial pressure of the government,
lowered the risk of project investment, addressed
the shortage of parking spaces, and made
efficient and intensive use of the city resources.
We are willing to, starting from the whole-
factor scenarios of urban parking, work with
the host government of the project to promote
the development of regional smart parking
industry and the improvement of digital urban
governance capacity, and build a new sustainable
development model of “parking assets-backed
securitization + urban reinvestment with
recouped funds” for the city.
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During the year 2021, we have formed
preliminary regional grid-based parking stations
in Qinhuai District of Nanjing, Jianye District
of Nanjing and Dadukou District of Chongging
respectively, which have largely addressed huge
unmet needs for parking space for the above-
mentioned areas and provided a regional static
traffic solution paradigm. In the next 2 years,
BOT parking complex projects will see nodes
connected to form a continuous whole in the
above-mentioned regions.

The city-level roadside projects we operate
in Baoding City, through the use of artificial
intelligence, big data, Internet of Things and
other technologies, made possible the city’s
unified parking information collection, provided
data sharing and decision support services to the
government, and provided parking information
services to the public. This created a new
paradigm of intelligent static traffic in Baoding
City, securing a leading position for us among
urban roadside operating companies.

According to the Company’s existing regional
development plan, in cities such as Beijing,
Tianjin, Nanjing, Chengdu, Chongqging,
Guangzhou and Shenzhen, we will make full
efforts to work deeply with local governments,
input quality resources, tap the space potential
and provide effective supply. We believe that
the more social contributions we make, the
greater the long-term profits. We will also fully
open up and refine the cooperation mechanism
for common business development with more
strategic partners.
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The key focus of municipal infrastructure
projects is project planning and design, and the
configuration of comprehensive service functions,
testing our technological management and fine
operation abilities. Through continuous efforts,
the cost of a newly-built parking space has
decreased by 15% compared with the past, and
we have introduced integrated service modes
such as electric vehicle charging service, end
logistics and autonomous retail services. While
reducing the number of standardized parking
space operation roles, we have added several
innovative roles for publicity and guidance, to
develop diversified payment products and to
increase payment channels. We have gradually
developed the habit of autonomous payment by
vehicle owners, and the project’s payment rate
has raised from less than 80% to over 90%.

Commercial real estate and industrial park
projects

For commercial projects, we target to mainly
service various real estate developers, park
owners and urban investment and financing
platform companies and other partners.
Since the commercial parking lots are in well-
established areas, we have focused on changing
the traditional entrusted management model to
improve the quality and efficiency of assets in
the past few years. This was done by introducing
smart parking system and lean operation
management to meet the urgent needs of
property owners for property value improvement.
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As the property development industry continues
to be further regulated, new and important
opportunities for the Company’s development
have emerged. A considerable number of
developer-owned parking spaces will flood
the market, some of which overlap with the
Company’s regional high-density parking lots
and become investable assets. Through our
own capital plus external financial leverage,
we revived high-quality underlying assets in
the form of funds, REITs and REIT-like assets,
which solved the actual needs of real estate
development enterprises and urban investment
and financial platforms. This practice also
enabled our Company acting as an asset
manager, to bring in our lean operation that
was accumulatively formed in the past years into
the assets, improving the quality and efficiency
and generating greater benefits for investors.
The Company has now established a number of
parking equity funds, furthermore parking ABS
and REITs are expected to be issued in the market
as soon as possible.

The past years of strategic planning, accumulative
building and waiting have been rewarded today
with the opportunity to become the best parking
asset manager in China through precision
investment and lean operations, as well as the
company’s credit and reputation earned over the
many years.
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Continuous enhancement of technological
empowerment

We have continually placed a high level of importance
to bringing technology into the operational efficiency
and management model to make a difference, to
allow technology to be used to empower and service
parking assets. Leading technology systems effectively
improve our internal management efficiency and reduce
operational costs. Externally, it has helped our partners
build city-level static traffic intelligence platforms
to improve urban governance. During this year, we
continued to increase our investment in the research and
development of technology, and completed the iterative
upgrade of our Saa$ architecture-based digital intelligent
asset management platform V3.0, subsequently took the
lead in the full application use in the parking segment.

In terms of service system, we adopted the intelligent
charging management system, which not only realizes
the unmanned management of parking lot entrances
and exits, but also ensures unhindered passage of car
owners; at the same time, the digital space management
module applying Al visual recognition, VR video
integration, big data, cloud computing, 10T and other
technologies implementing active early warnings, and
intelligent management mode of accurate scheduling,
extending the radius of intelligent management to the
whole car park, and further improving the management
efficiency and reducing the manpower dependence of
the car park.

In terms of asset management, we combined big data
analysis and Al learning system to form an information-
based investment and operation index system consisting
of more than 900 analysis parameters, and built a data
analysis platform for asset investment and operation
management. This platform can quickly generate asset
investment return models and provide digital analysis
to assist decision-making on investment and expansion.
During the asset operation cycle, we built a project
operation “health shield” with the operation index
system, monitoring the status of project operation
in real time, and generating timely warnings and
improvement proposals for deviations from expectations,
using information technology to delivering dynamic
management of the full life cycle of the project.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FrER R AE N E
HM—BEsEERRRRAGRNE

FEEERBMME - BB ERR
MENBBRATRMANEERXR
BRETESMAR - HIN HESFEBH
BERTHRBEEETE BATH
TEEE - ER HAFEMAR K
REERR A > SR T BN SaaSR B T
BRCEEEETAV3.0RERAR
WREEFERTRIRZEER -

TR XASSREEERN B
BERTEESHAOEALCEE X
RATEINBITUE ; AE  EHA
REBA VRIESARE - ABIE - EF
B IO EBASERMNEFIEERE
BERB BRIPEE  BEFAEEE
EEEN RESEENFEERE
BEEE WE-FTRAEEME &
BEHZHAIKE -

HEEEER RS REEDN
RAIEEEE R 2T B 39008%
BN 2EBRNESCREEESS
REZ BRULEERONEZEERE
WHEEIMFE - REERBEERE
BmBRE HRIATRREHFTED
MBI RR - TEEEESBHRN  LUE
EiERRAREREEEREREM
ERETEEEEESNNRE  RERDP
RERELERNEHEEREZ B8
EREFRHEBEEEREEMEND
BEEo

BREERARAT 2021FFR 33



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

34

During this year, we launched our city-level smart
parking management platform with independent IPR
through building a multi-channel payment model,
iterating intelligent sensing devices, designing
diversified products with rights to vehicle owners, using
technological applications with operational strategies
together in a combined way to deliver the project having
increased parking spaces managed per capita.

Through the above technology-enabled initiatives, we
achieved a 41% year-over-year increase in parking
management efficiency for the whole year full-scale
operational projects. We delivered digital intelligent
parking management products to the market,
empowering the industry and servicing the society.
We have helped hundreds of parking lots (parking
garages) across the country to have completed digital
intelligent parking management upgrades; we have
also closely participated in the construction of smart
cities, winning the bid for the construction project of
municipal intelligent static traffic in Baiyin city, Gansu
province. We have expanded business from parking
digital intelligent management to digital governance
of urban static traffic, from the establishment of a
basic parking database to the formation of a city
static traffic management platform, thereby building a
comprehensive digital governance model of urban static
traffic. We will also find digital governance solutions
based on static traffic digital governance, and then
explore more technology applications in urban intelligent
development and digital governance.
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CHAPTER FOUR OUTLOOK

Looking back on the past entrepreneurial path, it was an
arduous journey, we began from a small company, and after
five years of hard work, we have almost recreated a company,
gaining success on the journey of transformation.

In the pursuit of farther ambitious goals, it is inevitable for us
to take detours in the process and encounter many difficulties
beyond our ability. Even the longest journey can be finished by
taking steady steps, and even the most difficult tasks can be
done by taking firm actions. The core team and | will continue
to work hard to build an outstanding company, to make the
Company a leader in "the centre for efficient infrastructure
asset operation + infrastructure real estate fund management”,
and create the Chinese model of parking business and REITs.

“Great accomplishments require ambitious courage and
persistent efforts.” We believe that as China’s economy is
entering a stage of high quality growth, a historic opportunity
arises to China’s infrastructure assets for asset revaluation.
Looking ahead, we will continue to create for the society
greater values through our products, services and technological
innovations.

In the new business year, we will make more efforts to build
effective collaborative channels and a better future together
with various strategic partners, making more efficient business
developments. In the new business year, we will place more
importance on the infrastructure building construction of
regional companies, make up for shortcomings, fully delegate
authority, and build up four main regions into the Company's
growth pole. We believe that through continuous efforts
of our team and the expansion of our friendship circle, we
will continue to expand with success. We will strive to grow
the scale of managed assets by more than RMB15 billion, to
achieve double parking revenue and profit throughout the
Company. On this foundation, the fruitful results of the health
and growth of the Company is shared with our investors and
employees.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Tianyang, aged 41, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company on 6 January 2018 and is also a member and
the chairman of each of the Executive Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
degree in science and a Master degree in economics from
Peking University and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business. Mr. Zhao joined Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (&5
£EARAE, “Shougang Group”)in December 2011. He
is a deputy general manager of Shougang Group, a director
of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang
Holding”), and the vice chairman and general manager of
Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. Gt EHMESBRAT,
“Shougang Fund”). Both Shougang Holding and Shougang
Fund are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shougang Group. Each
of Shougang Group, Shougang Holding and Shougang Fund is
a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Zhao
worked in The China Securities Regulatory Commission, Beijing
Municipal Commission of Development and Reform and Peking
University. He has extensive experience in company operation
and management, investment and capital operation.
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Mr. Xu Liang, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is also a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company. He graduated
from Fudan University with a Bachelor degree in Statistics and
obtained a Master degree in Business Administration from
Tsinghua University and is a senior accountant. Mr. Xu joined
the group of Shougang Group in 1988 and held various senior
positions. He is the managing director of Shougang Holding.
Mr. Xu is also an executive director and the chairman of each
of Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (“Shougang
Grand”) and Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited
("GDC") and was the managing director of Shougang Grand
(from 22 August 2019 till 18 September 2019 and from 1
January 2021 till 28 March 2021). Both of Shougang Grand
and GDC are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
experience in management.

Xu has extensive

Mr. Li Wei, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 22 May 2020 and is also a member of each
of the Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was also appointed as the President of the
Company on 9 July 2020. Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor degree in
Agriculture from Beijing University of Agriculture in 1997 and a
Master degree in Management from Renmin University of China
in 2008 and is a senior political worker and an economist. He
is an executive director and the general manager of E Park
(Beijing) Technology Limited (B8 (It =) BiZHRAF) and
the chairman and the general manager of E Park Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (B8 (ItR) KR EEERRLQH),
both are subsidiaries of the Company, and was the president of
regional development and service group of Shougang Fund. Mr.
Li is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to
joining Shougang Fund, Mr. Li held various important positions
in various departments of Beijing Municipal Committee of the
Communist Youth League and held senior positions in Beijing
International Technical Cooperation Center. He has extensive
experience in coordinating company’s daily operation and
management.
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Ms. Zhang Meng, aged 40, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 22 May 2020 and is also a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company. She obtained
a Bachelor degree in Laws from China University of Political
Science and Law in 2003 and a Master degree in Laws from
University of Tubingen in 2008. Ms. Zhang is the chairman
and the general manager of Shoucheng Rongshi (Beijing) Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (BERA (txR) B EEBRAHE,
“Shoucheng Rongshi”) (formerly known as Jingji Tiancheng
(Beijing) Fund Management Co., Ltd. (REXH tR) £
EIEHR/AT)) and was a deputy general manager of the
Company, the controller of risk control department of Beijing
Jingxi Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. (Jbm =R
AR EESEEAMRAE, "Jingxi Venture”) and the
controller of risk management department of Shougang Fund.
Both Shoucheng Rongshi and Jingxi Venture are principal
subsidiaries of the Company engaging in management of
private fund. Ms. Zhang is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group and Shougang
Fund, Ms. Zhang was a solicitor in Beijing Jia Yuan Law Firm
where she participated in a number of mega projects involving
mergers and acquisitions, listing, financing, fund raising and
capital restructuring activities.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Hao, aged 40, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 September 2018 and became
the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors on 15 February
2022. He holds a Bachelor degree from Dalian University of
Technology and a Master of Business Administration degree in
Finance from Waseda University, Japan. Mr. Li has been with
ORIX Corporation (“ORIX”, a substantial shareholder of the
Company) since October 2007. He is currently the operating
officer, deputy head of East Asia Business Headquarters
and managing director of Greater China Group at ORIX, a
diversified financial services company and whose shares are
listed on both Tokyo Stock Exchange and New York Stock
Exchange. Mr. Li also serves as the director and president
of each of ORIX (China) Investment Company Limited and
ORIX Asia Capital Limited, both of which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of ORIX. He is also a non-executive director of
each of Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd (formerly
known as Panda Green Energy Group Limited) and Haichang
Ocean Park Holdings Ltd., both are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Liu Jingwei, aged 54, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 6 January 2018 and is also
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
graduated from the School of Economics of Beijing Forestry
University in 1989 and from Shanghai Advanced Institute of
Finance with a Master degree in 2016. Mr. Liu is a PRC Certified
Public Accountant. He currently serves as a senior partner of
Shinewing Certified Public Accountants and is an external
director of Shougang Group. Mr. Liu is also an independent
non-executive director of China Nonferrous Mining Corporation
Limited, which is listed on the Stock Exchange, an independent
director of each of Guiyang Longmaster Information &
Technology Co., Ltd. and Beiling StarNeto Technology Co.,
Ltd., both are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an
independent director of Hubei Huagiang High-tech Co., Ltd.,
a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.
independent non-executive director of AVIC Joy Holdings (HK)
Limited (resigned on 31 January 2022), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange and an independent director of Shanghai
Yaohua Pilkington Glass Group Co., Ltd. (retired on 25 July
2021), a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.

He was an
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Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, aged 45, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is
also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of
Laws degree from University of Sydney, Australia and was
admitted as a solicitor in New South Wales, Australia and
England and Wales and as a solicitor and barrister in the High
Court of Australia. Mr. Ho is also a fellow member of CPA
Australia. He is a committee member of the Industry Advisory
Committee of Insurance Authority, Deputy Chairperson of CPA
Australia Greater Bay Area Committee, a member of the China
Committee of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce,
a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Shenyang, a standing committee
member of the Youth Federation of Inner Mongolia and a vice
chairman of Inner Mongolia & Hong Kong Youth Exchange
Association. Mr. Ho is the executive director and chief operating
officer of NWS Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, a non-executive director of Wai Kee Holdings
Limited and an independent non-executive director of each
of Kam Hing International Holdings Limited and Asia Allied
Infrastructure Holdings Limited, all being listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was the senior investment director of New World
Development Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company and a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
and an executive director of New World Strategic Investment
Limited. Mr. Ho was also a partner of an international law
firm Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP. He was an
independent non-executive director of Hailiang International
Holdings Limited (resigned on 1 September 2020), which is
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho has extensive experience
in the area of corporate management, investments, corporate
finance, merger and acquisition transactions and international
brand and retail management.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wang Xin, aged 44, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018, and
is also a member and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He received his Ph.D. degree in Accounting from Duke
University in 2006 and obtained a Bachelor degree and a
Master degree in Accounting from Tsinghua University in 1999
and 2001 respectively. Dr. Wang is a CPA of CPA Australia.
He is a professor of accounting at the Faculty of Business and
Economics, The University of Hong Kong (“HKU"). Dr. Wang
joined HKU in 2011 and was awarded a tenured position by
HKU for his excellent academic performance in 2014. Before
he joined HKU, Dr. Wang worked at The Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 2006 to 2011. He has research interests in the
fields of executive compensation, financial disclosure quality,
corporate governance and insider trading. Dr. Wang's papers
were published on various world leading academic journals,
such as Journal of Accounting and Economics, The Accounting
Review, Contemporary Accounting Research and Review of
Accounting Studies. Dr. Wang has teaching experience in
several accounting courses, including Introductory Financial
Accounting, Intermediate Financial Accounting | and II, and
Management Accounting. He also teaches (as one of co-
instructors) the Ph.D. course of Research Methods for Business
Studies.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, aged 57, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
18 May 2018 and is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Bachelor degree, Postgraduate Certificate and
a Master degree in Laws from HKU in 1997, 1998 and 2001
respectively. Mr. Choi is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. He also serves as a consultant of Howse Williams and
the general counsel of Atlantis Investment Management
Limited. Mr. Choi served as deputy head of compliance, area
compliance officer in China and head of compliance with HSBC
Bank (China) Co. Ltd., where he managed over 160 compliance
officers and was responsible for regulatory compliance and
prevention and control of financial crime in over 60 cities in
China. He worked at Clifford Chance and Herbert Smith and
was specialized in compliance, anti-money laundering, anti-
fraud and corporate finance and other advisory work. Mr.
Choi served in the Hong Kong Police Force and was a senior
inspector. He has over 30 years of experience in compliance
management, prevention and control of commercial crime and
investigation, and has extensive experience in legal practice
and, crime investigation and prosecution.
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Mr. Deng Yougao, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018 and
is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Economics from Institute of Finance and
Economics of Jiangxi CIFEM AL, now known as Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics)in 1994 and a Bachelor
degree in Shipbuilding Engineering from Harbin Shipbuilding
Engineering Institute (FAEEM M T EFE, now known
as Harbin Engineering University)in 1988. Mr. Deng is the
chairman of Shenzhen Henggu Nano Technology Co. Ltd. G|
E B 41K R A BRAB) (formerly known as Shenzhen Henggu
Anticorrosion Nano Technology Co., Ltd. CEIIINE E B JE 4 K Rt
K ABBR/ATE)), the executive director and the general manager
of Shengshi Henggu Holdings (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (B%ttE
E#Z8& GEYI) BFE/AT), the managing partner of Shengshi
Henggu (Shenzhen) Administrative Center (Limited Partnership)
(BEEEE R EEHO (BRE8)) and the managing
partner of Henggu Shengshi (Shenzhen) Administrative Center
(Limited Partnership) (IEE &M CRII) BEEFL (BREH))
and a supervisor of Shanghai Tiantan Nano Technology Co.,
Ltd. (EBXREHKBELBRAF) . He is also an independent
non-executive director of Success Dragon International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Deng has
numerous experiences in different roles in various companies in
different industries.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Ms. Zhang Quanling, aged 48, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 6
January 2018 and is also a member and the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. She holds a Bachelor degree in Arts. Ms.
Zhang joined China Central Television in 1997 and has hosted
the famous programmes such as “Oriental Horizon” and
“Focus Interview"”. She participated in numerous news live
coverage and was awarded the “Golden Microphone Awards”,
the “Golden Eagle Awards”, the “Fan Changjiang Journalism
Award”, the most prestigious journalism award in China, and
the 19th “Top Ten Outstanding Chinese Youths”. Ms. Zhang is
the founding partner of Ziniu Fund (524 &%) and the chairlady
of Cool Youth (Tianjin) Culture Communication Co., Ltd. (815
W (RE) XEEEBRAT) . She has extensive experience
in news media, brand building and strategic planning.

Ms. Zhuge Wenjing, aged 44, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28
May 2021 and is also a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company. She obtained a Bachelor degree from Renmin
University of China and a Master of Business Administration
degree from each of the Kellogg School of Business at
Northwestern University in the United States and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology School respectively.
She is currently a director of GLP China Holdings Limited
("GLP") which is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong, an executive vice chairman of GLP China, the
chairman of GLP Finance, and the chairman and president
of GLP Capital, who is responsible for strategic planning,
investment and financing, legal affairs, internal audit and
human resources management in China. Ms. Zhuge is also
responsible for the business planning and overall operation
of GLP Finance and GLP Capital. She has served as the co-
president and chief financial officer of GLP China responsible
for fund management, capital allocation, mergers and
acquisitions and strategic cooperation in China, as well as
financial and human resources management. Prior to joining
GLP, Ms. Zhuge worked in Morgan Stanley Asset Management
Company and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and was a director
of Shenzhen New Nanshan Holding (Group) Co., Ltd (resigned
on 9 August 2019), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPANY OVERVIEW

During 2021, the economy recovered gradually, while it still
suffered some negative effect from the erratic variant virus
of COVID-19. Although facing this complicated external
environment, the Group’s two core businesses continue to
maintain a positive development trajectory, and has made
steady and orderly progress in expansion. Substantial progress
of Infrastructure Real Estate Investment Trusts (“Publicly-
offered infrastructure REITs”) in infrastructure fund sector
has also created ample room for the development of the
Group’s core businesses.

With the rapid expansion of business scale, the Group’s
revenue scale of core businesses has maintained a rapid growth
for the year and recorded revenue of HK$1,195 million for the
year, representing an increase of 69% compared to last year.
The parking business of the Group has made sustained progress
in business expansion, build-operate-transfer model (“BOT
model”) has been implemented and replicated in multiple
locations, the revenue of parking business has maintained
at a rapid growth rate. The infrastructure and real estate
fund management business contributed a considerable and
stable profit, the funds that currently managed had started to
share its returns during the year, which resulted in the rapid
increment of revenue.

At the same time, the Group has firmly focused on
implementing the strategic restructuring of its core businesses
and decided to divest its equity interest in Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited (“Shougang Resources”), a company
listed in the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with stock code 639.

Taking into account the recent market price and cost to sell
of Shougang Resources, the total amount of provision for
impairment in Shougang Resources is HK$1,615 million. As a
result, a significant loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$1,095 million for the year, as compared to profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$659 million in
last year.

NEE

202V F > BEZE S MERE » B2019% A E
REBEREREBEREBENTR-—ENEBF
E£-REEABERNINDIRE AEEMAT
EEBNEBREREFERED  EHRE
NEREREF ERREEASTHERSE
EstEEs (ERRMASREITs ) WEEM
ERTAREBRTIZEXFNERAEEXRE
fi e

BEXBHEEBENRERR sFELAEEE
EEFWARBRAETSER R T E
FEBEINSSET BREFERE9% K&
BEEHTESHRAFEE BR—EE—
BEEAERER ((BOTEHEREB)) %
WEMTBERER WAREFESRIER -
ERREADEESTEEXTREIMBE
MWRs FMEENESRNAFEREERIIK
mNRFEE HHRAREER-

BIEER > AEERERTEXBRMEEM
el ELEREERARLS (HHE
R —RHREBEBHRAEIZRERRE (T
3ZFR)) R LT RO ASRE39Z RE -

FEERBFENHERLHANTHEERNHE
A BNERZAEGERERFERS LB
#1615 T A ERBHEERETFELAT
BB ARMGEBEBE1095ET REFER
Bl¥ER AREGEF A6 59 T HIRKIEE
Be

BREERARAT 2021FFR 45



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The disposal of shares of the Shougang Resources (the
"Disposal”) represents a key element of the strategic
restructuring of the Group’s principal businesses since 2018
by implementing the Group's overall strategy of focusing on
the new core businesses. The business structure has been fully
transformed from typical periodic business cycle to spanning
economic business cycle, with strong cashflow, healthy and
stable operation of the parking and infrastructure and real
estate fund management businesses. The Group is actively
promoting the development of its principal businesses. The
Group has also realised the use of commercial means to solve
social problems, which is in line with the country’s long-term
development direction.

Although the Disposal has a negative impact on the Group’s
performance in 2021, such negative impact represents book
loss only. The cash proceeds receivable from the Disposal will
optimise the Group’s asset structure and promote further
expansion and development of the core businesses, which
is in line with the long-term interests of the Group and
the shareholders. Among them, the Group completed the
transaction of the revised proposed restructuring in January
2022 and received cash proceeds of HK$1,440 million. The
Group's core businesses maintain stable profit growth if the
provision for impairment and the related investment return of
Shougang Resources are excluded.

The Group’s basic loss per share for the year was HK15.19
cents, representing a decrease of HK24.81 cents compared
to profit per share of HK9.62 cents in last year. The Group’s
diluted loss per share for the year was HK15.19 cents,
representing a decrease of HK24.76 cents compared to profit
per share of HK9.57 cents in last year.
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KEY PERFORMANCES AND FINANCIAL

INDICATORS REVIEW

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEm A D

FREB R FHIEIRHTE

For the year ended
31 December

HE12B31HILLEE

2021 2020

HKS$ Million HKS$ Million

BEEET B EET

Revenue EERR 1,195 706

Adjusted EBITDA* K EEEEBITDA* 947 947

Operating profit S =pingil 569 62
(Loss)/profit attributable to the P N/NETEZ: Y SNy

owners of the Company (B548) /& ¥ (1,095) 659

For the year ended
31 December

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

SREX (BB &BF

SR%ERE BB &BF

HE12B31HILLEE
2021 2020
HK cents HK cents
=311 B
(15.19) 9.62
(15.19) 9.57

As at 31 December

128318
2021 2020
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEEET B EET
Total assets BEERE 13,382 14,126
Net assets FEE 10,228 11,919
Asset — Liability ratio BEEBEX 23.6% 15.6%
Debt equity ratio BEBEAX 7.4% 4.1%
# Adjusted EBITDA is defined as (loss)/profit before income tax plus — * A EEEBITDAZ EZ A AT 2 AT (6518) &

non-controlling interest, finance costs, provision for impairment of

Shougang Resources, depreciation and amortisation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEm A DR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The year ended 31 December 2021 compared to the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Revenue and Cost of Sales

With the rapid expansion of business scale, the Group recorded
significant increase in revenue.

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,195 million for the year,
representing an increase of 69% compared to HK$706 million
for last year. The Group recorded cost of sales of HK$648
million for this year, representing an increase of 22% compared
to HK$531 million for last year. Gross profit ratio for the year
was 45.8%, representing an increase of 21% compared to
24.8% for last year. The increase in gross profit was mainly
attributable to the significant increase in revenue as the
infrastructure and real estate fund management business has
recognised a fund distribution and recorded an excess return
(before tax) of HK$258 million during the year. Besides, while
the operation efficiency of parking business has improved,
the overall gross profit of the parking business has gradually
enhanced.

Adjusted EBITDA

During the year, the adjusted EBITDA of the Group amounted
to HK$947 million, which is the same as last year. In this year,
the accounting classification was adjusted due to the disposal
of the relevant shares of Shougang Resources held by the
Group, which led to a decrease in investment return from
Shougang Resources by HK$87 million as compared to last year.
Excluding the investment return of Shougang Resources, the
adjusted EBITDA of Group’s core business amounts to HK$686
million for the year, representing an increase of 14% compared
to HK$600 million for last year.

Finance costs

During the year, finance costs of the Group amounted to
HK$74 million, representing a decrease of 4% of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Share of results of an associate and the Disposal
Shougang Resources

Shougang Resources is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is a major hard coking coal producer in
Mainland China.

The carrying amount of the investments in Shougang Resources
was reclassified as assets held for sale in January 2021.

As the accounting classification was adjusted due to the plan
for the disposal of the relevant shares of Shougang Resources
held by the Group, the investment return from Shougang
Resources for the year was HK$261 million and decreased
by 25% compared to HK$348 million of share of profit of
Shougang Resources of last year.

Besides, there was a provision for impairment of the Group's
holding of shares in Shougang Resources having taken into
account the recent market price and cost to sell of Shougang
Resources. The total amount of provision for impairment was
approximately HK$1,615 million during the year. The provision
for impairment represents an accounting related adjustment
and is a non-operating item and therefore it shall not impact
the cash flow of the Group. In January 2022, the Group
completed the Revised Proposed Restructuring and received
cash proceeds of HK$1,440 million.

Taxation

Provision for income tax expense amounted to approximately
HK$124,413,000 has been made for year ended 31 December
2021 compared to HK$36,565,000 last year.

The Group has been principally engaged in parking business
and infrastructure and real estate fund management business in
Mainland China and is subject to China enterprise income tax
at a rate of 25%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS FEF5[olEE
Summary of net profit/(loss) contribution to the Group by &2 ABHAEENFEF, (558 5
operation/entity: FAETES
Operation/Entity For the year ended 31 December
2/ RAE HENANNALEE
2021 2020
Revenue Profit/(loss) Revenue Profit/(loss)
EEE ORA (EB8) EEE RN (B18)

HKS Million HKS Million  HK$ Million — HK$ Million
BlEGET EEGET FE¥EET EEEET

1. Parking business (before tax) 1. ZEHITER () 614 14 481 143
2. Infrastructure and real estate 2. ERB[HEABHEES

fund management business BEERE (Ka0)

(before tax) 558 428 213 185
3. Other business (before tax) 3. Hfti#7# (a0 23 (3) 12 9)

Sub-total gt 1,195 439 706 319

4. Holding other business assets 4. FHHMEBLEE

Shougang Resources Bil& R - 261 - 348

Sub-total gt - 261 - 348
5. Others 5. Hfth

Corporate EE@BE - (74) = 5

Sub-total INEE - (74) - 5

6. Provision for impairment of 6. EERHEEX

Shougang Resources = (1,615) - -
(Loss)/profit before income tax  FRFFEIRA
(§548) /& - (989) - 672
Taxes and others PSR HAth - (106) = (13)
(Loss)/profit attributable to TRBEE AEM
owners of the Company (8548) /&R - (1,095) = 659
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Parking business

In 2021, the variant virus of COVID-19 started the global
pandemic, and the variant virus is more concealed and more
difficult to be detected. The tightening of traffic control measures
in various places due to the erratic variant virus of COVID-19 has
brought enormous pressure to the entire parking business.

Facing this unfavorable challenge, the parking business adheres
to the principle of "good location, large-scale, and long-term
interest” in expanding the scale of parking space management,
practicing “internal skills” in a crisis, enhancing investment in
technology and deepening the lean operation.

The parking business recorded revenue of HK$614 million for
the year, representing an increase of 28% compared to last
year. Although the profit has shown a relatively large decline,
its composition has undergone a major change. Based on the
judgment of the market trend of the real estate industry, the Group
slowed down the acquisition pace of the parking spaces with
property rights in 2021 and intends to wait for a better time, such
that the investment returns achieved from the parking spaces with
property rights recorded a rapid decrease in 2021 as compared
to last year. In this case, the parking business still recorded profit.
It also allows the Group to see that even under the influence of
repeated pandemics, the overall anti-risk ability and profitability of
the parking business are gradually improving.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAAD R

In terms of regional development and products polishing, the
parking business in the four core regions of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
Region, Southeast Region, Chengyu Region, Greater Bay Area
and the airport line have maintained a satisfying growth and
commissioning speed, amongst which:

o The Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region is the core area with
the largest scale of parking assets of the Group. In 2021,
Beijing Chaoyang Railway Station Project* (3L R&AB5 UG
IEE), Beijing Zoo Parking Project* (It REN¥WEFEH

I8H) in Beijing, Zhongbei Town Canal Business District
Government Cooperation Project* (F 1L $E3E o] 5 75 & BT
&1EIEE) in Tianjin and many other projects have entered
the formal operation stage, which not only alleviates the
"parking difficulty” problem in some areas adhering to the
implementation of the national policy, but is also recognised
by the local government, further enhancing the Group’s
business competitiveness in the region.

o The Southeast Region has become the region with the fastest
revenue growth in this year after a year of precipitation. In
2021, Shanghai Jintai Plaza Parking Lot Project* (L&
EZEEBIEE), Nanjing Bailuzhou Park Parking Garage
Project* (BREAEMNABEREILEFEREIER), Nanjing
Qinhong Road No.1 Underground Parking Garage Project*
(FRFRMER 1P TFEREIEE), Nanjing Lianhua
Village Parking Garage Project* (R SEEN 1L fE (=B EIR
H). Nanjing Lotus Area Parking Management Project* (&g
REERBEFEABEIER) and many other projects have
entered the formal operation and construction stage. Among
them, the Nanjing Bailuzhou Park Parking Garage Project*
(REEN,EEELRBEFEEEIER) not only alleviates
the problem of difficult parking in the surrounding area, but
also erects a beautiful scenery in the old city area.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Chengyu Region has won bids and put into
operation for a number of projects in Chengdu and
Chongqging during the year, the management scope
was further expanded, and the concentration of project
areas was further enhanced. In 2021, in Chengdu, Jinniu
District Modern City No.1 Parking Garage Project* (&
FBIRAEMIsEAFEEIER), Dayi County Anren
Ancient Town Parking Lot Project* (K8 % HERC
E{2BIZIEH) and Dujiangyan Water Street Parking Lot
Project* (#SSTIBKHECEFEHIEE) and other projects
have been undertaken the operation, the Parking Garage
of the Sino-Japanese Design Industrial Park Project* (7
HRstEXBEREEUREEEIER)IN the city center
is also nearly completed. In Chongqing, the Dadukou
Wanda Plaza Garage Project* (KB EEIZRE LS
E[EIEH)and the Meidi Homeland Project* (2EXRE
I8 H) has been officially put into operation. At the same
time, the Group also won the bid of Jiangbeizui Central
Business District Binjiang Park Underground Parking
Lot Project* CILILHERAEHEE I ARM NMFEIHIE
B), Dadukou District Jiangiao Lanjiang Pavilion Parking
Garage Project* (KEOBEBE THLEFHEE
H), Dadukou District Yidu Ancient Town Parking Garage
Project* (KEENEBHRELEAEEIBFEREIER)and

other projects.

Nanjing Xu Guang Li Project*
FRENXEEER

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o In regards to airports, the Group continues to seek
expansion opportunities actively. At the existing project
level, the Group signed the supplementary agreements
on extending the operating period with Capital Airport
Holding Company and Beijing Capital International
Airport Co., Ltd., pursuant to which the Beijing Daxing
International Airport Parking Building Project* (35 5T K [
F L4352 BB H) and Beijing Capital International
Airport Parking Lot Project* (It R B EE R4 I5 1= H 15
I8 H) have extended the operating period for 3 years
accordingly. This extension shows the affirmation and
trust from the business partner of the Group’s parking
business, especially the management capability of the
transportation hub parking projects and conducive to
maintaining the pattern of “two airports in one city” in
Beijing of the Group. To a certain extent, it will make
up for the losses caused by the adverse impact of the
pandemic by the enhancement of airport infrastructure
and passenger traffic. Besides, the overall revenue of
the Group will improve by strengthen the business
interaction and service extension of the two airport
projects in Beijing. At the new extension project level,
the Group successively acquired Henan Zhengzhou
Airport Project* CRAIEEBINIEIZIEE), Zhejiang Ningbo
Airport Project* G I EF#15IEE), Yunnan Zhaotong
Airport Project* (ZFREE M HIEE), Hebei Zhangjiakou
Airport Project* CAIIESR R OB IEE) during the year
and further consolidate the Group's leading position of
airport parking management scale.

In terms of technology empowerment, the parking business
continues to actively recruit experts in the industry, improve
the technology team, and increase research and development
investment. The iterative speed of “SONIC"* (3 EE%) has been
significantly accelerated, the application scenarios of the system
have been continuously expanding, and the system functions
have continued to be enriched. The team is also continuing to
build platform-level and city-level solution capabilities, and has
achieved breakthroughs in the City-Level Smart Parking Project
in Baiyin City* (HiRMImARES 2EFHBEIEE), Gansu Province.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of lean operations, the parking business adheres to
the whole-process management concept of “extension and
transportation integration”, focusing on time control, results
presentation, responsibility definition, and synergy in each
link from project establishment to final formal operation, and
continues to optimise the process through regular review. At
the same time, the Group adheres to the “two-hand focus”
strategy. On the one hand, the Group focuses on cost savings
and greatly reduces labor costs through technology. On the
other hand, the Group focuses on value-added innovative
business and the potential value of traditional parking lots.
The Group expands the project’s profit while maintaining the
service quality of the park lots.

Although the normalisation of pandemic prevention and control
will increase the difficulty of parking asset expansion and
increase the operating cost of parking assets in the short term.
From another side, it will also encourage the parking business
to accelerate its core competitiveness, especially in technology-
enabled capabilities, and improves operating efficiency in a
longer operating cycle and shows better operating results.
With the overall recovery of the economy in Mainland China,
through the joint efforts of all employees in the parking
business, the Group’s parking business will achieve rapid and
high-quality growth and better results in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEm A DR

Infrastructure and real estate fund management
business

In the area of infrastructure and real estate fund management,
the Group adopts the real estate financial model of “funds
+ bases + industries” to participate in the development,
management, operation, and exit of industrial entities, to
cover industrial resources by fund investments and increase the
value of the assets. The Group's infrastructure and real estate
fund management business achieves a rapid development in
2021 and the scale of new fund is nearly 10 billion. With the
successful opening of the 2022 Beijing-Zhangjiakou Winter
Olympic Games, which has driven the popularity of the Beijing
West Business Circle* (RZGR 2B and Shougang Park* (B
fME &), the Chang'an Mills project* (/X TFEIEHE)on West
Chang’an Street in Beijing run by the Group will become the
first large-scale commercial complex in Shougang Park to
serve the Winter Olympics and surrounding citizens. Part of
the equity investments are going to enter into the exit period
and bring a considerable excess return gradually. Benefitting
from the advance layout in the field of Public Offering REITs,
with the advancement of the pilot program of publicly-
offered infrastructure REITs in Mainland China, the Group has
established a first-mover advantage in this field.

In 2021, the infrastructure and real estate fund management
business recorded revenue of HK$558 million, representing an
increase of 162% as compared of last year. The recorded profit
before tax was HK$428 million, representing an increasing of
131% as compared of last year.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of business expansion and lean operation, the
infrastructure and real estate fund management business
focused on building its abilities and refining its products,
upholding the “precise investment + lean operation”
belief, and thereby realising the transformation from fund
management to asset management.
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Shougang Park*
BilEE

The Group’s equity investment business centered on the
parking business adheres to the concept of “keep straight and
be innovative, incubating with ecology”. On one hand, to be
“innovative” outside the core business and earn profits for
the Group through financial investments. On the other hand,
to provide an ecological platform to promote innovation and
incubation in core business industry.

During the year, the Group is still making equity investments
in key tracks. The new investment projects of the Group relate
to intelligent driving solutions for vehicles and related fields
such as artificial intelligence chips. For some parts of funds
under management, a considerable investment return was
achieved and the distribution of income has commenced.
During the year, one of the fund investments had started
income distribution and brought the first batch of excess
returns (before tax) of HK$258 million to the Group. With
the withdrawal of the invested projects, the funds currently
managed by the Group will gradually be distributed, which will
generate considerable returns.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2021, with the successful launch of the first batch of
publicly-offered infrastructure REITs in China, the Group has
ushered in the era of publicly-offered infrastructure REITs
for infrastructure in China. Infrastructure assets with long-
term stable cash flow are recognised as high-quality publicly-
offered infrastructure REITs underlying assets, which are the
characteristics of the Group's parking business and urban
renewal assets. On 29 June 2021, the National Development
and Reform Commission issued the “Notice by the National
Development and Reform Commission of Further Effectively
Completing the Work of the Pilot Program of Infrastructure
Real Estate Investment Trust (REITs)"”,
the pilot industry scope of publicly-offered infrastructure REITs

which further expanded

and parking lot projects were included. In the future, the Group
will take advantage of the pilot program of publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs to seek new exit paths for self-owned high-
quality infrastructure assets.

The Group is committed to becoming a leader in the field
of publicly-offered infrastructure REITs in China. By taking
advantage of opportunities in the era of publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs, the Group participated 6 publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs strategic placement in the first half of 2021,
and invested in second batch of publicly-offered infrastructure
REITs products through the investment of private fund in
second half of the year. Through strategic placing investment
in first batch of publicly-offered infrastructure REITs, the Group
is expected to establish a first-mover position in the initial
stage of the publicly-offered infrastructure REITs market and
gradually expand the management scale of investment funds. In
addition, the Group will continue to cooperate with the original
stakeholders of publicly-offered infrastructure REITs, and further
optimize the business model of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, the Group launched a green infrastructure
development fund with a scale of RMB4.5 billion with China
Life Insurance Company Limited (“China Life Investment”)
and Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Fund”).
The Group will gain comprehensive experience in asset
management and fund management through the establishment
of this fund. The establishment of the fund will also absorb
high quality infrastructure assets for the issuance or raising of
publicly-offered infrastructure REITs products, and ultimately
realising the Company’s strategic goal of “pre-REITs fund
acquisition + platform operation management + publicly-
offered infrastructure REITs issuance and exit + publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs strategic placing investment” in the field of
publicly-offered infrastructure REITs, and achieving the layout
of opening up the whole chain of closed-loop business and
closed-loop capital.

IRAERZEN RIE)

*  for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEm AN

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group as a professional infrastructure asset administrator,
focuses on the parking business and infrastructure and real
estate fund management business.

The Group formulates financial risk policies under the directives
of the Board, managing financial risk, foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and trading counterparties’ credit risk. The
Group also targets to ensure that adequate financial resources
are available for business growth.

The analysis on market risk (including currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk of the Group
are detailed in the note related to financial instruments of the
financial statements.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The Group aims to diversify its funding sources through
utilisation of both banking and capital markets. To the extent
possible, financing is arranged to match business characteristics
and cash flows.
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Bank Balances, Cash and Loans

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAA DN

The bank balances and cash, loans and debt equity ratio

of the Group as at 31 December 2021 as compared to

IRITHEER - HEREMR

AEFEK2021F12831H » 152020
F12A31HHRTHEGRIEE - BN

31 December 2020 are summarised below: RBEEARLLEFIRWOT -
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
12831H 12H31H
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
EBEEET B EET
Bank balances and cash RTERKRIRE 2,573 3,739
Wealth management products and BMEDK
fixed income financial assets E W SR E E 1,096 887
Total borrowings ERAEE 753 483
Equity attributable to the owners ENNGIE RSN B
of the Company 10,141 11,772
Debt equity ratio? BEEARLE 7.4% 4.1%
g Debt equity ratio = Total borrowings/Equity attributable to g BEEEXIEF=1E7#HEE KL EHE

the owners of the Company

BA#Em
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EEERAAD R

Currency Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Other
Market Risk

The Group formulates financial risk policies under
the directives of the Board, managing financial risk,
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and trading
counterparties’ credit risk. Derivative financial
instruments are mainly used to hedge the business
operation risks. The Group also targets to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available for business

growth.

The Group conducts its businesses mainly in Hong Kong
and the Mainland China,
exchange fluctuation risks of HK dollars, US dollars

it is subject to the foreign

and Renminbi. To minimise currency exposure, foreign
currency assets are usually financed in the same currency
as the asset or cash flow from it through borrowings.

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, if interest rates
on bank balance and borrowings had been 25 points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit of the Group would have been HK$4.55

million (2020: HK$10.36 million) higher/lower.

Financing Activities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s balance of term
loan financing from bank was HK$753 million, which
was for investing in the 25 years of operation rights of
the Beijing Daxing International Airport Parking Building*
(ERAEFE# 528 48) and Nanjing Jianye First
Cheng Smart City Development Fund Project* (F§ R ¥
EREERNTERESER).

*  For identification purpose only
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USE OF PROCEEDS

1.

On 11 December 2019, the Company completed the 1.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmAEA D

FrEEEFEREBER
R2019F 128118 ZX AT TR ER
HREREE (88 BRARICE &

allotment and issuance of 300,000,000 new ordinary
shares (1,500,000,000 new ordinary shares before the
share consolidation with effect from 30 March 2020

(“Share Consolidation”)) to JD Fountain Technology

(Hong Kong) Limited and received net proceeds of

approximately HK$450 million. As at 31 December 2021,

17300,000,0008%# Z 3B A& (72202043
B30BRMEHER (TRAEH) A
#1,500,000,000#E@ER) > PRER
EHBENABBASE T TREYE
FE2021F 12831 HFERIBEFESD

the Group applied the proceeds in the following manner: FEY R iR
Amount of
Amount of the utilised Amount of
the unutilised net proceeds  the unutilised  Expected
Amount  net proceeds during the  net proceeds  timeline for
of the net as at year ended asat  the use of the
proceeds 1January 31 December 31 December  unutilised net
Intended use of net proceeds raised 2021 2021 2021"  proceeds
#HzZnE #HZ0nE
1818 120215 R 128318 BAXHA
BEME HRE B HEBH WARBH MEREZEN
FRRIERENEERR MERE  MGREEE  AENERE MENERE RHEER
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
HEEET BEEET BEEET BEEET
Invest in the Group's parking business, 270 270 270 - Not applicable
used for the Group's existing capital
injection commitment, rental deposit
and the development of new
parking assets
FEHTERZAELE HERER B
HXURMEESEENTDR
Invest in the Group's infrastructure and 112 112 112 - Not applicable
real estate fund management business
REAEEZERIHADERSERER TEA
General working capital 68 68 68 - Not applicable
—hREEES B
Total 450 450 450 =
Bt

A

The full amount of the net proceeds have been applied in

the manner disclosed in the Company’s announcements on
29 November 2019 and 14 February 2020.

PERANIEFBEIZ A A EFF2019
FEI11H29H 2020528 14HH) A &
BT #5582 19 75 TCHEFH ©

BREERARAT 2021FFR 63



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

64

On 17 January 2020, the Company completed the
allotment and issuance of 18,666,666 new ordinary
shares (93,333,333 ordinary shares before the Share
Consolidation) (“Shougang Subscription”) to
Shougang Holding and the allotment and issuance
of the convertible bonds (“CB Subscription”) with
an aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$1,231,685,000 to Mountain Tai Peak | Investment
Limited (“Mountain Tai Peak”), Matrix Partners China
V, L.P. ("Matrix Partners V") and Matrix Partners China
V-A, L.P. (“Matrix Partners V-A"), and received a total
net proceeds of approximately HK$1,256 million.

As at 30 April 2021, the Company has not utilised any
of the proceeds from the Shougang Subscription and
CB Subscription. The Company decided to reallocate
the amount for the use of net proceeds. As stated
in the section headed “Infrastructure and real estate
fund management business” above, the launch of the
publicly-offered infrastructure REITs has created new
asset securitization opportunities for the Group's high-
quality parking and urban renewal asset projects.
Therefore, the Company believes that more resources
should be allocated to invest in publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs in order to (i) further establish the
Group's first-mover position in the publicly-offered
infrastructure REITs in urban redevelopment and (ii)
fully understand the publicly-offered infrastructure REITs
market, so as to prepare for future independent issuance
of publicly-offered infrastructure REITs. The reallocation
of net proceeds raised will give the Group a greater
flexibility in cash flow management, enrich its financial
resources, and at the same time reserve the right to
use the unutilised net proceeds for its original business
development plan when suitable opportunities arise. This
also enables the Group to satisfy its operational needs
while seizing market opportunities and optimizing the
Group's business model.
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As at 31

proceeds in the following manner:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 2021, the Group applied the

EEEm A D

TREYEE2021F12831HHFFE
TIEFBEDVNER

Revised Amount of
allocation of the utilised Amount of
Amount of amount of  net proceeds the unutilised
Amount of the utilised the unutilised between  net proceeds  Expected timeline
the net  net proceeds  net proceeds 1 May 2021 to asat  for the use of
proceeds as at asat  31December 31 December  the unutilised
Intended use of net proceeds raised 30 April 2021 30 April 2021 2021 2021 net proceeds
R2021%
BE BEIPE S5H1RZE
20215 20215 011 BE01EF
4H30H 4H308 12B31H 128318 BAXYA
FEEME HEBHA NRE A HEBHA NEBE  FEREREN
FERERENEERE MIERE  FMRWERE FERERE FAEWERE MGRERE  HHEER
HK$ Million HKS Million HK$ Million HKS Million HK$ Million
BEEET EEET BEEET EEEET BEEET
Invest in the Group's parking business, 754 - 250 163 87 By theend of 2023
used for the Group's existing capital
injection commitment, rental deposit
and the development of new car
parking assets
FENTEBZARLE HERER 203FFRAl
B URNEEREENRRE
Invest in the Group's infrastructure and 314 - 962 962 - Not applicable
real estate fund management business
REAEEZERZHIHEES TER
BEER
General working capital 188 - 44 2 42 By theend of 2023
—REEET 2023FE KA
Total 1,256 - 1,256 1,127 129
st
# The Company intends to apply the remaining net proceed's g KL 5] K5 ) R BB 2E T 1S A0 TR F BR 1%

raised in accordance with (i) the indicative timetable

set forth above; and (ii) in the manner disclosed in the

Company’s announcement on 29 November 2019 and 14

February 2020 (same where allocation of unutilised net

proceeds is revised as per above).

(i) L ZEF5BE 09 B BT 7 | Re(if) 7R 22 ] 3¢
20194 11529H K%2020F25 14H A9
REFTIR B9 7 T (KB BT 127
B FEEZ DB FIELK) o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3. On 21 February 2020, the Company completed the 3. 2202028218 A AR EMEAERE
allotment and issuance of 300,000,000 new ordinary REBERLAE ((BEEMRE > MAIESE
shares (1,500,000,000 ordinary shares before the ERRAIZzEEZEZEWEB XA ik
Share Consolidation) (“FTLife Subscription”) to FTLife 2% K 8£17300,000,00008 3 Z i@ E (B8
Insurance Company Limited (“FTLife Insurance”) (an P& A 21,500,000,0004% 5@ %)
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings (TERRMPEEIR))  MERE
Limited) with net proceeds of approximately HK$450 FREANBEBEASETL TRIATERE
million. As at 31 December 2021, the Group applied the 202112831 BT RRIEFED S
proceeds in the following manner: R

Amount of
Amount of the utilised Amount of
the unutilised net proceeds  the unutilised  Expected
Amount  net proceeds during the  net proceeds  timeline for
of the net as at year ended asat  the use of the
proceeds 1January 31 December 31 December  unutilised net
Intended use of net proceeds raised 2021 2021 2021  proceeds*
HE2021% HE2021%
1818 R2021F R 12A318  BEXBA
BEMRE HNREA NEBR WARBH MEREFEN
FRRERENEERR MERE  FERERE  FMENERE  RRERE RERER
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BEEET BEEET BEEET BEHET
Invest in the Group's parking business, 270 270 - 270 By the end of
used for the Group's existing capital 2023
injection commitment, rental deposit and
the development of new parking assets
FEHTERZAELE HERER 2023FF KA
HXURMEESRBEENTDR
Invest in the Group's infrastructure and 112 112 97 15 By the end of
real estate fund management business 2023
REAEEZERINAHER S ERER 2023FF KA
General working capital 68 68 - 68 By the end of
2023
—REEES 2023FF[EAI
Total 450 450 97 353
Bt
# The Company intends to apply the remaining net proceeds g K2 B B T B AT 12 70 TE R BB 1 Ak

in accordance with the indicative timetable set forth

above and in the manner disclosed in the Company’s

announcement on 14 February 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 10 August 2020, completion under the subscription 4.

agreement (“Poly Platinum Subscription”) with
Poly Platinum Enterprises Limited (“Poly Platinum”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue, and Poly Platinum has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for the 1% convertible bonds, in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$300 million, with net
proceeds of approximately HK$295 million, has taken
place. As at 31 December 2021, the Group applied the
proceeds in the following manner:

[220205%88 108 » &AABISE AL #Poly
Platinum Enterprises Limited (I Poly
Platinum J) (T3 8E1%& ([ Poly
PlatinumiBBEIA)) > EIb X AT E
B EREZEITMmPoly PlatinumB A
BEMEEREERNE1 %N &S iRE
HFoOHRNELRERBEIRIT IER
HF B A B2 95F T FREHE
F2021F 12831 HWAAERIBFED
TR A& -

Amount of
Amount of the utilised Amount of
the unutilised net proceeds  the unutilised  Expected
Amount of  net proceeds during the  net proceeds  timeline for
the net as at year ended asat  the use of the
proceeds 1January 31 December 31 December unutilised net
Intended use of net proceeds raised 2021 2021 2021  proceeds*
Hz0nE Hz0nE
1818 120215/ 12A318  BAXDA
BERE KRB A KEHH WABA MEREZEN
FREMERENEERR MERE  FRNERE  FMGRERE  RERERE  EHRER
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
FEaET BEEET FEEET FEEET
Financing the expansion of the Group's 295 295 - 295 By the end of
business in management and operation 2023
of car parking assets in Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area and
technology innovation of the Group
AERREBRAERFEHTERER 2023F FEA]
R EB A EI
Total 295 295 - 295
s
# The Company intends to apply the remaining net proceeds g K 2\ B HE S T B FIT 15 70 TE F R 18 L 0k

in accordance with the indicative timetable set forth

above and in the manner disclosed in the Company’s

announcement on 28 July 2020.

FEBFEY B [ 7 e K XN A1 jE 202047 5
28 BI 2 &5 FIT 12 BB B9 75 TUFESF °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

68

On 27 January 2021, the Company entered into the
placing agreement with Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited and BOCI Asia Limited (as placing agents)
to procure placees to purchase the total number of
the placing shares, being 210,000,000 ordinary shares,
at a placing price of HK$2.03 per placing share. On 3
February 2021, the Company completed the placing and
the subscription of 210,000,000 placing shares to not
less than six placees (“Placing and Subscription”) with
net proceeds of approximately HK$419 million. As at 31
December 2021, the Group applied the proceeds in the
following manner:

R2021F1 8278 K ABHESR TR
R (F8) BRAR M IREIFE M
ERAT (BBERE) STIURERS
REREAZRESHRERMEZ
FeEBREAE KD EEr210,000,000
KREER REBASRESERHE
#2.037c° 1202152830 A A E5E
B A A iR 65%a B & IR SR AL 8% R B 1T
210,000,0008% 2 B8 B (7 > 3 2 B A B
ERRDE (RERRDEEIE))  AE
MIEFBENABEL9E T TRES
EE2021F 12831 B RIEFEE
DEHIAER

Amount
of the utilised

net proceeds  Amount of the  Expected
during the unutilised net  timeline for
Amount of the year ended proceeds as at  the use of
net proceeds 31 December 31 December  the unutilised
Intended use of net proceeds raised 2021 2021  net proceeds*
BE20215F
20215/ 12831  BEXHA
S&EmRE HNEBH NRBA FMEREFEN
FIRRIERENRERE RIERE FRiSMIRB 8 MBS FEHRER
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEET BEHET BEHET
Invest in the Group's parking business, used 168 - 168 By the end of
for the Group's existing capital injection 2023
commitment, rental deposit and the
development of new parking assets
FEHTEBZAEEE HEREREXUR 2023 F E XA
MEEREENGLE
Invest in the Group's infrastructure and 168 - 168 By the end of
real estate fund management business 2023
RERERZEARRMIDERSERER 2023F F KA
General working capital 83 - 83 By the end of
2023
—REEES 2023F F AT
Total 419 - 419
st
# The Company intends to apply the remaining net proceed's g KL E] B T BR P 12 70 T F B FE

in accordance with the expected indicative timetable set
forth above and in the manner disclosed in the Company’s
announcement on 3 February 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS & DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed below, there was no other significant

investment held, material acquisitions or disposals by the Group

during the year.

(a)

Very Substantial Disposal

On 15 January 2021, Shoujing Yifei Holdings Limited
("Shoujing Yifei"”),
the Company, entered into the sale and purchase

a wholly-owned subsidiary of

agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
King Rich Group Limited (“King Rich"”),
person of the Company, pursuant to which Shoujing

a connected

Yifei has conditionally agreed to sell, and King Rich
has conditionally agreed to purchase, the sale shares
(the "Sale Shares”) which represent the entire issued
share capital of each of Excel Bond Investments Limited
("Excel Bond"),
Gain Investments Limited (collectively the "Subject
Companies”), at a consideration of HK$3,513,509,976.
The Subject Companies directly and indirectly held
1,463,962,490 shares of the Shougang Resources which
represents 28.98% of all issued shares of Shougang

Fine Power Group Limited and Fair

Resources and all interests of Shougang Resources held
by the Group.

On 18 February 2021, Shoujing Yifei and King Rich
entered into a supplemental agreement to amend and
restate the Sale and Purchase Agreement to the effect
that:

i) The term “Sale Shares” was amended to mean
one ordinary share in the issued capital of
Excel Bond, which represents the entire issued
share capital of Excel Bond (the “Revised Sale
Share”). At completion, Excel Bond will indirectly
hold 600,000,000 shares of Shougang Resources
which represents approximately 11.88% of all
issued shares of Shougang Resources; and

REEAKRE BEARBREE

PRUATIREN BAFE > FEEITEH T
BEARE BAKRBRHE-

(a)

FEEARLE

202118158 AEBZ 2 EW
B ‘A F]Shoujing Yifei Holdings Limited
(TShoujing Yifei)) AL E 2R
BEATREEEERQAE (TREI)
STuBEEWmE (BEEWHE) Bt
Shoujing YifeiB RHHBEIRHE AR
EEKRHEHMBEEREFERN (T
8512 1) > BlExcel Bond Investments
Limited (R BHREBERAE) (MExcel
Bond J) ’ Fine Power Group Limited
#Fair Gain Investments Limited (45 #&
AHTBEQAT) NE2EEETRE
RE#HE3,513,509,9767t° BIEA
SHEEKEEFEEHNERZ2ME
EITR1D 21,463,962,4908% > Bl A&
EEailERzME#RE 688
28.98% ©

722021428 18H » Shoujing Yifeifim
BRI EERE UEBIAREITES
WENBERT -

i) HERIMDIEST ZExcel BondE 2
TRAN—RKRE B CRExcel
Bondz & B2 & 1TR A (T&1E
STREER) o RSEREF > Excel
Bond#& @ #&1F7H600,000,0008%
BMERRG GERHERES
BETRMNA11.88%; K&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

70

i Consideration for the Revised Sale Share is
HK$1,440,000,000, which reflects an indirect
transfer of 600,000,000 Shougang Resources
shares at a consideration of HK$2.40 per
Shougang Resources share, being the same
price per Shougang Resources share as disclosed
in the announcement dated 15 January 2021.
As Excel Bond will cease to be a subsidiary of
the Company following completion, the Group
will only have indirect aggregate interest in
approximately 17.10% of all issued shares of
Shougang Resources upon completion of its
disposal of the Revised Sale Share pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the amended and
restated Sale and Purchase Agreement.

On 28 May 2021, the Amended and Restated Sale
and Purchase Agreement and other transactions
contemplated thereunder was approved in a general
meeting of the Company. Despite the amendment and
restatement of the Sale and Purchase Agreement above,
there was no change in overall business plan of disposal
of all interests of Shougang Resources held by the
Group.

The equity interest in Shougang Resources classified
as held for sale during the year was measured at
the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less
cost to sell at the time of the reclassification and re-
measured at each period end. It was reclassified from
investment in associate to asset classified as held for
sale and measured at fair value less cost to sell on 15
January 2021. It was subsequently re-measured at its
fair value less cost to sell as at 31 December 2021.
The total impairment loss recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was HK$1,615,179,000. The
fair value of the equity interest of Shougang Resources
was determined with reference to the market price of
Shougang Resources as at 15 January 2021 and 31
December 2021 respectively.
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17.10% B9 o

72021458280 » TR ETNE
EREREETRETZ R B
AATREAG FEBHE BE L
MEEREET TETNET A%
B th 5 7 0 290 R 2 B O B
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(b)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 27 January 2022, all the conditions precedent of the
Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement
have been satisfied and the sale of the entire issued
share capital of Excel Bond, which represented 11.88%
of all issued shares of Shougang Resources, took place.
For further details of the aforesaid Disposal, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 15
January 2021, 18 February 2021, 28 May 2021, 29 July
2021 and 27 January 2022 and the circular dated on 30
April 2021.

The Group’s Strategic Investment into a
Infrastructure Real Estate Investment Fund

On 25 May 2021,
of the Company (the

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
“Investor”) entered into a
strategic investor placing agreement with CICC Fund
Ltd.* (REEEEBARAA

“CICC"), pursuant to which the Investor has agreed

Management Co.,

to subscribe for certain fund units (the “Subscription
Fund Units”) of R B & AR ANEAXERR
MisEHREHE S (CICC GLP Warehousing and Logistics
Closed Infrastructure Securities Investment Fund*, the
"REIT") at the consideration of RMB583,500,000 (the
“Strategic Investment”).

The REIT is an infrastructure fund established in the PRC
which mainly invests in projects of which warehousing
and logistics infrastructure projects are the final
investment targets. Its fund manager is CICC and its
fund units are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
The Subscription Fund Units subscribed by the Group
represented 10% of all offered units (i.e. 150,000,000

fund units) of the REIT.

(b)

EREmAEA D

2202251 827H  RIETRETBEE
WHENMBRAREHHEEER B
BB R2EBEHTRMNI1.88%H
Excel Bondz £ & B #ETRAE A H
&

ERLMHEZE—THB F2HE
AAT2021FE1815H~2021FE2818
H~2021%5H28H 2021578 29H
&2022&152752“¢7§z2021¢4ﬁ
30HZ @K

TEEHERZHEAEREES
HERIEE

R2021FE5825H A ARl 2 EEEE
MEAR (MREE) GheEcERE
BRAE (ThERE)) ;T UEHKERE
ERERHZH Bl REECRAERE
FETRNYANAXERSEE
KREES (TREITE ) WETESD
BRBEESME) RESEAAR
#583,500,0007T (TEEBEIZE ) ©

RETEEANPEMRINERRHE
T ETERERUEHNY RERS
MEEARKKREBEZNEEB -HEE
TEBEANATESES ESMBEL
BESRBA LM - AEBRBEBNR
EESHBEMGRETESMNFFEBEHE
13 %8 (BN150,000,0001B & 215 2E) B
10% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEm A DR

As at 31 December 2021, the cost of the Group’s
investment in the REIT was approximately
RMB800,825,000 and based on the quoted market
price traded in active markets, the fair value of the
Strategic Investment held by the Group amounted to
approximately RMB892,105,000 which represented
approximately 8.17% of the consolidated total assets of
the Group.

Net unrealised investment gains of approximately
HK$110,093,000 was recognised by the Group during
the year in respect of the change in fair value of the
Strategic Investment held by the Group. Dividend of
approximately HK$12,179,000 has been received from
the Strategic Investment during the year.

In the long term, based on the stable and diversified
underlying assets portfolio of the REIT and the rental
income generated by its leases, the earnings of the REIT
are expected to grow at a relatively consistent pace over
time. Therefore, looking forward, the Board believes that
the Strategic Investment will strive to generate stable
returns to the Group.

For further details of the aforesaid Subscription, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26
May 2021.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIODS

(a)

72

Completion of the Disposal

Completion of the Disposal took place on 27
January 2022. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 27 January 2022.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Declaration of special dividend

The Board declared a special dividend in the aggregate
amount of HK$200 million, comprising the first tranche
of HK$100 million was paid on 14 March 2022 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 3 March 2022. The second
tranche of HK$100 million is payable on 31 October
2022 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 20 October
2022. For details of the declaration of special dividend,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
15 February 2022.

Share buy-back program

The Board approved a program to buy-back up to
HK$300 million in value of the Company's shares at
a price not exceeding HK$2.75 per Share from the
open market over a period of two years, commencing
15 February 2022 and ending 14 February 2024. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 February 2022.

Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19 outbreak”)

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2022, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the country/region.
The Group will pay close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact
on the financial position and operating results of the
Group. As at the date of this report, the Group was not
aware of any material adverse effects on the financial
statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.

(b)

(9]

(d)

EREmAEA D

BERFHIRE

%%.a,\uﬁa,)ﬁﬁﬂlmyéééis%*%z%f
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAAD R

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company issued a total of 210,000,000 new ordinary
shares during the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the issued share capital of
the Company was HK$12,546,847,000 (represented by
7,291,017,194 issued ordinary shares).

EMPLOYEES RELATIONSHIP

The Group had a total of 512 employees as at 31 December
2021.
employment opportunities. The Group strictly complies with

All subsidiaries of the Company promote equal

regulations of state and local governments and adopts a
fair, just and open recruitment process in order to provide
employees with an equal, diverse and discrimination-free
working environment. In the process of recruitment, training
and promotion, the Group provides equal treatment to all

candidates to safeguard employees’ rights and interests.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to ensure that employees
receive a fair and competitive overall remuneration package.
Based on the principle of “competitive externally, fair
internally”, the Group has established a remuneration incentive
mechanism with “fixed salary as basis and performance linked
remuneration as main component” that is based on position
value, ability, and contribution to performance, in order to
motivate and retain existing employees. By making full use of a
variety of long-term and short-term incentives, the Group seeks
to attract and retain talented employees to achieve the Group's

strategic goals together.

Remuneration packages are designed based on the practices of
the locations of the Group’s various businesses.

Remuneration packages for Hong Kong employees include
salary, discretionary bonus, medical allowance, hospitalisation
plans and a share option scheme to subscribe for the
Company’s ordinary shares. All Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Company provide retirement fund schemes for Hong Kong
employees as part of employee welfare.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Remuneration packages for Mainland China employees include
salary, discretionary bonus, project bonus, medical allowance
and a share option scheme to subscribe for the Company's
ordinary shares as part of employee welfare. To fully cover
the needs of employees, the Group also provides social
insurance welfare (i.e. pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing provident fund) as well as annual
medical checks for all employees according to state regulations.

In addition, to strengthen employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group arranges a variety of recreational activities for
all employees to strengthen team cohesion, and a town
hall meeting to commend excellent individual and team
performances.

The Company adopted the share incentive plan in 2021. The
scope of the participants include executive directors, core
management, technical and business backbone personnel of
the Group. The purposes of the share incentive plan are to align
the interests of employees, Company and the Shareholders
for the Group’s long-term development, to attract, motivate
and retain talent, to establish and improve the long-term
incentive mechanism of the Group, with a view to achieving the
objectives of further enhancing Shareholders’ value. For further
details, please refer to (i) the announcements of the Company
dated 29 July 2021, 12 October 2021, and 5 November 2021;
and (ii) the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2021.

PROSPECTS

The Group’s business development and operation have
overcome the challenge from the market in 2021. The Group's
risk resistance was strengthened under the accumulation of
management experience, a favorable business foundation, the
dividend policy of publicly-offered infrastructure REITs and the
fully financial and resources support from the shareholders
as always and drives to the sustainable growth under the
unfavorable market. In the case that the economy is fully
recovered, the Group is in the faith that the infrastructure asset
management business represented by carpark going to have a
more rapid development in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group endeavors to be a leader in the parking asset
management industry in Mainland China and the trailblaser of
China’s infrastructure real estate funds.

In the area of parking business, the Group upholds the principle
of "key cities, core locations, quality parking spaces” and
continues to steadily digging deep, polishing three mainstream
business, including transportation hubs, municipal facilities, and
commercial offices and constructing a regional grade static all-
in-one integrated traffic combined service network.

The infrastructure and real estate fund management business
focused on the quality of abilities and product refinement,
whilst upholding the “precise investment + lean operation”
belief, and turned fund management to asset management.

At the same time, the synergy between the infrastructure
and real estate fund management business and the parking
business has further strengthened, laying a solid foundation for
the Group’s strong development in the future. Infrastructure
and real estate fund management business will focus on
smart travel, contribute to innovation and incubation, and
further use the excess returns from investment exit to quickly
complete the accumulation and aggregation of funds. This will
provide extended opportunities and growth for the parking
businesses, and the support of the industrial chain has created
strong synergies for the Group’s intensively cultivated parking
business.

With the advancement of the work on the pilot program
of publicly-offered infrastructure REITs in Mainland China,
infrastructure assets with good quality in parking business
and infrastructure and real estate fund management business,
together with the Group’s ability in the fund management
industry, going toward national policy orientation, high
consistency of regional layout of existing good quality assets
with the major districts on which policies focus, it is believed
that there is a promising prospect in this industry.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the
interests of all shareholders and to enhance accountability and
transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions, and
where applicable, met the recommended best practices in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the "Listing Rules”) during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of twelve Directors, being
four Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and
five Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors
is set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of
this annual report. In addition, an updated list of the Directors
and their roles and functions is published on the websites of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.

The Board is characterised by wide diversity and has a balance
of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed “Directors’

Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). All Directors
are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointments and annually the number and the nature of
offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments with an indication of the time
involved.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” as set out on pages 36 to 44 of this annual
report, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the Board members.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is sufficient independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and
calibre for their views to carry weight. The functions of Non-
executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

o serving on Board committees if invited; and

o scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring

performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made a positive contribution to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed comments. They
benefit the Board and the committees on which they serve with
their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active participation in the
Board and committees meetings.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent

Non-executive Directors are identified, in all corporate
communications to shareholders.
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Board diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013 which sets out its
approach to achieve diversity on the Board with a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company. The Nomination Committee reviews annually on the
Board’'s composition under diversified perspectives, including
but not limited to progress on achieving any measurable
objectives that set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy,
and monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy
and will make recommendations on any proposed changes
thereof, if any, to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on the merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

The Board Diversity Policy highlights the importance of diversity
with respect to the strategic objectives and sustainable
development of the Company and gender factor is one of the
measurable objectives. The Board currently has three female
Directors, and the Nomination Committee reviews annually
the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives to
progress on achieving any measurable objectives that set
for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Role and function of the Board and the
management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
It delegates day-to-
day operations of the Company to the Executive Committee

performance monitoring of the Group.

and senior management within the control and authority
framework set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly and endeavors to hold at least four
Board meetings a year. Additional meetings will be arranged,
if and when required. The Directors can attend meetings in
person or through electronic means of communication in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up
the agenda of each Board meeting. A draft agenda of each
regular Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for review
before the agenda is issued and all Directors may request for
inclusion of other matters in the agenda. The Chairman will
take into account the matters proposed by the Directors and
where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters in
the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14 days’
notice of a regular Board meeting is given and the Company
aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings.
The Company also aims at sending the agenda and the
accompanying board papers, which are prepared in a form
and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it to all Directors 5 days for
regular Board meetings, or not less than 3 days for other Board
meetings as possible, before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given as possible.
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The Board has procedures in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company's expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them in performing their duties to
the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings and Board committees meetings, draft and final
versions of which would be sent to Directors for comments
and records respectively, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
any Director/committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter (including material transaction with
connected persons) which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt in a physical Board meeting,
rather than a written resolution. Independent Non-executive
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should be present at that Board
meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote
on any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which he/she or any of his/her close
associates (or associates where the transaction or arrangement
is a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) has a material interest nor shall he/she be counted in the
quorum present at the relevant Board meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXERRS

Attendance records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the

Directors have made active contribution to the affairs of the
Group and 11 physical Board meetings were held to consider,
among other things, various projects contemplated by the

Group and to review and approve the interim results and

annual results of the Company.

The attendance records of Directors at Board meetings and

other committees meetings as well as general meetings during

the financial year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the

H iR
REE2021F12B31HEVBEER &S
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HE2021F 1283 1A LEMBEER  EER
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HAWE -

table below:
Number of general
Number of meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
HE/BTEERY HE/ BIRRAERY
Annual
Executive Audit Nomination Remuneration  General General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meetings Notes
Director B B3¢ HiTZRE BHREZEE RLZEE HHZEE RRBEAE REAE Vg3
Executive Directors HWTES
Zhao Tianyang (Chairmen of the — BX% (EEE
Board, Executive and Nomination ~— H7Z52%
Committees) REZEE2ZE) 1M 110 - 33 - il n
Xu Liang e 1nm 10/10 - - - n 2
Li Wel (President) TR (4%) 1M 1010 - 33 - il 112
Zhang Meng E3E 11 10/10 5 5 = N 112
Liang Hengyi 2R 33 4/4 - 1n - - - 7
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Liu Jingwei ARE 1/1 - 33 - - 0N 01
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang %1 1/1 - 33 - - ”n 212
Li Hao S 1 - - - - 0n 0/2
Zhao Xianming fechintc] 6/6 - - = 33 = 0/ 2
Li Yinhui FHE 5/5 - 22 - 1 0/ 01 3
Independent Non-executive BiFQTES
Directors
Wang Xin (Chairman of Audit T2
Committee) (BEZE5EF) 111 - 33 33 5/5 17 Wy
Choi Fan Keung Vic ZER 1/1 - 33 = 5/5 n b))
Deng Yougao BES 1nm - 33 313 - 1n 12
Zhang Quanling (Chairlady of RRE
Remuneration Committee) FHZEEEEE) 111 - 33 33 5/5 0 012
Zhuge Wenjing EBXF 5/6 - 0 - - - i 4
Qiao Yongyuan BkE 35 - 22 1 2 1n 1 5
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Notes:

1. Mr. Liang Hengyi stepped down as the Managing Director with
effect from 1 January 2021, and resigned as an Executive Director
and a member of each of the Executive Committee and the
Nomination Committee with effect from 28 March 2021.

2. Dr. Zhao Xianming was appointed as a Non-executive Director and
a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28 May 2021, and resigned as a Non-executive Director and
a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 31
December 2021.

3. Dr. Li Yinhui resigned as a Non-executive Director and a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
with effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 28 May 2021.

4. Ms.
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee with

Zhuge Wenjing was appointed as an Independent Non-

effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 28 May 2021.

5. Dr. Qiao Yongyuan resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee with
effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 28 May 2021.

Access to information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and
information by the management to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information
put before it for approval. The management provides and/or
reports to all Board members with monthly updates which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the management, each Director has the
right to separately and independently access to the Company’s
senior management to make further enquiries if necessary.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy and review the profiles of the candidates and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and nomination of Directors.

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the
Board shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy,
only until the next following general meeting of the Company
or, in the case of an addition to their number, until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company who shall
then be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. Every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company are set out on page 113 of this annual report.

All Executive Directors have entered into new service
agreements with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
for a term commencing from 1 January 2020 (except Mr. Li Wei
and Ms. Zhang Meng whose term of service commencing from
their appointments as Executive Directors from the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 May
2020) and continuing until terminated by either party by prior
written notice.

All Non-executive Directors have entered into new engagement
letters with the Company for an initial term commencing on
1 January 2020 (except Dr. Zhao Xianming and Ms. Zhuge
Wenjing whose term of engagement commencing from their
appointments as Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director respectively from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2021
(the “2021 AGM") and ending on 31 December 2020; with
such appointment being automatically renewed for successive
12-month periods (except Dr. Zhao Xianming who resigned as a
Non-executive Director with effect from 31 December 2021).
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On 15 February 2022, Mr. Li Hao, a Non-executive Director,
entered into a supplemental letter with the Company with
regards to his appointment as the Vice Chairman of the Board.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) effective on 1 January 2019 which sets
out the nomination procedures and criteria for the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment as Directors or for
recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings.

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, prior to a meeting of the
Nomination Committee called for considering candidates for
directorship, the Nomination Committee will invite nominations
of candidates from the Board members or put forward
candidates. The Nomination Committee will consider the
nominated candidates at such committee meeting according
to the criteria of: reputation for integrity; accomplishment and
experience; compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and board diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
skills,
service. A selected candidate will then be recommended by

professional experience, knowledge and length of
the Nomination Committee to the Board for consideration and
approval.

A shareholder of the Company may propose a person for
election as a Director in a general meeting pursuant to the
procedures set out in the Articles.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed five Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
represents more than one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive director who
has served the Board for more than 9 years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders. As at the date of this annual report,
none of the Independent Non-executive Directors have served
the Board for more than 9 years.

Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, Mr. Deng Yougao and Ms. Zhang
Quanling, who are Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company, will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. The Company will state in a circular which
will contain, among other things, the notice convening the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and the
reasons why the Nomination Committee and the Board consider
they are independent, including their character, integrity
and experience they possess to continue fulfilling the role of
an Independent Non-executive Director and their education
background, in-depth experience and practice which allow
them to provide valuable and relevant insights and contribute
to the diversity of the Board; and the recommendation to
shareholders to vote in favor of their re-election as Directors.
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Insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of
the Group.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction
of regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated
on the latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practice. Directors are
also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company Secretary facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors and the Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for the
Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company provided the Directors with online trainings and/
or presentations and discussions information and/or materials
by qualified professionals, regulatory authorities and/or
management team on regulatory updates and/or the Group's
business and operation developments.
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All Directors have provided to the Company their records of
training received during the financial year ended 31 December
2021, a summary of which is as follows:

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

RESERRARESR

Attending
presentations and/
Participating online or discussions on
trainings and/ Group's business
or webinars on and operation
regulatory updates  developments

SMEMEREN HELSEEEHR

Reading materials

and updates ZERENR EERRZ Notes
Name of Director S REREMEN g EE L BE®K e Hiat
Executive Directors HITES
Zhao Tianyang (PN v/ v/ v/
Xu Liang mE v v/ v/
Li Wei & v v v
Zhang Meng R v v v
Liang Hengyi RE = = v 1
Non-executive Directors FERITESR
Liu Jingwei ZERE v 4 v
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang GIE=LE v v/ v/
Li Hao = v v/ v/
Zhao Xianming ikt v/ v/ v/ 2
Li Yinhui FH 18 = = v 3
Independent Non-executive Directors MBI IERITEE
Wang Xin & v v/ v/
Choi Fan Keung Vic 2ER v v v
Deng Yougao HES v v v
Zhang Quanling RRE v v 4
Zhuge Wenjing P& v v v 4
Qiao Yongyuan BKiE - - v/ 3
Notes: gz
1. Mr. Liang Hengyi resigned as a Director in March 2021. 1. REELEENR2021E38BTESE—H o
2. Dr. Zhao Xianming was appointed as a Director in May 2021 and 2. HABEEEIR2021ESBRESEABEE AN
resigned as a Director in December 2021. 202112 REEE —Hie
3. Each of Dr. Li Yinhui and Dr. Qiao Yongyuan resigned as a Director 3. THEBEELEREKEBTEBNR2021FE58 7
in May 2021. TEE—H-
4. Ms. Zhuge Wenjing was appointed as a Director in May 2021. 4. HEXBL IR 2021FBESTAES-
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CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT

The roles of Chairman and President are separate and exercised
by different individuals to reinforce their independence and
accountability. Currently, Mr. Zhao Tianyang is the Chairman
and Mr. Li Wei serves as the President. The Chairman provides
leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities. The President has
overall chief executive responsibility for the Group’s business
development and day-to-day management generally, lead
the management team to implement formulated strategies,
achieve annual target tasks, and promote rapid and healthy
development of business with “precise investment + lean
operation”, especially in the business development, parking
fund establishment and operation, cost optimization and
technology upgrade in the Company's parking business sector.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
President is clearly established and set out in writing.

The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other
things:

o taking primary responsibility for strategies formulation
and capital operation and approving the annual plan,
budget and performance management of the Group;

o taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are
established;

o ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on

issues arising at Board meetings, and ensuring that

the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information which must be accurate, clear, complete and

reliable;

o encouraging all Directors to make full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and taking the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company;
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o encouraging Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect the
Board’s consensus;

o ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communications with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole;
and

o promoting a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

On 15 February 2022, Mr. Li Hao, a Non-executive Director,
was appointed as Vice Chairman to assist the Chairman of the
Board to handle key issues such as formulation of strategies
and major business opportunities of the Company. During the
financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Independent Non-
executive Directors have met the Chairman of the Board at least
once in the absence of the Executive Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities. All committees have
their own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the
committees will be reported to the Board at the next regular
Board meeting.

Executive Committee

An Executive Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 and revised on 1 April 2012 which deal
clearly with its authorities and duties.
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The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved
for the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the
Group and has been assigned with the responsibilities to
perform the corporate governance duties as follows:

o to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o to review and monitor the Company's policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s
employees and Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

o to conform to any requirement, direction and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhao Tianyang, Mr. Xu Liang, Mr. Li Wei and Ms.
Zhang Meng.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, 10 physical
meetings of the Executive Committee were held. Amongst
those meetings, one meeting was held for the purpose of
performing the corporate governance duties. The attendance
of each member at these meetings is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed

“"BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.
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The major work in relation to the corporate governance of
the Group performed by the Executive Committee during the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 included, amongst
other things, reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established in December
1998 with specific written terms of reference adopted on
1 January 2009 and revised on 1 April 2012, 21 December
2015 and 1 January 2019 respectively, which deal clearly
with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are posted on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

o overseeing the relationship with and engagement of the
Company’s auditor;

o reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of
the Group;
o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies

and practices;

o reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.
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The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference and the authority to
obtain external legal or other independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary. It is given access to and assistance from
the employees and reasonable resources to perform its duties

properly.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Wang Xin, an
Independent Non-executive Director, and the members of the
Audit Committee include Mr. Liu Jingwei and Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi
Hang, who are Non-executive Directors and Mr. Choi Fan Keung
Vic, Mr. Deng Yougao, Ms. Zhang Quanling and Ms. Zhuge
Wenjing, who are Independent Non-executive Directors. None
of the members of the Audit Committee are former partners of
the auditor of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, 3
physical meetings of the Audit Committee were held and
the attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed
“"BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 included, amongst
other things, the following:

o reviewed on the Company’s auditor’s final audit strategy
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020;

o reviewed the reports on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 prepared by an

independent advisory firm;

o reviewed and considered the audit plan and the
remuneration of the auditor of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020;
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o reviewed the final results of the Group and the audit
report of the auditor of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 and recommended the
reappointment of the auditor of the Company; and

o reviewed the interim results of the Group and the review
report of the auditor of the Company for the 6 months
ended 30 June 2021.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
had no disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established
in February 2005 with specific written terms of reference
adopted on 17 February 2005 and revised on 1 April 2012,
28 August 2013 and 12 July 2018 respectively, which deal
clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board;

o making recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors;
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o determining suitably qualified individual(s) to become
deputy general manager(s) of the Company; and

o reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and
reviewing the progress on achieving the objectives.

The Nomination Committee follows the nomination procedures
and criteria set out in the Nomination Policy, as disclosed
above, in selecting and recommending candidates for

directorship to the Board for consideration.

The appointments of Dr. Zhao Xianming as Non-executive
Director and Ms. Zhuge Wenjing as Independent Non-executive
Director during the financial year ended 31 December 2021
have undergone the abovementioned nomination procedures
set out in the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain external independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Zhao
Tianyang who is also the Chairman of the Board. Members
of the Nomination Committee include Mr. Li Wei who is an
Executive Director, and Dr. Wang Xin, Mr. Deng Yougao and
Ms. Zhang Quanling, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, 3 physical
meetings of the Nomination Committee were held and the
attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed

“"BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.
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The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 included,
amongst other things, the following:

considered and made recommendations to the Board
on the appointments of a Non-executive Director and
an Independent Non-executive Director at the annual
general meeting and appointments of committees
members;

assessed the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

considered and made recommendations to the Board
on the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting;

considered and made recommendation to the Board
on the suitability of a Director to continue to serve the
Board;

reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the management structure of the Company
and made recommendations on proposed changes of
Directors, committees members and management, if any,
to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in

February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 and revised on 1 April 2012 which deal
clearly with its authorities and duties. The terms of reference

of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites of

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company

respectively.

96

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

BELEEENEHE2021F 128318 LB BAE
ERBTHWEERS (HhaE uT:

. ERAEMPERRBFERG LEZEIFHR
TEFRBUFRTEEFARZES
EENERNEFTRHER

. LB IFRITES B |

. ERAEMNCRRBFERG LEE
MEFTROES

B=%

. ERIEMNEFEUBEBRFTESTETHNES
MRAEFERHER

U MANEEEHNRE - RERMERER
NEWNEEEBEE IMRAEEE L

MEFEREES-

HINEET

EEEETMHMZEEN2005F28 11
ZEEH2005F2 8170 FMIFR2012F48
TEEHBIEEmIENEESE BER
BEBERET -FTNEEENBELERS
MNEBNBEERGREEMBRABDREA
L o



The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

o making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group;

o reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Company’s
goals and objectives;

o determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

o reviewing and approving compensation payable to
Executive Directors and senior management and
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman of
the Board and/or the President of the Company about their
remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors. It has
explicit authority to seek any necessary information from the
employees within its scope of duties and the authority to obtain
external independent professional advice, at the Company's
expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the
Directors are based on market alignment and reward for
performance. The Company reviews the remuneration package
annually taking into consideration of the market practice,
competitive market position and individual performance.
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The chairlady of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Zhang
Quanling,
members of the Remuneration Committee include Dr. Wang

an Independent Non-executive Director, and
Xin and Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic who are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, 5 physical
meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held and
the attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under subsection “Attendance records” of the section headed

“"BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 included,
amongst other things, the following:

. determined, reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the terms of the engagement letters and
directors’ fees of the proposed Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Director;

o considered, reviewed and approved the performance

bonus distribution plan, including the incentive

mechanism and restraint mechanism, for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 for all staffs of the

Group;

. considered, reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the proposed adoption of the share incentive
plan;

° considered, reviewed and made recommendations to the

Board on the initial grant of the share incentive plan;
and
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o considered, reviewed and approved the remuneration
of the Executive Directors and made recommendations
to the Board on the directors’ fees of the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that the Board policy
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or
the President on corporate governance and the implementation
of the CG Code. The Company Secretary is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs.

All Directors also have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are followed. The
selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary
are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
financial year ended 31 December 2021.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, while the Board is responsible for overseeing
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. A
review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system has been conducted annually by the Board to
cover all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:
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Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o Identification: ldentify type of significant risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks

and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2021, no
significant weakness was identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment. A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out.
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o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.

Internal Auditor

The Group outsources its internal audit work to a globally
renowned professional internal audit services provider. Internal
audit function carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. The internal
audit function is independent of the Group's daily operation
and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal
control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An internal audit plan has been reviewed by the Board.
According to the established plan, review of the risk
management and internal control systems is conducted
annually and the results are reviewed by the Audit Committee
and reported to the Board.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually
according to the requirements of the CG Code.
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The Board, through its review and the review made by the
internal audit function, the management and Audit Committee,
concluded that the risk management and internal control
systems were effective and adequate. Such systems, however,
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications
and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure
policy (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) on
21 December 2015 which sets out the procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information with a view
to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of
inside information and ensuring shareholders and the public are
provided with full, accurate and timely information about the
activities and the financial condition of the Group. The Inside

Information Disclosure Policy covers the following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and
escalating potential inside information to the Board;

o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving
the confidentiality of inside information, escalating
upwards any such potential information and cascading
down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff;
and

o identifying who the Company's authorised spokespersons

are and their responsibilities for communications with
stakeholders of the Company.
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In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant
staff regarding the implementation of the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard
the Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the
website of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
(the “"Model Code™)

as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a code of

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”

conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. A reminder
is served by the Company to each Director twice annually of the
black-out period that Directors cannot deal in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company.

Directors are required to notify the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee and to receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the chairlady
of the Remuneration Committee herself, she must notify the
President and receive a dated written acknowledgement before
any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the
remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

ZEEMEN =
REZE2021F 1283 1HEHBEERNE
S EMFRATD MBI ESSHANE
TR = & AT ¢

HK$'000
Services rendered Frie it AR5 BT T
Audit services EETIRTS 3,503
Non-audit services: JEETRTS -
Interim review AR B 350
Tax services MER 262
Others Hih 816
4,931

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern
basis and in presenting the annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the
Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 150 to 158 of this annual report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. Such
policy aims at ensuring the shareholders of the Company are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to
enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow shareholders to engage actively with the
Company.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders,
the Company provides extensive information in its annual
and interim reports and announcements. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
www.shouchengholdings.com.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. The external auditor
is also available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that
is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of
the independent Board committee will also make an effort to
attend to address shareholders’ queries.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, 3 general
meetings were held. One of the general meetings was the 2021
AGM and the others were the general meetings held on 28
May 2021 and 3 November 2021 for approving the followings:

1. the amended and restated sale and purchase agreement
dated 15 January 2021 entered into between King
Rich Group Limited (“King Rich”) and Shoujing Yifei
Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”), as supplemented by
a supplemental agreement dated 18 February 2021 and
the proposed transfer of the entire issued share capital
of Excel Bond Investments Limited held by the Vendor
to King Rich and other transactions contemplated
thereunder; and

2. the proposed adoption of a share incentive plan of the
Company (the “Share Incentive Plan”) under which
share options will be granted to the selected employees
to purchase shares of the Company pursuant to the
Share Incentive Plan.

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
attended the 2021 AGM. Details of the attendance of each
Director at the general meetings of the Company held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
table above under subsection “Attendance records” of the
section headed “"BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, all
notices of general meetings despatched by the Company to its
shareholders for meetings held were sent for annual general
meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and
at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.
Separate resolutions were proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the re-election
of individual retiring Directors, and all resolutions put to the
vote of a general meeting were taken by way of a poll. At the
general meetings, the chairman of the meetings explained the
procedures for conducting a poll and answered questions from
shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the poll
were published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote
at general meetings can request the Directors to call a general
meeting pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at
the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Such request must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a relevant right to vote at a general
meeting can request the Company to circulate to the
shareholders of the Company a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting
pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The expenses shall be borne
by the shareholder(s) making the request unless the meeting
concerned is an annual general meeting and the statement is
received by the Company in time for sending with the notice
of the meeting. The request must identify the statement to be
circulated, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary at
least 7 days before the meeting to which it relates.
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Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at an
annual general meeting can request the Company to give to
the shareholders of the Company notice of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, and must
be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the
attention of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate,
or if later, the time at which notice of the meeting is given.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
office or by email to our Company. In addition, shareholders
can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings
and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set
out on page 3 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is infrastructure asset
management. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are set out in notes 17 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 159 to
322 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development
to be an objective. Under the dividend policy adopted by the
Company, dividends may be recommended, declared and paid
to shareholders from time to time. In summary, the declaration
of dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board, taking into
consideration of, among others, the following factors:

o financial results;

° shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;

° capital requirements;

. taxation considerations;

o contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction, if any;
and

o any other factors that the Board may deem relevant.
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Where a dividend is being declared in any particular financial
year, the total amount of payment shall not exceed 50% of the
accumulated profits available for distribution during such given
financial year.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend in
the total amount of HK$400 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: HK$400 million), payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 15 July
2022. Based on 7,285,117,194 ordinary shares of the Company
in issue, such a final dividend would amount to HK5.49 cents
per ordinary share (2020: HK5.49 cents per ordinary share).

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final
dividend at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held
on Tuesday, 24 May 2022 (the “AGM"), the final dividend is
expected to be paid on Wednesday, 3 August 2022. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company's share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 July 2022 for
registration.

On 15 February 2022, the Company announced the declaration
of a special dividend in the aggregate amount of HK$200
million, comprising the first tranche of the special dividend
in the amount of HK$100 million and second tranche of the
special dividend in the amount of HK$100 million (the “Special
Dividend”). The first tranche of the Special Dividend was paid
on 14 March 2022 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 3 March 2022.
The second tranche of the Special Dividend is payable on 31
October 2022 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 20 October 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 19 May 2022 to Tuesday, 24 May 2022 (both days
inclusive) to determine the shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM. During such period, no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 18 May 2022 for registration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 35 and pages 45 to 76 of this annual report
respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 323 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued an aggregate of
210,000,000 new ordinary shares, details of which are set out
in the section headed “SHARES ISSUED” below.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
(2020: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Zhao Tianyang

Xu Liang

Li Wei

Zhang Meng

Liang Hengyi (resigned with effect from 28 March 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Li Hao

Liu Jingwei

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Li Yinhui (resigned with effect from 28 May 2021)

Zhao Xianming (appointed with effect from 28 May 2021 and
resigned with effect from 31 December
20217)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wang Xin

Choi Fan Keung Vic

Deng Yougao

Zhang Quanling

Zhuge Wenjing (appointed with effect from 28 May 2021)
Qiao Yongyuan (resigned with effect from 28 May 2021)
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In accordance with article 102(A) of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”), Mr. Xu Liang, Mr. Choi Fan
Keung Vic, Mr. Deng Yougao and Ms. Zhang Quanling will
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company include Zhao Tianyang*,
Li Wei, Liang Hengyi, Zhang Meng, Bai Jie, Chen Hongyuan,
Chen Mingxin, Chen Wenyue, Chan Weng Mui, Chen Zhichao,
Di Jiaping, Dong Ying, Fu Qiang, Gao Ying, Jia Tingting, Li Na,
Li Yanfeng, Liang Lixia, Lian Feng, Lin Yan, Liu Hongxiu, Liu
Hongyi, Liu Manjia, Liu Quanfeng, Liu Shuyi, Liu Xunxu*, Lu
Ping, Lu Ting, Ma Wenliang, Meng Ziyang, Ni Beibei, ONG KAH
KOK, Peng Cheng, Ren Wei, Shen Zhuolin, Song Chunsheng,
Song Changhai, Su Guifeng*, Tan Long, Tian Xiangjun,
Wang Hongpeng*, Wang Junfa, Wang Sheng, Wu lJing*, Xia
Xiaohong, Xie Peng*, Xue Jiangzhou, Yang Di, Yang Dongmei,
Yang Shiying, Ye Qian, Zhang Baogiang, Zhang Bei, Zhang
Haitao, Zhang Hui, Zhang Jianxun, Zhang Jun, Zhang Qi, Zhang
Zhengzhong, Zhao Xiaotong, Zhao Yuntao, Zhao Yuzhen,
Zheng Yuegiang and Zhu Yu.

* Ceased to be directors of relevant subsidiaries of the Company as at
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles, every Director or other officer of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were
as follows:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company
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BB RN RBRRKRGZEE

% of the total number of
shares of the Company in
issue as at 31.12.2021

(Note 1)
HEAT
Capacity in which Number of 72021%12A31H
Name of Director interests were held shares held BRITRMEHZEN
BEEfY RFEEZZ &) RERMHE (Htat1)
Zhao Tianyang Beneficial owner 1,100,000 0.0151
PN BmEAA
Xu Liang Beneficial owner 200,000 0.0027
®RE BHEEBA
Li Wei Beneficial owner 1,020,000 0.0140
=R BmEAA
Zhang Meng Beneficial owner 364,000 0.0050
iR BHEEBA
Liu Jingwei Beneficial owner 3,165,200 0.0434
2ER BmEAA
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 60,000 0.0008
RELB Em (HE2)
Wang Xin Beneficial owner 40,000 0.0005
TE BmEAA
Interest of spouse 200,000 0.0027
[y
Notes: Bzt -
1. As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued shares of the 1. B E2021F12531H » KA G EZ1TR 7488
Company was 7,291,017,194 ordinary shares. #7,291,017,19458 Z 78 g ©
2. These shares were held by Sunshine Express International Consulting 2. BERY B EELLET100%FH 0BG 51 EE

Company Limited, which was 100% controlled by Mr. Liu Jingwei.

REFHBRAEGFE °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had registered any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” herein and
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its
parent company or any subsidiary of its parent company a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that are significant
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of
its parent company was a party and in which a Director or his/
her connected entities had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS'’
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules,

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

the following
Directors have declared interests in the following businesses
(other than those businesses where the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the
Company and/or any member of the Group) which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:
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Description of businesses

Name of entity
whose businesses are
considered to compete

of the entity which are
considered to compete
or likely to compete

or likely to compete with the businesses Nature of

with the businesses of the Group interest of

of the Group EBWRE the Director

%i‘%%&?ﬁ%ﬁiztﬁl HAEEETR in the entity
Name of Director FHBERF NG 1 PX 3% 35 BRI BEAB AR ESNEERS
Exps BRHRFZER Z%#ﬁ MEZBERZEH ZRHEZMEE

Zhao Tianyang

Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.

Fund management

Vice Chairman

PN (“Shougang Fund”)* ExEE and General
ITRERESERAE Manager
(rEeflEx)" BIEERR
MR RIE
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang Urban Parking Limited* Car park management Director
EEYE] EREEZEERRAR EEEEE s
g Such businesses may be carried out through the subsidiaries or — * EREREBOEC R BEERIE AR

associates of the entity concerned or by way of other forms of
investments.

The Board is independent from the boards of the above-
mentioned entities and is accountable to the Company's
shareholders. Coupled with the diligence of its Independent
Non-executive Directors whose views carry significant weight
in the Board's decisions, the Group is capable of carrying on
its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
businesses of these entities.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2021, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
or deemed to have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of
the Company

HKE

FTORw)

RiFESFRAEHRATERRER K

MESRAQNBRSITHRASMA 122021
F128318 FAUALT BREEZHEARARS
THABIN REARABRMDNERER DT ES
FWRAEE BEEARBREBEESRAE
BB EIERRAEBEE2ELMILHEZ

BmEKE -

RAEAT KRG HRRGZEFE

% of the
total number of
shares of the

Company in
issue as at
31.12.2021
EERAE
Capacity in which Number of shares/  #2021&E12H31H
Name of shareholder interests were held underlying shares ERTROEY Notes
RERLE RERZZER fefntHRARGEE ZER Mz
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Group”) Interests of controlled 2,545,447,437 34.9121 1,5
ENERBRAR (HHER) corporations
TEEEZ#E
ORIX Corporation Interests of controlled 1,044,081,679 14.3201 2,5
B TRBAERAR corporations
REEEZ#E
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited Interests of controlled 835,485,105 11.4591 35
corporations
REEEZET
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited Interests of controlled 835,485,105 11.4591 35
corporations
TEEEZ#E
Rocket Parade Limited Beneficial owner 535,485,105 7.3444 3,5
BaEAA
HOPU Investments Co. Il Ltd Interests of controlled 507,072,891 6.9548 4,5
corporations
REEEZ#E
HOPU USD Master Fund Ill, L.P. Interests of controlled 507,072,891 6.9548 4,5

corporations

REZEZER
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Notes:

Shougang Group is interested in all the shares held by its indirect
subsidiaries, namely, China Gate Investments Limited (holding
1,627,085,588 shares), Lyre Terrace Management Limited (holding
46,000 shares) and Jingxi Holdings Limited (holding 918,315,849
shares).

ORIX Corporation is interested in all the 300,748,346 shares and
743,333,333 shares held by its direct wholly-owned subsidiary ORIX
Asia Capital Limited and indirect wholly-owned subsidiary Mountain
Tai Peak | Investment Limited, respectively.

Rocket Parade Limited is wholly-owned by NWS FM Limited which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS FM Holdings Limited. FTLife
Insurance Company Limited is wholly-owned by Earning Star Limited
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Success Idea Global Limited.
Both NWS FM Holdings Limited and Success Idea Global Limited
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of NWS Service Management Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) ("NWS Service”), which
was accordingly deemed to be interested in 535,485,105 shares
held by Rocket Parade Limited and 300,000,000 shares held by
FTLife Insurance Company Limited. NWS Service is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWS Service Management Limited (incorporated in the
Cayman Islands), which is wholly-owned by NWS Holdings Limited
which is held as to 60.86% by New World Development Company
Limited, which in turn is held as to 45.20% by Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited (“Chow Tai Fook Enterprises”). Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises is wholly-owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited,
which is held as to 81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited,
which in turn is held as to 48.98% and 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited and by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1)
Limited respectively.

mat -

2.
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4. HOPU Investments Co. lll Ltd ("HOPU Investments”) is interested
in 507,072,891 shares held by its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Soteria Financial Investment Company Limited (“Soteria Financial
Investment”). Soteria Financial Investment is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Soteria Financial Holding Company Limited, which in
turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU USD Master Fund Ili, L.P,
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU Investments.

5. As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 7,291,017,194 ordinary shares.

December 2021, the
Company had not been notified of any person (other than

Save as disclosed above, as at 31

a Director or chief executive of the Company), who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” below, at no time during the year had
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any of
its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or
any contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of their subsidiaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there
is a sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual
report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 May 2012, the shareholders of the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme"”), which became
effective on 29 May 2012.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest
(the “Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective for the period of ten years commencing on 25
May 2012, being the date on which the 2012 Scheme was
conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the Company, and
ending on 25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer full-time or part-time employees, executives, officers or
directors (including executive and non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of the Invested
Entities, and any advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers,
customers and distributors, who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries and/or any of the Invested Entities,
share options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
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No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. The maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue upon exercise of all share options
which may be granted under the 2012 Scheme is 895,330,622
(being 179,066,124 shares after the share consolidation
becoming effective on 30 March 2020), representing
approximately 2.46% of the issued shares of the Company as
at the date of this annual report. The total number of shares
of the Company issued and which may fall to be issued upon
the exercise of share options to be granted under the 2012
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer
shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue
of a circular by the Company and shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, which
would result in the shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of the offer of such grant (a) representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the date of the grant; and (b) having an aggregate value of
in excess of HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of each grant), such further
grant of options shall be subject to the issue of a circular by
the Company and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting
on a poll at which the grantee, his/her associates and all core
connected persons of the Company shall abstain from voting in
favour of the resolution concerning the grant of such options,
and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time. A connected person of the Company
will be permitted to vote against the grant only if his intention
to do so has been stated in the circular. Any grant of share
options to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates, is required
to be approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors
(excluding the Independent Non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the options).
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The period during which a share option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save
that no share option may be exercised more than ten years
after it has been granted under the 2012 Scheme. There is no
requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered
to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time
of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of share
options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of offer of share options. Each of the grantees is
required to pay HK$1.00 as a consideration for his acceptance
of the grant of share options in accordance with the 2012
Scheme. The offer of share options must be accepted within 30
days from the date of the offer.

Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at general
meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2021, there
was no share option outstanding under the 2012 Scheme.

The Board does not propose to adopt a new share option
scheme upon the expiry of the 2012 Scheme on 25 May 2022.
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SHARES ISSUED

Issued 210,000,000 ordinary shares on 3 February
2021

On 27 January 2021, the Company entered into (i) a placing
agreement (the "“Placing Agreement”) with Jingxi Holdings
Limited (“Jingxi Holdings”, a substantial shareholder of
the Company) as placing shareholder and the placing agents
(Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited and BOCI Asia
Limited) for the placing of 210,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company beneficially owned by Jingxi Holdings (the “Placing
Share(s)”) by the placing agents to not less than six placees (all
of whom/which are independent professional, institutional and/
or other individual investors) at a placing price of HK$2.03 per
Placing Share (the “Placing Price”) (the “Placing”); and (ii) a
subscription letter with Jingxi Holdings for the subscription of a
maximum of 210,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Jingxi Holdings Subscription Shares”, being equivalent to
the number of Placing Shares sold by Jingxi Holdings pursuant
to the Placing but less the number of defaulted Placing
Shares if any) at a subscription price which is equivalent to
the Placing Price but less the commission, fees and expenses
incurred by Jingxi Holdings in connection with the Placing
(being equivalent to a net price of approximately HK$2.00
per Jingxi Holdings Subscription Share) (“Subscription”).
The reasons for the Placing and Subscriptions are to enable
the Group to promote the rapid development of its principal
businesses, to continuously increase its market shares and to
provide better investment returns to the shareholders of the
Company. Completion of the Placing and the Subscription took
place on 29 January 2021 and 3 February 2021 respectively.
210,000,000 Jingxi Holdings Subscription Shares were allotted
and issued on 3 February 2021 to Jingxi Holdings under the
general mandate granted by the shareholders of the Company
to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 22 May 2020.

The Placing Price of HK$2.03 per Placing Share represented
a discount of approximately 9.78% over the closing price of
HK$2.25 per ordinary share of the Company as at the date of
entering into the Placing Agreement.
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Details of the total funds raised from the issue of Jingxi
Holdings Subscription Shares and the use of proceeds are set
out under the section headed "USE OF PROCEEDS” in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME"” and "SHARES ISSUED"” above, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
(whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance, details
of which are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the percentage of
revenue from rendering of services of the Group attributable
to the largest customer and the five largest customers in
aggregate are approximately 22% and 34% respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the percentage of
purchases of the Group attributable to the five largest suppliers
in aggregate is less than 30%.
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Shougang Group, being the substantial shareholder of the
Company, directly and/or indirectly held the following interests
in these major customers as at 31 December 2021:

(1) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 48% interest in Beijing Shouxin Jinyuan
Management Consulting Centre (Limited Partnership) (3t
RENETEESZHAPL (BRES));

(2) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 99% interest in Beijing Shougang Industry
Transformation Fund Co., Ltd. GEREHEXELE S
BRRAED,;

(3) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 98% interest in Beijing Shoujing Fengtai
Management Consulting Centre (Limited Partnership) (36
REREHEEFZADPL (BREX)),

(4) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 56% interest in Jilin Shougang Industry
Revitalization Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&5

MBERNEXREESSEEE (AREGE)), and

(5) Shougang Group and/or through its subsidiary(ies), held
approximately 49% interest in Beijing Shoushi Ming Zhi
Jin Xin Economic Consulting Firm (Limited Partnership)

EREMEEEERALATLE (BREH)).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in these major customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions were recorded during the year and up
to the date of this annual report:
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Connected Transactions

(a)

(i) King Rich Sale and Purchase Agreement dated 15
January 2021, (iij) Amended and Restated Sale and
Purchase Agreement dated 18 February 2021, and

(iiij) A Second Supplemental Agreement dated 29
July 2021

(i)

On 15 January 2021, Shoujing Yifei Holdings
Limited (“Shoujing Yifei"),
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a

a wholly-owned

sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) with King Rich Group
Limited (“King Rich”), pursuant to which
Shoujing Yifei has conditionally agreed to sell,
and King Rich has conditionally agreed to
purchase, (i) one ordinary share in the issued
share capital of Excel Bond Investments Limited
(“Excel Bond"”); (ii) one ordinary share in
the issued share capital of Fine Power Group
Limited (“Fine Power”); and (iii) one ordinary
share in the issued share capital of Fair Gain
Investments Limited (“Fair Gain”) (Excel
Bond, Fine Power and Fair Gain, collectively
the “Subject Companies”, are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Shoujing Yifei) (the entire issued
share capital of each of the Subject Companies,
the “Sale Shares”), at a consideration
of HK$3,513,509,976 (the
Restructuring”),

“Proposed
which reflects an indirect
transfer of 1,463,962,490 shares, representing
an aggregate of approximately 28.98% of all
issued shares of Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (“Shougang Resources”) at
a consideration of HK$2.40 per Shougang
Resources share.

The Proposed Restructuring can facilitate the
Group in utilizing its enhanced resources to
optimize its current principal business structure.

MERXS
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(i)

The completion of the Proposed Restructuring
(the "Completion”) is subject to and conditional
upon the fulfillment (or waiver thereof, if
applicable) of certain conditions precedent (the
“Conditions”) as defined in the announcement
of the Company dated 15 January 2021 (the
“Announcement”).

On 18 February 2021, Shoujing Yifei entered
into a supplemental agreement to amend and
restate the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the
“Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with King Rich, whereby the key
amendments in the Amended and Restated
Sale and Purchase Agreement including (i) the
Sale Shares are amended to mean (instead of
the entire issued share capital of each of the
Subject Companies) one ordinary share in the
issued share capital of Excel Bond (the “Revised
Sale Share”), representing the entire issued
share capital of Excel Bond. As at Completion,
Excel Bond will indirectly hold 600,000,000
Shougang Resources shares, representing
approximately 11.88% of all issued shares of
Shougang Resources; (ii) the consideration for
the Revised Sale Share is HK$1,440,000,000,
which reflects an indirect transfer of 600,000,000
shares at a consideration of HK$2.40 per share
of Shougang Resources, being the same price
per Shougang Resources share as disclosed in
the Announcement; and Conditions (iii) and (iv)
as set out in the section headed “Conditions”
in the Announcement are removed and a new
Condition, being the transfer of 50,954,000
Shougang Resources shares (representing
approximately 1.01% of all issued shares of
Shougang Resources) from Ultimate Capital
Limited (“Ultimate Capital”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Excel Bond) to Fair Gain (with each
of Ultimate Capital and Fair Gain being a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shoujing Yifei) having been
completed and which is non-waivable, is added.
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(iii)

Upon completion of the disposal of the Revised
Sale Share pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Amended and Restated Sale and
Purchase Agreement (the “Revised Proposed
Restructuring”), Excel Bond will cease to
be a subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly,
the Company’s indirect interest in Shougang
Resources will be decreased from approximately
28.98% to approximately 17.1% as a result
of the Revised Proposed Restructuring. The
Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase
Agreement, the Revised Proposed Restructuring
and other transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved, confirmed and ratified by the
independent shareholders at a general meeting of
the Company held on 28 May 2021.

On 29 July 2021, Shoujing Yifei and King Rich
entered into a second supplemental agreement
(the “Second Supplemental Agreement”) to
amend the long stop date of the Amended and
Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement from 31
July 2021 to 31 January 2022 (or such other
date as the parties may agree in writing) as
more time is required for the fulfilment of the
unfulfilled Conditions, in particular, approximately
6 months in respect of Condition (ii) (i.e. the
filing, registration or approval, as applicable, with
or by the State-Owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council
of PRC, or its local authorities, and such other
applicable PRC governmental approvals in respect
of, inter alia, the Revised Proposed Restructuring).
After the fulfilment of the unfulfilled Conditions,
the Completion took place on 27 January 2022.
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Given that King Rich is indirectly wholly-owned by
Shougang Group, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, King Rich is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date of
the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the entering into of
the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Amended and
Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Second
Supplemental Agreement constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the transactions contemplated thereunder and
the Completion were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 15 January 2021, 18 February 2021,
28 May 2021, 29 July 2021 and 27 January 2022 and
the circular of the Company dated 30 April 2021.
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(b)

Project Operation and Maintenance Entrustment
Contract dated 27 May 2021

On 27 May 2021, Beijing Shouzhong Parking
Management Co., Ltd. bR EHREFEEEEERAT,
“Shouzhong Parking”), a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a contract (the “Project Operation and
Maintenance Entrustment Contract”) with Beijing
Shougang Automation Information Technology Co., Ltd.
(EREHEBEHELERKWARAE, "Shougang
Automation IT”, which is held as to 49% by Shougang
Group and the remaining 51% by third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons
of the Company) under the public tender for a project
of provision of operation and maintenance services
("Operation and Maintenance Services”) at the
four floors of the parking building in Beijing Daxing
International Airport conducted by a tendering agent
named Sinochem Business Co., Ltd. (F{LEFHEAERAT)
(the “Project Tender”), pursuant to which Shouzhong
Parking agreed to entrust the provision of Operation
and Maintenance Services to Shougang Automation IT
at the bid-winning price of RMB2,838,736.63 for a term
of 12 months commencing from 1 June 2021 to 31 May
2022. The entering into of the Project Operation and
Maintenance Entrustment Contract will strengthen the
Group’s lean operation in the parking building of Beijing
Daxing International Airport through the technological
and comprehensive operation and maintenance services
provided by Shougang Automation IT, so as to improve
the Company’s operation management efficiency and
customer experience.

Given that Shougang Group is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, Shougang Automation IT is an
associated corporation of Shougang Group and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules as at the date of the Project Operation and
Maintenance Entrustment Contract, the entering into
of the Project Operation and Maintenance Entrustment
Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

b)
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Details of the Project Operation and Maintenance
Entrustment Contract and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 27 May 2021.

Shouxin Partnership Agreement dated 17 December
2021

On 17 December 2021, Beijing Shouyuan Xinneng
Ltd. bR & TTH

“Shouyuan Xinneng”), a

Investment Management Co.,
EREBEERRLAA,
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the
general partner and executive partner, and Beijing
Shouyuan Investment Co., Ltd. GtRERKREAR
RAE,
owned subsidiary of the Company, as a limited partner,

“Shouyuan Investment”), also a wholly-
entered into a partnership agreement (“Shouxin
Partnership Agreement”) with Shougang Fund,
National Manufacturing Transformation and Upgrade
Fund Co., Ltd. (BIRHEXHAEARESRKRHBERAT,
“National Manufacturing Transformation Fund”),
Tianjin Chuangji Industry Development Company Limited
(RZRIEEXERBBMRAF, "Tianjin Chuangji”),
Beijing Shougang Co., Ltd Gt EMRMD B R L E,
“Shougang Co. Ltd.”) and Beijing Shouxin Wantai
Management Consulting Center (L.P.) JEREH&E
FEEZHT L (ARAEE), Shouxin Wantai”),
each as a limited partner, for the establishment of a
limited partnership with proposed name of Beijing
Shouxin Jin'an Equity Investment Partnership (L.P.)
(EREMEZREREAREE (FRE%)) (the
“Shouxin Partnership”) to engage in investments and
investment-related activities for a term of seven years,
which may be extended by no more than one year upon
obtaining unanimous consent of all partners.
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The total capital commitment of the Shouxin
Partnership is RMB1,616,000,000, of which the
capital commitment of Shouyuan Xinneng, Shougang
Fund, National Manufacturing Transformation Fund,
Shouyuan Investment, Tianjin Chuangji, Shougang
Co. Ltd and Shouxin Wantai shall be RMB16,160,000,
RMB500,000,000, RMB400,000,000, RMB197,340,000,
RMB300,000,000, RMB200,000,000 and RMB2,500,000
representing approximately 1%, 30.94%, 24.75%,
12.21%, 18.56%, 12.38% and 0.15% interest in the
Shouxin Partnership respectively.

The establishment of the Shouxin Partnership is
beneficial for the Group’s introduction of each partner’s
strategic resources. This can better open-up and diversify
the services of the parking business, and the synergistic
development across two principal businesses of the
Group.

Given that each of Shougang Group and Shougang
Fund is a substantial shareholder of the Company and
a connected person of the Company, Shougang Co.
Ltd. is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Group and hence an associate of Shougang Group and
a connected person of the Company, Tianjin Chuangji
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
hence a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules as at the date of the Shouxin Partnership
Agreement, the entering into of the Shouxin Partnership
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the Shouxin Partnership Agreement and
transactions contemplated thereunder were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 17 December
2021.
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Lvhe Partnership Agreement dated 31 December
2021

On 31 December 2021, Beijing Heshou Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (IR EGESKEEEERAT,
"Beijing Heshou”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as the general partner and executive
partner, entered into a partnership agreement (“Lvhe
Partnership Agreement”) with Shougang Fund and
China Life Investment Management Company Limited
(BEREFRMREEEIEABRAE, "China Life
Investment”), each as a limited partner, for the
establishment of a limited partnership with proposed
name of Beijing Lvhe Equity Investment Partnership
(limited partnership) (IR ERELRESH b=
(BR &%) (the “"Lvhe Partnership”) to engage in
investment management services for an initial term
of eight years which may be extended by one year
upon obtaining unanimous consent of the executive
partner and the manager of Lvhe Partnership and
can be further extended for such period approved
at the partners’ meeting upon the unanimous
proposal of the executive partner and manager.
The total capital commitment of Lvhe Partnership is
RMB4,500,000,000, of which the capital commitment
of Beijing Heshou, China Life Investment and Shougang
Fund shall be RMB45,000,000, RMB3,000,000,000
and RMB1,455,000,000, representing approximately
1%, 66.67% and 32.33% interest in Lvhe Partnership
respectively.

Through the establishment of Lvhe Partnership, the
Company will gain all-round experience in asset
operation and fund management.

Given that Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder
of the Company and therefore is a connected person
of the Company as at the date of the Lvhe Partnership
Agreement, the entering into of the Lvhe Partnership
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the Lvhe Partnership Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 December
2021.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

(a)

2020 Master Agreement dated 18 November 2019

On 18 November 2019, the Company and Shougang
Fund entered into a new private fund management
service agreement (the “2020 Master Agreement”) in
respect of the provision of private fund management
services by the Company and/or its subsidiaries to
Shougang Fund and/or its associates for a term
commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2024.

The transaction amounts under the 2020 Master
Agreement during the term of the agreement will not
exceed the following annual caps:
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For the year ending 31 December

HE1AMHLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ANEE NEE ANEE NEE NEHE
Provision of private fund management services 358,000,000 551,000,000 701,000,000 851,000,000 924,000,000

RELBESEERS

Pursuant to the 2020 Master Agreement, the
provision of private fund management services shall
be priced between either (i) 0.1% and 2% of the
capital commitment or the capital contribution of
the partnership each year (as determined under the
respective partnership agreements) for urban renewal
related funds; or (ii) 0.5% and 2% of the capital
commitment or the capital contribution of partnership
each year (as determined under the respective
partnership agreements) for any other types of funds.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Master Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2019 and in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2019.
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Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements

As stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 November 2018 and in the circular of the
Company dated 28 November 2018, Urban Parking
(Beijing) Limited (B3 (b)) EEEEBRAE,
“Urban Parking Beijing”), became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company upon completion of the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Urban
Parking Beijing (i.e. on 28 December 2018) by E Park
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B2{28 (Jt5) ®KE
EIEABRAE, “E Park”),
operation contractor agreements dated 1 April 2015

entered into three carpark

(the “Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements”)
with each of Beijing Chong Wen New World Properties
Development Co., Ltd. GEREX e Tt A EHEEE
BPRAE, "Beijing Chongwen"), Beijing Chong Yu
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (AL IR &R = i ZE FY 8%
BRAE], "Beijing Chongyu”) and China New World
Electronics Ltd. (FEIFHEREFHERAS, “China
New World Electronics”), each of which is a subsidiary
of New World Development Company Limited (“New
World Development”), which in turn is a substantial
shareholder of the Company.
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Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements, the initial term is 36 months commencing
on 1 April 2015 and expiring on 31 March 2018, after
which Urban Parking Beijing may opt to (and with
respect to the year commencing 1 April 2018, has opted
to) renew the respective Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements for a successive period of one year each,
until 10 years from the date of the agreement, subject
to any framework agreement applicable to Urban
Parking Beijing and re-compliance with the Listing Rules
at the relevant time; and Urban Parking Beijing will
provide carpark operation services to Beijing Chongwen,
Beijing Chongyu and China New World Electronics
for different sections of the carparks in Beijing New
World Department Store Phase 1 and Phase 2 (”Beijing
Carparks”) in return for income from parking, car
detailing, rental fees in the car park, advertising revenue
and other service incomes subject to the following
payments of fees (the “Carpark Operation Contractor
Fees”):

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2017

H20155F481HE201753H831H

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RIEZEEFEEZEERTEHRE Y
UG HAR 233618 B > H2015F 4818 #E
F2018F3831HEM EREHMEE
bR A2 (K R2018F48 1HRBEA
ZFEEDERE) NS NZEEEEE
BEANEHBERSNEN T BEEWE
HHE10EAL HEASERARE
WEEIERZERIERBZEHRR
TR EMBEENET EHRAUZR
B ElFEEREAIIREN IR
SR EFTHAEFZERIER
MR EBE—HAN_SHAEMEN(E
B (SR EERRE)) RHFEES
BERB MEmNEELREE#ER
WREEZ SBEER - EEHHES K
A BEEREREMBRERA 2 T7]
FRAEZNER ((FEBEERNEE
Bl

Subsequent 2-year period
from 1 April 2017
2017481 HEHEMFH

Beijing Chongwen

IREX

RMB1,166,975 per year
SE£ARM1,166,97570

Beijing Chongyu
IERER

RMB1,900,000 per year
£ ARM1,900,00070

China New World Electronics

REH T SR E

RMB733,025 per year
FHF AR733,0257

Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements, the Carpark Operation Contractor Fees are
subject to the following annual caps:

Approximately 5% increase

LEB%I5%

Approximately 5% increase

E#BH5%

Approximately 5% increase
EFA5%

REZEFELEEARBHRE F
BEREEAMBERRUTEELR
PRI -

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2017

1 April 2017 to 1 April 2019 to 1 April 2021 to 1 April 2023 to
31 March 2019 31 March 2021 31 March 2023 31 March 2025

201554818 E  201754B1HE  2019%4B1BE 2021F4B1HE 2023F4R1HE

2017538318 2019%3H31H  2021%3H31H  2023%3A31H  2025%3F31H

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ANEH NEH NEH NEH NEF

Carpark Operation Contractor Fees 3,800,000 3,990,000 4,189,500 4,398,976 4,618,924

FESEEARBER
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Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements were disclosed in the announcement dated
1 November 2018 and in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2018.

Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement dated 28
October 2020

On 28 October 2020, E Park entered into a parking
lots cooperation agreement (the “Parking Lots
Cooperation Agreement”) with Beijing Shoushi
Changtai Operation Management Co., Ltd. (Jtm=&®
MEREEEEEMR AT, "Shoushi Changtai”)
(formerly known as Beijing Shoushi Changtai Trading
Co., Ltd. IERERMERBEBRALQE) in relation to the
continuing connected transactions involving entrusting
the management and leasing of the parking lots under
the Chang’an Mills (an urban renewal project in New
Shougang High-end Industry Comprehensive Service Park
FEilsmEXKFSIRE&E, “Shougang Park”),
the “Project”) by Shoushi Changtai to E Park. Pursuant
to the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement, Shoushi
Changtai will entrust the management of the parking
lots under the Project to E Park and shall pay E Park an
annual management fee (the “Annual Management
Fee”) and shall be entitled to all the revenues generated
therefrom for the first five years (the “Entrusted
Management Period”) and Shoushi Changtai shall
lease the parking lots under the Project to E Park for
operation and management for the remaining years
(the “Lease Period”), during which E Park shall be
entitled to all the revenues and shall pay to Shoushi
Changtai a specified percentage of the profit generated
from operating the parking lots under the Project (the
“Annual Variable Lease Payment”). The initial term
of the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement shall be
ten years commencing from the day after the date of
completion and successful acceptance of construction
of all parking lots under the Project, which shall be
extended automatically for another ten years provided
that E Park has not breached any specific terms as
stipulated in the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement.
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The entering into of the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement is for that the industrial/office parking
is the key focus of the Company and the Company
will work with Shoushi Changtai to build parking lots
with international green standard under the guidance
of the goal of unified brand image, service model,
management standards, operation and maintenance
support, and internal control and supervision of
Shougang Park.

The cap amounts of the Annual Management Fee during
the Entrusted Management Period and the Annual
Variable Lease Payment during the Lease Period are as
follows:
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During the
Entrusted
Management During the
Period Lease Period
REXEEHR REEHA
RMB RMB
ANE ANE
Annual Management Fee payable to E Park
BATREENFEEESE 6,000,000 =
Annual Variable Lease Payment payable by E Park
BRERIANFEFEHEES - 6,000,000

The first contract year is 12 months from the day after
the date of completion and successful acceptance of
construction of all parking lots under the Project, which
was fixed on 11 March 2022. Accordingly, the period
end date for each of the annual cap under each of the
Entrusted Management Period and the Lease Period will
be by 11 March each year starting from 2023 and by 11
March each year starting from 2028.
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Given that Shougang Group is a connected person of
the Company and indirectly holds approximately 48.86%
interest in Shoushi Changtai, Shoushi Changtai is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of it being
an associate of the connected person of the Company
and hence, the transactions contemplated under the
Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 28 October 2020 and 9 November
2020.

Continuing Connected Transactions Pursuant to
Rule 14A.60(1) of the Listing Rules

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2021, the Group has, through Guangzhou
Carpark Management, Guangzhou Wanwu and
Foshan Wanwu (as defined below, collectively, the
"Partnerships”) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
entered into various agreements, namely Guangzhou
Carpark Sales Agreement, Foshan Carpark Sales
Agreement, Guangzhou Carpark Management
Guangzhou Carpark Management
Agreement (II) and Foshan Carpark Management

Agreement (1),

Agreement (as defined below, collectively, the
"Agreements”) with subsidiaries of China Vanke Co.,
Ltd. in respect of carpark sales services and carpark
property management services in the PRC.
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Guangzhou Carpark Sales Agreement

Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate
Management Limited Partnership (B/MNEHE
MEEEESHE L% (BERE%), "Guangzhou
Wanwu”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Vanke
Gongying Investment Co., Ltd. CRIITEY
HEmIZXEHMRAT, "Shenzhen Gongying”)
and Guangzhou Vanke Property Management
Services Co., Ltd. (BN ERMERBEER
‘A8, "Guangzhou Vanke"”) entered into an
agreement (the “Guangzhou Carpark Sales
Agreement”) on 12 December 2019, pursuant
to which Guangzhou Wanwu has entrusted
Shenzhen Gongying and Guangzhou Vanke to
provide carpark sales services in respect of 7,727
carparks situated in Guangzhou City in the PRC
from 13 November 2019 to 31 December 2025,
and Guangzhou Wanwu shall pay (i) Shenzhen
Gongying and Guangzhou Vanke an annual sales
commission fee representing 3.6% to 5% of the
annual sales revenues generated from the sales
of the carparks; and (ii) Guangzhou Vanke a
monthly fee of not exceeding RMB30,000 for the
daily operational expenses relating to the services
provided thereunder;
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(i)

(iii)

Foshan Carpark Sales Agreement
Foshan Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate
Management Limited Partnership (# &
BYEXEEGBLEX (BRE%),

Wanwu"”), an indirect non-wholly-owned

“Foshan

subsidiary of the Company, Shenzhen Gongying
and Foshan Vanke Property Management Co.,
Ltd. (BT ERYERBARLQS

Vanke”) entered into an agreement (the

“Foshan

“Foshan Carpark Sales Agreement”) on 10
April 2020, pursuant to which Foshan Wanwu
has entrusted Shenzhen Gongying and Foshan
Vanke to provide carpark sales services in respect
of 2,067 carparks situated in Foshan City in
the PRC from 1 April 2020 to 31 December
2026, and Foshan Wanwu shall pay (i) Shenzhen
Gongying and Foshan Vanke an annual sales
commission fee representing 3.6% to 5% of the
annual sales revenues generated from the sales
of the carparks; and (ii) Foshan Vanke a monthly
fee of not exceeding RMB30,000 for the daily
operational expenses relating to the services
provided thereunder;

Guangzhou Carpark Management Agreement (1)

Guangzhou Shouzhong Easyparking Carpark
Ltd. (BINEHRZBEESE

“Guangzhou Shouzhong”), an

Management Co.,
EERAT
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and Guangzhou Vanke entered into an agreement
(the “Guangzhou Carpark Management
Agreement (1)) on 1 December 2020 (as
amended and supplemented on 17 March 2021),
pursuant to which Guangzhou Shouzhong has
entrusted Guangzhou Vanke to provide property
management services in respect of certain
underground carparks situated in Guangzhou
Vanke Cloud City phases 1 and 2 for a monthly
fixed management fee of RMB310,800 from 1
December 2020 to 30 November 2024;
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(iv)

Guangzhou Carpark Management Agreement (ll)

Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Carpark
Management Co., Ltd. (BN EHEYFE
HBEBRRRE,

Management”), an indirect non-wholly-owned

“Guangzhou Carpark

subsidiary of the Company and Guangzhou Vanke
entered into an agreement (the “Guangzhou
Carpark Management Agreement (I1)") on 19
November 2019, pursuant to which Guangzhou
Carpark Management has entrusted Guangzhou
Vanke to provide property management and pre-
sale support services in respect of 4,324 carpark
spaces situated in Guangzhou City, the PRC
from 19 November 2019 to 31 December 2025,
and Guangzhou Carpark Management shall
pay Guangzhou Vanke (i) a monthly property
management fee of RMB120 to RMB150 per
every unsold carpark spaces of the Guangzhou
Carpark Spaces; and (ii) a monthly entrusted
management service fee representing 10% of the
revenue from operating the Guangzhou Carpark
Spaces; and
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Foshan Carpark Management Agreement

Guangzhou Carpark Management (Foshan
Branch) and Foshan Vanke entered into an
agreement (the “Foshan Carpark Management
Agreement”) on 29 December 2020, pursuant
to which Guangzhou Carpark Management
(Foshan Branch) has entrusted Foshan Vanke
to provide property management services in
respect of 1,338 underground carpark spaces
from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021,
and Guangzhou Carpark Management (Foshan
Branch) shall pay a fixed monthly management
fee of RMB93,660 to Foshan Vanke for the
services provided thereunder. On 12 November
2021, Guangzhou Carpark Management
(Foshan Branch) and Foshan Vanke entered into
an agreement to renew the Foshan Carpark
Management Agreement to extend the term
thereof to 31 August 2024. As none of the
applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in respect of the annual caps for
the renewal agreement for the three years ending
31 August 2024 exceeds 1%, the entering into
of the aforesaid renewal agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
fully exempted de minimis continuing connected
transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules, and therefore are fully exempted
from the independent shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Shenzhen Wanwu is a substantial shareholder of each
of the Partnerships. As the relevant percentage ratios in
respect of each of the Partnerships were less than 5%
for the financial year prior to 2020, the Partnerships
were insignificant subsidiaries of the Company under
Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules and therefore
Shenzhen Wanwu was not a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Based on the annual
results announcement of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was published by the
Company on 26 March 2021, the Partnerships have
ceased to be insignificant subsidiaries of the Company
under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules and Shenzhen
Wanwu has become a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level under the Listing Rules.

Given that Shenzhen Gongying, Guangzhou Vanke and
Foshan Vanke are fellow subsidiaries of and therefore
associates of Shenzhen Wanwu, the continuing
transactions contemplated under the Agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Agreements were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 29 March
2021 and 27 May 2021.
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(e)  Provision of Executive Partnership Services (e) HAA2021F 12531545 8 & 15585
under the Lvhe Partnership Agreement dated 31 TrEM T EREFHEIRTS
December 2021
As stated in the announcement of the Company dated WARATHEA20215F12831HHA
31 December 2021, Beijing Heshou entered into the ER IR EHENEESRES
Lvhe Partnership Agreement with Shougang Fund BREFTUTHEERHEMRILES
and China Life Investment for the establishment of ERrE-REBEGEEEHE IERE
Lvhe Partnership. Pursuant to the Lvhe Partnership SEENBEEBRENNEMGEH (IR
Agreement, Beijing Heshou shall provide executive BaEacBmaNEREER ARH
partnership services (“Executive Partnership ME_HRBEENBNTHEBNE
Services"”) to Lvhe Partnership during the initial term of FEBENBTHEES TH¥HRER)
eight years of the Lvhe Partnership commencing from R RAREEBEEREATERSE
the date specified in the capital contribution payment BR%S (RITEBEHERFEL) » URE
notice on which the second instalment of capital BTSRRI ZERERZRRE
contribution is due to be made by the partners pursuant EERLEGFEHRRANSRLERER
to the terms of the Lvhe Partnership Agreement (the ANEBHHERENSFOS5%TE I
“Initial Term"), in return for the executive partnership HEREREBAKIE-

fee which shall be calculated as 0.5% per annum
of each limited partner’'s remaining paid-in capital
contribution and shall be borne by each limited partner
during the term of Lvhe Partnership.

Pursuant to the Lvhe Partnership Agreement, the RESGEEHE BB bEY
executive partnership fee during the Initial Term of Lvhe BHARNRTEZEERMNEFTERB
Partnership will not exceed the following annual caps: BTHEE LR !
For the year ending Annual Caps of
31 December Executive Partnership Fee
HE12B31HLEEE HTEREEHRMNERE LR
(RMB’000)
ANE¥ (F)
2022 4,375
2023 12,500
2024 22,500
2025 27,500
2026 27,500
2027 23,125
2028 20,000
2029 7,500
2030 3,125
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Provision of Executive Partnership Services under the
Lvhe Partnership Agreement can synergise with the main
business sector of the Company.

Given that Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder
and therefore a connected person of the Company, the
provision of Executive Partnership Services under the
Lvhe Partnership Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Lvhe Partnership Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2021.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the

continuing connected transactions as set out above during the

year have been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive

Directors of the Company who have confirmed that the

transactions have been entered into:

(a)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

on normal commercial terms or better; and

according to the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"),
was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note

“Assurance

740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PwC has issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Company in the paragraphs above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions which were
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements. For those related
party transactions that constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be)
(other than those described in the section above headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”) under the Listing Rules, such transactions
were fully exempt from shareholder’s approval, annual review
and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 77 to 108 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended
31 December 2021 will be set out in a separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report to be published on the websites
of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited in due course.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the
Company and PwC has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, both with effect from 1 August
2018.

Save as disclosed, there has been no other change in the
auditor of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

PwC will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint PwC as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Zhao Tianyang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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_E
pwc B R A

To the Members of Shoucheng Holdings Limited HEREERBRATIRE
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (REBAH M I HIERA )
OPINION ER

What we have audited BMEBHANAR

The consolidated financial statements of Shoucheng Holdings BRRZERBERAR UTHEEAR)) kE
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), MBAE LATHBIEBEE) FIHINE159=E
which are set out on pages 159 to 322, comprise: 3NEMGREMBRE B1F

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 ® R2021F 12831 BNGREHHRR
December 2021; =

/A

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for ~ ® BEZALEENGEEEW@R

the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the — ® BEZALEENGEEOEH K
year then ended,;

ir:A

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ® BEZALFENGERERER
then ended; and Pivd

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, *® EHMBERERNE GEETETTK

which include significant accounting policies and other RREMBEER-
explanatory information.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to an
associate classified as asset held for sale — Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited (“Shougang Resources”).

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Key Audit Matter
MBS ER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB MAEERBRESFIR

SEARAEFEREENENERIREEE

Investment in Shougang Resources classified as asset held for sale

Refer to Notes 4 and 18(A) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has classified the
investment in Shougang Resources of HK$3,511,510,000
as held for sale.

The Group entered into an agreement with King Rich
Group Limited (“King Rich”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang
Holding”), one of the substantial shareholders of the
Group on 15 January 2021 (the "Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Group conditionally agreed to sell, and
King Rich has conditionally agreed to purchase, the
share capital of certain subsidiaries of the Group which
effectively held 28.98% of all issued shares of Shougang
Resources (the “Disposal”).

The effective interests of Shougang Resources subject
to Disposal was further revised to 11.88% of all issued
shares of Shougang Resources on 18 February 2021 as a
recourse for certain condition precedent of the Agreement
being not met. Despite of the revision of the Agreement
above, the management confirmed that there is no change
in the overall business plan of disposal of all interests of
Shougang Resources held by the Group.

F2REREMBRERMTARMEE18(A)

R2021FE12831H SHEEIEAR3,511,510,000cE
ME R EEENDEAREFEEE-

R2021F1B15H BEEERHIZRIZ —BMER
(BB ARAR (BEER) 2 2EWBRAREER
BERAB(REDITUEE RS (&) Bt B5&EE
ERMFHRARHERRERERIMETKRE S£EET
ETHBAREREERNEREA S HITRD28.98%
ks (HESE)) -

2021928188 AEWMERP R LA REHRERE
BHENENERERERE T B ALENE RS
BETRMNMNI1.88% - EBE LilpHEET 7B BEEE
ERIALE SEEFEENEREIESNEREER
g aE b

Our procedures in relation to Investment in Shougang
Resources classified as held for sale included:

- obtaining understanding of the Group’s strategic
restructuring plan of divesting equity interest in
Shougang Resources through discussion with the
management;

- obtaining and inspecting the Agreement, the
amended and restated Agreement, business plan
and budget approved by the board of directors,
correspondence with potential buyers and legal
advisors regarding the Disposal, approval of the
Disposal in a general meeting and information
published by the Group;

- assessing the fulfilment of the criteria for
the classification of the asset held for sale
pursuant to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards, which included enquiring
of management the timeline, key milestones and
the status of the Disposal at the year end and
examining documents relevant to the Disposal;

KA EAFAGEEENGWNERREREN
BEFEE:

— EEEEIEE W TR
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— BB REBERGE SESIRETNHE K
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NEBXR BAREEBRNERNKE TES
TR HE X
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Key Audit Matter
MBS ER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB MAEERBRESSFIH

Investment in Shougang Resources classified as asset held for sale (continued)

SEAREFEEENENERREEE (@)

The management is of the view that, since 15 January
2021, the carrying amount of 28.98% interests in
Shougang Resources is to be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and
the Disposal is expected to be completed within one year,
thus, it is reclassified as asset held for sale on 15 January
2021.

Management was required to assess when and whether
all the criteria for the classification of all interests of
Shougang Resources as held for sale as set out in the
prevailing accounting standards were and remained
fulfilled based on the facts and circumstances specific to
the Disposal. Management was also required to assess the
measurement of the investment in Shougang Resources
immediately before its classification as held for sale and at
the year end.

We determined the classification of all interests of
Shougang Resources as an asset held for sale to be
a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the significant
judgements and assumptions made by management on
whether all interests of Shougang Resources meet the
criteria to be classified as an asset held for sale, and
whether the fair value less costs to sell is able to support
the carrying amount of the asset classified as held for sale.

EIEERA H2021FE 1158 B5ilER28.98% &
HTHNREESTEABHER S MIEFEFAKE -
Bt ESBERE—FNTA > Bt 72202151815
HEHDEAREREEE.

EEERREAMHESTENBESTERE R 1h
RSt EEHEENERSTENENTERR
BFFEDEREMNRUREETE WmE KR - 818
BTEEEDBERAFERENRFRKILEHNER
REBERE-

HARBDEAFAEFEEENEHNEREMEaRTE
HARESFFR AAEAGHEBRRNEEELU
RIREEEBHENEREERTREENRARE
EENDERENAABEAELENEARTTEN
FRAGEEENREEENERAEMNERR-

- obtaining representation from directors of the
Group on the management’s judgement applied
on assessment of when and whether investment
in Shougang Resource met the criteria of
classification as held for sale;

- evaluating management’s assessment on the
measurement of the asset classified as held for
sale which is held at the lower of its carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell; and

- assessing the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in relation to
the Disposal with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
judgements and assumptions made by management
were supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
18 1L 1% BT ¥R

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEXBUZEMBESHNEFEEEBEAR
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho. = 55 ©

PricewaterhouseCoopers BRERKEGHMEREMR

Certified Public Accountants HEESET

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022 FH>202286E3H830H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

wT - | é_} E LI& m 13—%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 EBEFT BEFT
Revenue ON 5 1,195,031 705,854
Cost of sales HEME (647,828) (531,460)
Gross profit EF) 547,203 174,394
Other income, net H A P58 6 307,617 138,641
Other gains, net Hitlz % 88 7 128,016 822
Write-off of trade receivables 1 54 18 U BR 2N 20 (69,013) =
Provision for impairment loss for trade FEWEIRR 2 BEBEEE
receivables 20 (1,718) (1,071)
Administrative expenses EIEER (343,154) (250,972)
Operating profit R 8 568,951 61,814
Finance costs MR 10 (74,343) (77,168)
Provision for impairment —BHERBRZRERE
of investment in an associate EBiaEE 18(A) (1,615,179) =
Share of results of associates BEMERT X8 18(4) 16,632 343,320
Share of results of joint ventures BEoE Az EE 18(B) 114,826 344,069
(Loss)/profit before income tax MRS IRAT (B518) /BF (989,113) 672,035
Income tax expense e 11 (124,413) (36,565)
(Loss)/profit for the year EFE (58) /&5 (1,113,526) 635,470
(Loss)/profit is attributable to: KT ALER (B8 /&5
Owners of the Company KRBEBA (1,095,327) 658,613
Non-controlling interests FEEERR R (18,199) (23,143)
(1,113,526) 635,470

The notes on pages 167 to 322 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FI167TEINE ARG S

B2 ERD o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 & ZE2021F12831HIEEE
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
k3 BT BT
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hth2EWKE (518)
Items that have been/may be subsequently BAE 1t B EHFEE
reclassified to profit or loss: B2 HEH -
Exchange differences arising on translation of & BN EHFELEZEREE
foreign operations 10,098 125,339
Share of exchange differences of associates and B{EMEATREEABNE
joint ventures arising on translation of foreign BINEFELEZEREHE
operations 27,577 154,656
Items that will not be reclassified to BREENFEERRZ
profit or loss: EH
Fair value changes on financial assets at fair ~ BAABEFAEMEZE
value through other comprehensive income BRZEMEEZ
("Fvoal”) NABEES (14,975) =
Share of fair value change on investment in Bih—BHMERRWIETS
equity instruments designated at FVOC| BAnBEFAHM
of an associate 2EREZRATERE
ZRAREBELZE 8,253 (402)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHMPEWKE 30,953 279,593
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FEZE BH) WEeHE
for the year (1,082,573) 915,063
Total comprehensive (loss)/income MTALEGER2E (BE) /
attributable to: W 4E R
Owners of the Company KABEBA (1,064,630) 919,766
Non-controlling interests FEREE (17,943) (4,703)
(1,082,573) 915,063
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit AT A AL (F518) /
attributable to the owners wHZz S (58) /&BF .
of the Company:
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SREX (BB /&BA
(HK cents) () 12(a) (15.19) 9.62
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share sRHE (B8 /&BH
(HK cents) () 12(b) (15.19) 9.57
The notes on pages 167 to 322 are an integral part of these $167F322B M AKRIGEMBERE K

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMERRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 722021412831H

2021 2020
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
i3 EBEFT BEFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRERHZE 13(4) 35,663 39,748
Right-of-use assets TRHEEE 13(B) 2,204,768 1,753,170
Contract assets in respect of service concession ERRFEAT SF4CE 25
arrangements BERENEHNEE 5 124,017 88,274
Investment properties REMHE 14 257,466 158,521
Investments in associates ﬁ"ﬂﬁ“ﬁ’&ﬂZ?ﬁfﬁ\ 18(A) 173,538 5,269,687
Investments in joint ventures N=A=UN=IP&:'3 18(B) 854,694 656,143
Investments - non-current Tﬁé JERE 19 1,075,915 709,910
Prepayments and deposits BAMERRE 20 132,994 296,736
Deferred income tax assets RIEFERMEE 28 3,304 16
Other non-current assets HMERHEE 15 413,607 338,970
Total non-current assets FRBEEEE 5,275,966 9,311,175
Current assets MEEE
Trade receivables FEUTER R 20 135,144 190,674
Prepayments, deposits and BAME-BEk
other receivables HAEWIE 20 262,947 333,564
Investments - current RE—-RE 19 1,523,213 514,796
Restricted bank deposits ZREIRITER 21 - 36,890
Time deposits with maturity over three months ZR=EAREHz EHER 2 100,000 =
Bank balances and cash RITEHRIRE 22 2,573,462 3,738,533
4,594,766 4,814,457
Asset classified as held for sale FEGENEE 18(A) 3,511,510 =
Total current assets REBEEE 8,106,276 4,814,457
Total assets BEAE 13,382,242 14,125,632
Equity H
Capital and reserves B2 K it
Share capital gz 24 12,546,847 12,127,547
Reserves (EL (2,406,210) (355,257)
Capital and reserves attributable to FRFER AR
owners of the Company IR 5 10,140,637 11,772,290
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 87,770 147,008
Total equity HmiEE 10,228,407 11,919,298

The notes on pages 167 to 322 are an integral part of these $167E32B ARG EHHTREZE
consolidated financial statements. B =R o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBIRRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 #22021412831H

2021 2020
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
Wizt EBEFT BEFT
Liabilities &
Non-current liabilities FERBBE
Borrowings - non-current BR—IERE 27 573,605 476,832
Lease liabilities - non-current HEBE-ERY 13(B) 1,512,358 1,011,584
Deferred income tax liabilities RILFEMEE 28 59,796 18,063
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEEE 2,145,759 1,506,479
Current liabilities mEaR
Trade payables FE{TER R 26 389,337 204,622
Other payables, provision and HAEMIE BE &
accrued liabilities s aE 26 240,159 216,404
Contract liabilities R 23,822 89,070
Tax payable FERHRIE 98,446 60,831
Borrowings - current B —RE 27 179,037 6,100
Lease liabilities — current HE&ERE-7H 13(B) 77,275 122,828
Total current liabilities mEBEAE 1,008,076 699,855
Total liabilities afElE 3,153,835 2,206,334
Total equity and liabilities EakaflE 13,382,242 14,125,632
The notes on pages 167 to 322 are an integral part of these H167E322B ARG EHHFRRZE

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 159 to 322
were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022
and were signed on its behalf.

Zhao Tianyang
(PN
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
g3 BT BIEFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZRERE
Net cash generated from operations EBEEMBRETH 31(a) (730,504) 92,191
Income tax paid BIMER (52,975) (29,429)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mgEe (FRA) /PRS2
operating activities REFEE (783,479) 62,762
Cash flows from investing activities REZBZRERE
Dividends received from associates BRHMEATZIRE 256,307 237,162
Dividends received from joint ventures BEREERAZKE 76,829 -
Interest received Bl 41,523 93,422
Advance to related companies RTEM AR Z BN - (3,299)
Placement of restricted bank deposits FRZRGIRTER - (16,163)
Placement of deposit with maturity EHRENR3ERREH
over three months THER (100,000) =
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REZRHIRTER 36,890 2,036
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EENE BREREE 13(A) (2,155) (27,651)
Capital injections into associates and FETHEATR
joint ventures BEAHE (140,270) (17,483)
Addition of financial assets at FVPL RERAMBESABRZZ
TREE (541,013) (338,181)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERARBEFAERZ
at FVPL TREEZMREMA 401,446 -
Placement for financial assets at RERBHREAARZ
amortised cost TREE 19 - (93,671)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~ HEZBGZRAAERZ
amortised cost EHEEZMERE 19 93,671 =
Proceeds from disposal of other non-current  HEHMIIERBHEEZ
assets PRISIB 25,403 -
Purchase of financial assets at FVOCI RERAABESAEMZE
WEZzEREE (200,000) -
Purchase of other non-current assets BEEAMIERSEE 15 (22,499) (60,923)
Purchase of investment properties EEREME 14 (34,130) -
Prepayments for construction of property, BREME -BEREEZ
plant and equipment B RIE = (70,024)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFMAZAEEE (107,998) (294,775)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RARERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 & ZE2021F12831HIEEE
2021 2020
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Mz BT BIEFT
Cash flows from financing activities MEZHZRERE
Repayment of borrowings BEREN (26,898) (462,798)
Proceeds from borrowings EENIKCE ] 259,753 443,498
Net proceeds from issuance BONBRES 2T
of convertible bonds TIB S 23 - 1,521,829
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BITEBRZAERIEZE 25 419,300 477,254
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEER (224,178) (272,876)
Step acquisition in a subsidiary ATWE—-REHBAT 30(3) (21,138) (105,000)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests JF¥EfRETR T E 30(c) 1,604 85,210
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders ¥ ATKREZKRE 29 (699,938) (800,174)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests FNFIEABIEER
in subsidiaries BRZEE (12,100) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (FRA) /FiSzHE
financing activities FEE (303,595) 886,943
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERRESEY CHY) /18
cash equivalents IpE:R: (1,195,072) 654,930
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNzReERREEEY
of the year 3,738,533 3,057,215
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMEEXEH 2 HE 30,001 26,388
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERZRERREEZEY 22 2,573,462 3,738,533

The notes on pages 167 to 322 are an
consolidated financial statements.

166

integral part of these
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shoucheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company
and together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in parking business, infrastructure
and real estate fund management business and
investment holding. The Company's principal
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in
Notes 17 and 18.

The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are 7th Floor, Bank
of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These financial statements have been
reviewed by the audit committee of the Company and
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
March 2022.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the laws of Hong Kong).

—ARE#

BRZERBRRAR (IEA8)) HRE
BEMAIZBRAT  HRHBES
BHMEXZABRAR (TBRF) £
o

ARBIRENB AR (TREE)) 2
REFEHTER ERIZHEAHE
ESEEBEEBRRKREER KAATAE
ENBAR HELAAREERAAH
HHMiEE17/&18°

ARBZEMMPER R T EEFME
ZHA B/ EBEBFELITES6RRD
IRITAEROTIB

BRIES BRI TAAGRETBRRE
LAETTABMNREY -ZEWHR
RERALNBDEZELZEGTERIUMHE
EEZH2022F3830H L ETIE -

EEGTBRTE

MUEAGAEMBERRBERBZETES
STEREN T X FRIFESARE DA
EEBREMZIZAEFERNER
FEF o

2.1 iRBIEE
(a) TTE(EEHBEREERNREE
(2 1E 4 )

ARBZEEHBRERTDRE
FTEERZEEBMBREEL
(IERMBHREE) XFA
NERD (BEERF622E) Z
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
(b)

2.1.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, the financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value and the asset held for sale
measured at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less cost to sell.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2021.

. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Phase 2)
— Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard ("HKAS") 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

. COVID-19-Related Rent Concession -
Amendments to HKFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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(b)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

EETHHREE (@)

Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE ()

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 EKEZHRIBE (Z)
(continued)

New and amended HKFRSs issued but not yet (b) CAEHBE R e 2 T R &E
effective SIEBUMBmEEL

Certain new and amended accounting standards
and interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

BT EREAZE
IRBECHEGEESNRER
202112831 H IEFE @ &HI#
TMmAEETERREREM

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

KT AMgZzE

Mtz IR ER

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 1 April 2021
June 2021 (Amendments)

EEBMBREERB165KEL] 2021568 %COVID-191E AN & HZE 202144810

HKFRSs annual improvements
2018-2020 cycle

ERMBREENFENE
2018-2020E B A
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BERMBREELEIRET
Amendments to HKAS 16
ERGHERE165E]
Amendments to HKAS 37
ER G EREI7RE]
Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)

25115515558 (BB THR)
Amendments to HKAS 1
BERGHEE1REET

HKFRS 17 and Amendments to
HKFRS 17

CE)
HKFRSs Standards Annual Improvements

EBMBREERFELE

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

SE(BRER)

Proceeds before Intended Use

15 E B R AR PR 1§

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BAMA

Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

RIEFT 2 BT3B ERER 2 5 HH
BEEE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

BRIAB ARSI D

Insurance Contract

EBUMBREENSITRRERY REEYH

BHREERB17RIES]

1 January 2022
2022%181H

1 January 2022

20221818
1 January 2022

2022%181H
1 January 2022

2022%181H
1 January 2022

20221818
1 January 2023

2023F181H
1 January 2023

2023F181H
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and amended HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

EETHHRREE (&

21 RUEE )
2.1.1 B HEEERKEE 2

(b)  ERMERRERZHE]RAEE
S EARVBREER

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
KT BEHZE
sz IR AR

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

ERGHENE1HEBIIR
ERMBREENEBE LS
B25

Amendments to HKAS 8

BB G ERESRER]

Amendments to HKAS 12

(Amendments)

RS

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SHBRZKE (B:])

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

1 January 2023

2023%F181H

1 January 2023

2023F181H
1 January 2023

arising from a Single Transaction

BBEERB129%1EF]
Frig

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements —

RE-RGMELZEERBBRRZIEL

2023F181H

1 January 2023

Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause
AR ESE55%(2020)

MHRERZ 2T - ERAHE T REREX

20231818

EERRZEHERZHE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

EBMBREERNFI0NREEE REZLEAKENRT

STZERIZE285RIER] HENTE
The Group is still assessing what the impact of the
new standards, interpretations and amendments
will be in the periods of initial application. It
is not yet in a position to state whether these
standards, interpretations, and amendments will
have a significant impact on the Group's results
of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(a)

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity where
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(b)

(c)

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting (continued)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at
cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are classified

“Joint Arrangements”

as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the
legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Company has joint ventures. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(d)

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting (continued)

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’ s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
or joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity
— accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments are tested for impairment accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.10.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(e)

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting (continued)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or joint control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associated company,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(e)

2.3

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting (continued)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisitions of subsidiaries comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;
o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration

arrangement; and

. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Business combinations (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non—
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition - related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:

° consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity.

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

2

B

2.3

B BRRE (2

EBEs @

EEXEBOHTAWERNHE
EURFIAEZBERAAE
EoMBEUERKREBRBAZA
RBEFE FEBARZAISME
) c AEELE AW BEEEL
AREBENIFFEREDEIGFT
W ERE RIS R E A FEEREW
RPN ER 2 JFERER

W BB AR B A A TS EE E R S o

MUTF&E
. FREEAE;

. RETWBER ZEMIE
ERED T &

. 2] 5 B 7% P U B8 B B2
ZKRERKEBE#HZA
REE-

BUHFFKER#IEEZEZ
AABEZEBINRSEHE
ZETREBRAAWEERS A H
MEEFEZANEE AZE
PEEREDEINEZEBRE
W



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in
the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6
(a)

(b)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by
the chief operating decision makers, being the
Executive Directors of the Company, that are
used to make strategic decisions and resources
allocation. The Group’s businesses are managed
according to the type of products and services
they provide. No operating segments identified
by the chief operating decision makers have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the "functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in profit or loss. They
are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(b)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a net
basis within other gains, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive income
of consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

180

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(d)

2.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non
— controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term
or 4 to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years

equipment

Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9
(a)

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in profit or loss as part of other gains,
net.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note
15. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

included in “other non-current assets”
Goodwill on acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included in the cost of the investment
in associates or joint ventures respectively.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

2

EETHBRBE &

2.8

2.9
(@)

REME

REMEDSEHRES WM
BA MFERFERGER -RE
MENT R ASE > B1EEH
RBMARBERABNEENRAE 5
B HEARBEI KR 2AE
BEEHFELEMERZ FRZ—

55 AR
mEEE
e

B ERW ISPt 8 - IR
BREEEZBHELSNES
MBRRRTEMIERSEE °
WEBREARANNGEATNE
EStARBEQATNEGE LT
ZREMT -BESTHE M
BEETARENS  AEBEFH
EIRWBERESHBTAELER
BERETT EEERRERE
WA AR = Rt B EBES
Mo HEBREMNW S MBEEE
EHEERERNEEREE.

HEERIEEREELEEN
METRENS -BREOELE
BB EEENETH
PEGHNREELEUNRS
EEBUARNFH REEEFE
U IREEEBMUAR A
BEEEBNMRERBENR
R xR (BN E 7 &F) MEsl o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9
(b)

Intangible assets (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising
from a service concession arrangement when it
has a right to charge for usage of the concession
infrastructure. An intangible asset received as
consideration for providing construction services
in a service concession arrangement are measured
at fair value upon initial recognition by reference
to the fair value of the services provided.
Subsequent to initial recognition the intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Separately acquired intangible assets are shown
at historical cost. Intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
The amortisation period and amortisation method
for an intangibles asset with finite useful life are
assessed at every period end.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash generating unit level. Such intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable, if
not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9
(b)

2.10

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:
Concession rights 10 to 24 years
Carpark operating rights 5 to 10 years
Funds management contracts 3 to 10 years
These intangible assets are included in “other
non-current assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHEEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) 211 FEFEIIERBEE RHE

held for sale and discontinued
operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use
and a sale is considered highly probable. They
are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets
and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance
contracts, which are specifically exempt from this
requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal
group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair
value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal
group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or
loss not previously recognised by the date of the
sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are
part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to
the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held
for sale continue to be recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.12
(a)

Non-current assets (or disposal groups)
held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and
the assets of a disposal group classified as held
for sale are presented separately from the other
assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately
from other liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss);
and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

i

2.12
(@)

(b)

()

B BRBE (@

THEE (@)
P4 (B

BAnRBEFEZEEZ W
HEESSHABEnNEMNMER
Wk o RATEAKRBWMAKRFEIFE
B HRERFIEEBRI TR
R A S A AT e 2 B E R
REZRERANBEZEBHM
EE WY ER e

FERRRREEEZFEE
ZEBEALERERDER
BRE-

50 R B H RS
TMEEZ—REEAEXSH
BR-X7BEAEEXEE
BEZBEEZA - ENTMEEW
BREREZRMNEEST AN
KEEB MAEEERERE
2RI AR ERERS
EE SREEMK LR

FE

RTHERE > FEBZHAR
BEMLE (HERBEELIFRA
AEES ABEIR) WESH
EEEEBEZRZRAFE
TREE-BRANBESFAERDR
IR EMBEENR Z AR
Bm< e

BREERARAT 2021FFR 189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R #5 ¥R AR P 5

4= A
7177 O e |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

190

HZE2021F12831HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other
gains, net together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains, net. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains, net
and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains, net in
the period in which it arises.
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in revenue or other gains, net
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost, FVPL and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 3.1(b)(ii) for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged.

During the year, none of the derivative
instruments has qualified for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note
20 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.10
for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity instruments, for example as
the result of a share buy-back or a share-based
payment plan, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company as
treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

HZE2021F12831HLEE

196

2.19 Borrowing (continued)

The fair value of the liability portion of a
convertible bond is determined using a market
interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. This amount is recorded as a liability
on an amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or maturity of the bonds. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option. This is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value
of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowing costs

2.21

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

HZE2021F12831HLEE

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

198

(continued)
Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHEEME &)

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax 221 EHABIRIEFRISH (&)

(continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

The deferred income tax liability in relation to
investment properties that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current income tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current income tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

HZE2021F12831HLEE

200

2.22 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets
of the Pension Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for the
Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

In addition to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the Group’s employees in Hong Kong,
the Group is required to contribute to central
pension schemes for certain Group’s employees
in the PRC based on applicable rates of monthly
salary in accordance with government regulations.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specific contributions.

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided
to employees via the share incentive plan.
Information relating to the plan is set out in Note
25.

The fair value of employee options granted
under the Company’s share incentive plan is
recognised as an employee benefits expense
with a corresponding increase in equity. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

o Including any market performance
conditions (e.g. the entity’s share price)

° Excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period), and

° Including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (e.g. the requirement for
employees to save or hold shares for a
specific period of time).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

HZE2021F12831HLEE

2.23 Share-based payments (continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options under equity.

The share incentive plan is administered by a
trustee, which is consolidated in accordance with
the principles in Note 2.17. Under the shares
incentive plan, a trustee administers and holds
the Company's shares before they are vested
and transferred to the scheme's participants.
The trustee purchases the Company’s shares
being awarded from the open market with funds
provided by the Company. When share options
are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in other reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
other reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHEEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Provisions 2.24 5

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties
and make good obligations are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Fund management services income

Fund management segment provides fund
management service to investment funds.
Revenue from management fees are recognised
on a time-proportion basis with reference to
the net asset value of the investment funds
and managed accounts. Performance fees are
recognised on the performance fee valuation day
of the investment funds and managed accounts
when there is a positive performance for the
relevant performance period and it is determined
that it will not result in significant reversal in a
subsequent period, taking into consideration the
relevant basis of calculation for the investment
funds and managed accounts.

Investment income

Investment income includes net gains/losses on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

Refer to Note 2.12 for the recognition policy.

Carpark income

Carpark income is recognised when the services is
provided.

Leasing income

Refer to Note 2.28 for the recognition policy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Excess return from investment funds

Excess return from investment funds is recognised
when the contractual conditions are satisfied.

Revenue from the construction services under
service concession arrangements

The Group’s performance in respect of
construction services creates or enhances an asset
or work in progress that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced, thus the Group
satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, by reference to completion of
the specific transaction assessed on the basis of
the surveyors’ assessment of work performed and
the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a
service concession arrangement is estimated on
a cost plus basis with reference to a prevailing
market rate of gross margin at the date of the
agreement applicable to similar construction
services rendered.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As
a consequence, the Group does not adjust any
of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26
(a)

(b)

2.27

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account the after income
tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets
measured at FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are
recognised as other income in profit or loss when
the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment.
In this case, the dividend is recognised in OCI if
it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
However, the investment may need to be tested
for impairment as a consequence.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHEEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases 228 THE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leases assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date
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2.28 Leases (continued)

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)

EETHHREE (@)

228 HE #@)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing;
and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease,
e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group
entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases
in variable lease payments based on an index or
rate, which are not included in the lease liability
until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect,
the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.
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2.28 Leases (continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

L/ restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEEGTHEEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued) 228 fAE @)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small
items of office furniture.

The Group has adopted Amendments to
HKFRS16-COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.
The amendment provides an optional practical
expedient allowing lessees to elect not to
assess whether a rent concession related to
COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees
adopting this election may account for qualifying
rent concessions in the same way as they
would if they were not lease modifications.
The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met: a. the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for
the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments due on or before
30 June 2021; and c. there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to
all qualifying COVID-19 related rent concessions.
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28

2.29

2.30

Leases (continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and
no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or
before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.31

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL
is included in the net fair value gains on these
assets, see Note 7 below.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
other income.

Interest income is presented as interest income
where it is earned from financial assets that are
held for cash management purposes, see note 6
below. Any other interest income is included in
other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

2 EE

2.31

AR e MR M EE

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

B BRBE (@

FS WA

BAnRBESANBZEME
EFfEEZFBWRANRIBDE
BANARERFNEDE FE2ENW
570

REBHBUAARZEMEER
AERMEEZFENANBWA
AR S A H AU ARIBE 2

MREEEZEMEEMEL
ZHBWRARSHERZHS WA
F2RWEEe - HithF B WAL
BB EMUA -

TRMEEZMEBRAZHES
RAEBRENXFRUETHEE
ZIRERE BFBREEBEZ
THEEN -BEEBBZER
EERBERFNXRUESH
BEEZREFE

BREERARAT 2021FFR 213



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
7177 O e |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3

214

AAF5 ER R M 5E

HZE2021F12831HLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Company manages its
financial risks in accordance with guidelines laid
down by its Board of Directors. The Operating
Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation within the
Group to cope with overall risk management,
as well as specific areas, such as market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong
and in the PRC. It is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily with respect to Hong Kong dollar,
United States dollar (“US$”) and Chinese
Renminbi ("RMB"”) denominated transactions.
Foreign exchange risk arises where future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in currency that is not
the functional currency of the subsidiaries of the
Company.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(a)
(i)

(i)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, some group entities
with functional currency of HK$ had considerable
amount of bank balances and cash denominated
in US$. Under the Linked Exchange Rate
System in Hong Kong, HK$ is pegged to US$,
management therefore considers that there is no
significant foreign exchange risk with respect to
US$ (2020: Same).

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 3% with all other
variables held constant, there will be no
significant impact on the pre-tax profit of the
Group (2020: Same).

The Group does not undertake any foreign
currency hedging currently.

Interest rate risk

The Group holds interest bearing assets and
liabilities including cash at banks, financial assets
at amortised costs and borrowings. The Group
is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, if interest
rates on cash held at banks had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$6,434,000 (2020:
HK$9,346,000) higher/lower.
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

(i)

(iii)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, if interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,882,000 lower/higher (2020:
HK$1,207,000).

Other than the financial assets at FVPL held by
the Group which the underlying investments can
be affected by interest rates, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as investments (Note 19).

To manage its price risk arising from these
investments, the Group diversifies its portfolio.
Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the investment policy set by the
Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HERRER &

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMBRARER @)

(a) Market risk (continued) (a) AR &)

(i) Price risk (continued) iy  ERERE &
The table below summarises the impact of change TRELTRAREEBESAE
on the price of financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI mZEMEEREANEBES
on the Group’s equity and pre-tax (loss)/profit for AHEMEEREZEHMEEN
the year. The analysis is based on the assumption BREFHAERRFEFENE
that the price had increased/decreased by certain mMRAE (B8 FIENEE-
percentage with all other variables held constant. ZOMBERERESE TR

FH S THARAEMEER
SRR LB

Impact on Impact on other components
pre-tax profit of equity
HigmHE Ao
RAF AN E ihEA
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT  EEFT  EEFT EETR

Financial assets at FVPL ~ BAABEABZEZ

EHMEE
Debt securities-listed - 5% AR M IHHETER

(2020: 1%) EFH - 5%

(20204 : 1%) 19,036 2,785 - -
Investment funds - 5% REEE-5%

(2020: 3%) (20204 : 3%) 45,812 21,530 - -
Wealth management BYMER-1%

products — 1% (2020: 1%) (20204 : 1%) 239 1,349 - -
Other securities - 5% Htz8% - 5%

(2020: N/A) (20205 : RER) 54,666 - - -
Financial assets at FVOCI EARBETA

Hth2@mlE 2
EMEE
Other securities - 5% HhE5 - 5%

(2020: N/A) (20204 : @A) = S 9,251 -
Pre-tax (loss)/profit for the year would increase/ BARBEFAEGZETME
decrease as a result of net fair value changes on ENFRALBEEFGELAE
financial assets at FVPL. Other components of Era (B518) /FEigm,~
equity would increase/decrease as a result of net B BARBESAHMEE
fair value changes on financial assets at FVOCI. Wz EeMEENEFLANEE

BE PR EMARE D
@, E e
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and
financial institutions, FVPL, deposits and other
receivables, as well as credit exposures to trading
customers, including outstanding receivables.

Risk management

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and other receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment loss
is made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. Besides, the Group
has reduced credit risk on trade receivables by
requesting deposits to be made before service
or settlement before delivery. The Group mainly
deals with companies with a good repayment
record and reputation and also has policies
in place to assess the credit worthiness of
customers.

The Group has limited credit risk on liquid funds
as the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions which are reputable and/or with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies.

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and other
receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)
(i)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the top five
debtors and the largest debtor accounted for
approximately 47% (2020: 45%) and 22% (2020:
32%) of the Group’s trade receivables balance,
respectively. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. The
Group normally conducts credit checks on new
customers and requires them to pay a deposit
of certain percentage of the sales amount, or to
provide the Group with a letter of credit when
placing orders.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

The Group recognised lifetime expected credit
loss for trade receivables carried at amortised
cost based on either individually customers who
are long overdue with significant amounts or
known insolvencies or non-response to collection
activities, or collectively assessing them for
likelihood of recovery based on ageing of the
balances with similar risk characteristics taking
into account the forward-looking information.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)
(i)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Given the track record of regular repayment
of trade receivables and good credit profiles
of customers, the directors are of the opinion
that the risk of default by these customers is
not significant, taking into account forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be insignificant
and loss allowance provided on a collective
basis was amounted to HK$1,718,000 (2020:
HK$1,071,000).

For trade receivables relating to accounts
in which objective evidence that the debtor
faces significant financial difficulties or enters
liquidation, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. Accordingly, specific
loss allowance of HK$2,290,000 (2020:
HK$2,223,000) were made as at 31 December
2021.

Trade receivables are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

The Group adopts general approach for expected
credit losses of financial assets at amortised
cost (other than trade receivables) based on the
Group's assessment in the risk of default of the
respective counterparties. The Group considers
these financial assets have not significantly
increased in credit risk from initial recognition.
Thus, these financial assets are classified in stage
one and only consider 12-months expected credit
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)
(i)

(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets(continued)

Considering the history of default and forward-
looking factor, the expected credit loss is
immaterial.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring
it has sufficient liquid cash balances and credit
facilities to meet its payment obligations as they
fall due.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held
deposits at call of HK$2,573,462,000 (2020:
HK$3,738,533,000) that are expected readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. A monthly report on forecasted inflow
and outflow of cash is compiled for the directors’
review. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank and other borrowings.
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
outstanding borrowings of HK$752,642,000
(2020: HK$482,932,000). As at 31 December
2021, the Group has available unutilised
borrowing facilities of HK$849,290,000 (2020:
Nil).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the
Group’s liquidity analysis for its non-derivative
financial liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and
2020. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted net cash (inflows) and outflows
on those non-derivative financial liabilities that
require net settlement and gross (inflows) and
outflows on those non-derivative financial
liabilities that require gross settlement. When
the amount payable is not fixed, the amount
disclosed has been derived from interest rate and
foreign currency exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period.
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HE2021F12831HILLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3  BMEERERE &
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBRREZE @)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) © TEELERE &)
Repayable Carrying
on demand/ Total  amount at
less than 3 months 1-2 25 Over5 undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years years  cash flows 2021
HERME/ FER g
=fERNUA =fiRE —-£E MEE REkE 1283182
B -f ki3 f BENE L REE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
¥-lao0 Bir  EEFm Beir  EEFm Beir BT
2021 021%
Non-derivative financial liabilities it emnaR
Trade payables R 389,337 - - - - 389,337 389,337
Other payables HtERTE 161,288 - - - - 161,288 161,288
Borrowings [EE 11416 192,995 51,951 257,420 381,569 895,351 752,642
Lease liabilities fEBE 32,649 12,251 264,991 521,609 1,053,959 1,985,465 1,589,633
Total fit 594,690 305,252 316,942 719,029 1,435,528 3,431,441 2,892,900
Repayable Carrying
on demand/ Total amount at
less than 3 months 1-2 25 Over  undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years 5 years cash flows 2020
BEREE/ RER g
ZEBNA G —EE MEE ReRE 1283182
& - i3 hik:3 LENE &8 REE
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
BEFT BT BEFT BT BEFT BEfr BEFT
2020 20205
Non-derivative financial liabilities it EmaR
Trade payables TR 204,622 - - - - 204,622 204,622
Other payables AfEMHE 154,540 - - - - 154,540 154,540
Borrowings (= 5,985 17,157 2751 133,563 406,105 590,321 482,932
Lease liabilities fEak 49,689 179,385 296,948 237,356 765,866 1,529,244 1,134,412
Total ait 414,836 196,542 324,459 370,919 111,971 2,478,721 1,976,506
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(c)

3.2

Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the year.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
borrowings disclosed in Note 27 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy -
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debts.
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3.3

(a)
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B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

3 WMBEREREE

Fair value measurements of financial 33 EMIAZAREENE
instruments
Fair value hierarchy @ AAEEER
This section explains the judgements and AEBNEER G BHRE
estimates made in determining the fair values PRIREANBEFENE
of the financial instruments that are recognised MTERAEBEMELNH E
and measured at fair value in the consolidated Ktste- ABHAEMEEANE
financial statements. To provide an indication BEPFAMABE I RELIER
about the reliability of the inputs used in AEFECDREHENRERE
determining fair value, the Group has classified EMIENDAZEER BFR
its financial instruments into the three levels R RETRE
prescribed under the accounting standards. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SRR FZHRER F=RER =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BlETT  BETT  EBETT  BETT
Recurring fair value 20215128318 L
measurements as at 31 ARBEFE
December 2021
Financial assets at FVPL BALEEFTARDZ
Debt securities-unlisted FRAEMBETERRS 380,721 - - 380,721
Investment funds REEE - - 916,226 916,226
Wealth management products 3281 E @ - - 23,852 23,852
Other securities Hitizg 5 - - 1,093,304 1,093,304
Financial assets at FVOC/ BAREEFARMZEH
Wz EMEE
Other securities Hithzs 185,025 - - 185,025
Total i 565,746 - 2,033,382 2,599,128
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(a)

3 WMBEREREE

Fair value measurements of financial 33 MIAZAREENE @
instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) @ AAEEERE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BRI FEZHRRR  E=HRRE A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  BEFT  EBETFT BETFT
Recurring fair value 112020512831 & &%
measurements as at 31 AREEHE
December 2020
Financial assets at FVPL BAREBEFAERZ
EHEE
Debt securities NRTIBETERSE 278,463 = = 278,463
Investment funds REES - = 717,663 717,663
Wealth management products 28 & @ - - 134,909 134,909
Total =L 278,463 = 852,572 1,131,035

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
for both years.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into
and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
at the end of the year.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(a)

(b)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

° the use of quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for similar instruments, if
appropriate, with adjustment for discount
of lack of marketability;

o for investment funds — stated with
reference to recent transaction prices or
the net asset values of the investment
funds; and

o for other financial instruments -

discounted cash flow analysis
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F128318LEEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of level 3 fair value
measurements of financial assets

The following table presents the changes in level
3 items for the years ended 31 December 2020

MBRAKRER (@)
33 TMIRZAAEESE @

©) SRR EH T REZAAEME
E:)7 3
TREYEHZE2020F12831H
K2021FE12B31HIEEFEEZSE

and 2021: R RIEE 22
Wealth
Investment Other management
funds securities products
KREES HithiE % BHER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2020 2020F181H 238,569 - 527,194
Gain recognised in the REa2ARRRERD 2 WE
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 4,834 - 4,525
Additions HE 988,097 - 1,298,369
Disposal HE (515,961) - (1,726,889)
Exchange differences ERELE 2,124 = 31,710
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F128318 K
1 January 2021 20211818 717,663 - 134,909
Gain recognised in the REd2mimRED 2 lE
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 32,789 122,272 11,399
Additions HE 259,708 965,875 179,333
Disposal HE (98,975) - (302,471)
Exchange differences ERER 5,041 5,157 682
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 916,226 1,093,304 23,852

There was no transfer between levels 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EiZE2021F12831HILFE

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair

value of level 3 fair value measurements

3

The following table summarises the quantitative

information about the significant unobservable

inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value

measurements (see (b) above for the valuation

techniques adopted):

MBERER (&

33

(d)

TMIRZANEESE (@

BRI ZHREELAEE
BZIEHBEHAREAAEE
HIR 7
TREBLBRAE = RRH =/
EEZARBEEFMAIEF
FERELEEEZEHBERANTE
EBE M - FIRMWEYE E (MERM
B2 EX(b)e

Fair value at Range of inputs
RFFBMZRAAEE YEHAER
Un-observable Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description 2021 2020 inputs* 2021 2020 to fair value
JEREBEMEZH
bi:pan BHA* FREBEMEZBBRRARRAABEZHAE
HKS'000  HK$'000
BEFT EET
Wealth management 23,852 134,909  Expected rate of 1.35% to 0.88% to Increase/decrease 10% (2020: 10%) of the
products return 2.90% 4.35% expected rate of return would increase/
decrease the fair value measure by
HK$21,000 (2020: HK$119,000)
BHER B lEE 1.35%% 0.88%% FHERELM,H10% (20205  10%)
2.90% 4.35% BERARBEFEEM/ AL B
21,0007% (20204 : %#£119,0007T) °
* There were no significant inter-relationships i JFREBREEREHAZH

between unobservable inputs that materially affect

fair values

TEEHRAABEEREKR
FEZERBEBRGF-
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MBRAKRERE (&
EMIRZAREESE (@)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value measurements of financial 3.3

230

(d)

instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair
value of level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The management determined the fair value of
the investment funds with reference to recent
transaction prices or by reviewing the valuations
of the underlying investments held by respective
investment funds to assess the appropriateness of
the fair values of the investment funds.

The management determined the fair value of the
other securities classified as FVPL with reference
to market value at the end of the reporting
period. These securities have restriction of trading
for 1 years. The fair value measurement reflects
the effect of such restriction. Therefore, the fair
value is determined by the market price adjusted
by a discount rate for lack of marketability of
10%.

Should the discount rate for lack of materiality
increase or decrease for 5%, the impact to
the fair value of the these securities as at 31
December 2021 would be HK$60,618,000 (2020:
HK$Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(e)

3.4

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes
a team that performs the valuations of financial
instruments required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team
reports directly to the senior management and
the audit committee. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the senior
management and the valuation team at least once
every six months, in line with the Group's half-
yearly reporting periods.

Changes in level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed
at the end of each reporting period during the
half-yearly valuation discussion among the senior
management, audit committee and valuation
team. As part of this discussion, the team
presents a report that explains the reason for the
fair value movements.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar
agreements

The Group has no such financial assets or
financial liabilities outstanding in the consolidated
statement of financial position which are
under master netting agreements. No material
impact on the amounts reported in the Group's
consolidated financial statements and respective
disclosures relating to the Group’s master netting
agreements as no such contracts outstanding.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which,
by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a) Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment on an annual basis. For the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the
recoverable amount of cash-generating units
(CGQUs) was determined based on value-in-use
calculations which require the use of assumptions.
The calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated in Note 15. There growth rates are
consistent with forecasts included in industry
reports specific to the industry in which CGU
operates.

Details of impairment change, key assumptions
and impact of possible changes in key

assumptions are disclosed in Note 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(b)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation of the fair value and impairment
of certain financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions used and the impact of changes to
these assumptions see Note 3.3(a).

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1.
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234

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(c)

(d)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)

Recognition of deferred tax asset for carried-
forward tax losses

No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$697,781,000 (2020: HK$684,128,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
In cases where probable taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised and the amounts are
confirmed by the IRD, a deferred tax asset may be
recognised.

Estimation of the fair values of investment
properties

Information about the valuation of investment
properties are provided in Note 14.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.2
(a)

Critical accounting judgements
Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management
considers all facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive to exercise an extension
option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of car parks operating rights, the
following factors are normally the most relevant:

o If there are significant penalty payments
to terminate (or not extend), the Group is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or
not terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are
expected to have a significant remaining
value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

° Otherwise, the Group considers other
factors including historical lease durations
and the costs and business disruption
required to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in offices and vehicles
leases have not been included in the lease liability,
because the Group could replace the assets
without significant cost or business disruption.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F128318LEEE

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements
(continued)

(b) Classification of an asset held for sale
On 15 January 2021, the Group entered into
the sale and purchase agreement to disposal the
all equity interests in Shougang Resources held
by the Group. The completion of the proposed
disposal is subject to and conditional upon the
fulfillment of certain conditions precedent. The
management considers that the disposal to be
highly probable. This investment in Shougang
Resources is therefore classified as an assets held
for sale. For details, please refer to note 18(A).

(c) Recognition of revenue under service

concession arrangements

Revenue related to construction services under
a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on whether the project falls within the
scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession
Arrangements and the stage of completion of the
work performed at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R T

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5
The Group has been principally engaged in parking

business, infrastructure and

real estate fund

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

management business and investment holding.

EEREROSBER

AEBIBEREFEHITES ER
BREAHEERCEREBTRREER

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

Revenue recognised during the years are as follows: FRNEBEBZWANT
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Revenue under HKFRS 15: RIBE B SR EERFE 1558
BRZUA -
Carpark income FEEIRA 413,373 337,250
Revenue from service concession R R ELTH A
arrangements 135,130 86,009
Fund management services income  E&EIERFEWA 174,478 207,877
Excess return from investment funds & &S BEEDLIRK 246,583 =
Others HAth 23,244 12,141
992,808 643,277
Revenue under other accounting RIBEMEHERBIZUWA :
standards:
Leasing income HEWRA 64,819 57,743
Investment gain on financial assets AR EEAEBRZ
at FVPL ETMEBEEZKE R 137,404 4,834
Total revenue @z A 1,195,031 705,854
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
Timing of revenue recognition WA B B2 Y B B
— Overtime —F— R 992,808 643,277
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision makers, being the executive directors of the
Company, that are used to make strategic decisions
and resources allocation. The Group’s businesses are
managed according to the type of products and services
they provide. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision makers have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as
follows:

Parking business — management and

("Parking”) operations of car
parking assets
Infrastructure and real estate — management of

fund management business private funds and

("Fund management”) infrastructure real
estate investment

trusts (“REITs")
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EXRERSHEN (B
(continued)
Segment revenue and results DEERERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTAAEREXBERERLEED
results by operating and reportable segments. B E2|MDEBIEL 2 DHf°
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12831HIEEFE
Fund
Parking  management Others Total
BEHT E&ER Hit =H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT AEFT BEFT
Revenue from external customers ~ RESMPEF ZHA 613,322 558,465 23,204 1,195,031
Segment profit/(loss) PEER /(B8 14,044 427,763 (3.143) 438,664
Segment profit/loss) incluces: PEEF (65) B -
Excess return from investment funds ~ E& 2 EBHERE - 246,583 - 246,583
Share of results of associates BUEMERRZEE - 4,222 - 4222
Share of results of joint ventures BUAERR ER 117,150 (2,324) - 114,826
Administration expenses ERER (155,410)
Dividend income BREWA 254,669
Finance costs HBHE (1,640)
Other income, net and HtgAZER
others gains, net Hith s 28 71,313

Provision for impairment of
investment in an associate
Share of results of associates

Loss hefore income tax

—EREAGZRERE
BRER
BUEBEADZER

FRAT S AI R

(1,615,179)
12,410

(989,113)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EiZE2021F12831HILEFE

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EEERTEER &
(continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEEXRGERER (B
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F 12831 HIEEFE
Fund
Parking management Others Total
BEb ELER Hit =H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BT BB
Revenue from external customers ~ RESMIZF ZHA 481,002 212,711 12,141 705,854
Segment profit/(loss) PEER/ (B8 142,677 185,046 (8,652) 319,071
Segment profit/loss) incluces: AEBEF (65) 8F -
Share of results of associates 0 NG = (4.391) S (4,391)
Share of results of joint ventures BUEAEREI2 2R 344,069 = = 344,069
Administration expenses EEER (67,056)
Finance costs MBRE (2,756)
Other income, net and Hi AR 8 R
others gains, net HtEB3E 75,065
Share of results of associates BUMERT EE 347,711

Profit before income tax BRATEIRE R 672,035
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 ERERSBEN B
(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities SHEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and UTHAAEREERABREERD
liabilities by reportable segment: ERVEH 2 2T
As at 31 December 2021 #2021F12H31H
Fund
Parking  management Others Total
BEMLT ESER Hit =H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT AEFT BEFT
Total segment assets PHEERH 4,248,582 537,348 1,424 4,787,354
Total segment assets incluce: DHEEREEE
Investments in associates REEREZRE - 173,538 - 173,538
Investments in joint ventures REEREIZRE 843,764 10,930 - 854,694
Time deposits with maturity over three % 33(ER RIS EHEN
months 100,000
Bank balances and cash RITESRRE 2,573,462
Asset classified as held for sale RERENEE 3,511,510
Unallocated assets FRBEE 2,409,916
Consolidated assets mEE 13,382,242
Total segment liabilities PHEERE 2,692,031 139,102 25,679 2,856,812
Unallocated liabilities RANBEE 297,023
Consolidated liabilities BaR 3,153,835
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12831HLEEE

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 ESEBERIBER @)
(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities NEHEERER
As at 31 December 2020 72020 12831H
Fund
Parking management Others Total

BEHT 2o EE Htt At

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

BT BT BETT BETT
Total segment assets PHEERT 3,525,922 767,930 13,773 4,307,625
Total segment assets incluce: DHEEREEE
Investments in associates REEATZRE = 159,840 = 159,840
Investments in joint ventures REERTZRE 656,143 = S 656,143
Bank balances and cash BIEGHRES 3,738,533
Investments in associates REEATZRE 5,109,847
Unallocated assets KNBEE 969,627
Consolidated assets BEE 14,125,632
Total segment liabilities PHEBETE 2,075,818 73,127 14,687 2,163,632
Unallocated liabilities *NBaRE 42,702
Consolidated liabilities mag 2,206,334
As at 31 December 2021, there was no unsatisfied R2021F12B31H  TEKREITHNE
performance obligations (2020: Nil). #FT5 (20204 | 4H)
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B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EXRERSHEN (B
(continued)
Other segment information Hith B &k
2021 2021
Fund
Parking  management Total
BEHT HEEE af
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETFT BETFT BEFT
Additions to non-current assets (Note) ~ JERENEERE (H52) 58,784 - 58,784
Additions to right-of-use assets FRREERE 570,716 - 570,716
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERREITE
equipment 6,476 606 7,082
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 180,260 6,604 186,864
Provision for impairment losses EWERTUR B IBEE
for trade receivables 717 1,001 1,718
Written-off of a trade receivable A FE AR R - 69,013 69,013
2020 2020
Fund
Parking management Total
FEHT EEEE =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT
Additions to non-current assets (Note) ~ JERENEERE (H52) 2,015,089 - 2,015,089
Additions to right-of-use assets FRREERE 951,640 64,015 1,015,655
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERREITE
equipment 2,062 3,969 6,031
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 137,370 15,487 152,857
Provision for impairment losses EWERTRESIBEE
for trade receivables 1,071 - 1,071

Note:

Non-current assets exclude those assets arising from the
acquisitions of investments — non-current, right-of-use
assets, and deferred tax assets.

e FRBEEFCAEBRBRBEENR

E-JERE ERAREEMELRS
MEE -
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information

The non-current assets, operations and substantially all
of the customers are located in the PRC which is the
country of domicile of the relevant entities of the Group.
Accordingly, no further analysis of revenue from external
customers and non-current assets by geographical
location is presented.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of total sales from continuing
operations of the Group are as follows:

SXEERDHER (&)

& Ek

FRBEE - EEAFELERBZ
BABIBERHUNASERBFERE
ZFRERR > RE - FIL > 3 HE LA
REXEB2IKRBMNBERL ZWMARK
FERBEERMEDBZE—FT DI

BEREEZERZEN
REEFERTERBRBFELEE
BIHEREEMBRI0%ZER I
AMF

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
BT EMEF T
Customer A’ ZAA 266,972 N/A2
Notes: Wizt
1 Revenue from fund management segment 1 REEZEEEES I Wa=
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of 2 HEEWATEEAEEHELTEI0%

the total revenue of the Group
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Contract assets

As at 31 December 2021, contract assets which
are presented as concession rights and receivables
under service concession arrangements amounted to
HK$124,017,000 (2020: HK$88,274,000).

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the provision of construction services for
the infrastructures during the period of construction
under the service concession arrangements. Pursuant to
the service concession arrangements, the Group receives
no payment from the grantors during the construction
period. The receivables under service concession
arrangements (including the contract assets therein) are
not yet due for payment and will be settled by service
fees to be received during the operating periods of the
service concession arrangements.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent advances received for the
services concession arrangement. Contract liabilities are
recognised until the points are redeemed or expired.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021 that was included in the contract liabilities as at 1
January 2021 is approximately HK$90,162,000 (2020:
HK$9,611,000).

5

EEERIBER (&)

BHEE

R2021F 128310 6NEEZ A
BRBETRELH T 2T REMNRE
W= A B B15124,017,00075(2020 ¢
7 £88,274,0007T)

ARBRVMERBEFEELHT
REZEZERFPARNOBDEDES
NEE - RERBEFECERS &
BEHBAERRAWREZEAZR
o lRBAFFAEZH THEKRRIE
(BEETNEEEE) BRI B
BBEERFHEFEHRETNEZSH
BWEBIRBEEITER

BHNERE
GREAEEARBREFCERHETZRA
WHmE-aNaEeEBEONE
BY By REFESD o

HFAFVENEEREE2021F
12B31HIEFERBDZW AN B
90,162,00075(2020 : ##9,611,000
TT) ©
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

OTHER INCOME, NET Hith A F%8
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
EEFT B F T
Dividend income & B U A 254,669 =
Government grant (Note) BT By (B 5E) 2,099 56,250
Interest income on bank deposits RITERF BUWA 39,271 83,287
Interest income from financial assets & RIE EF] BUA 2,252 10,135
Others H 9,326 (11,031)
307,617 138,641

Note: The amount represented government grants received
from the PRC local government authorities in respect of
subsidising the operating costs of subsidiaries, which were
immediately recognised as other income for the year as the
Group fulfilled all the relevant granting criteria.

e WARTEMSTBETERESHNE
BEBRFAREERANBITAEE
EXEEMEMBEBERER
ZEMYPUBER D ERNEMUA -

OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hthz=REE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Exchange gains/(loss), net ERWE, (B18) F8 38,734 (6,091)
Gain from changes in fair value of KREMELLEBEERES 2 WS
investment properties (Note 14) (HtzE14) 59,518 =
Fair value gain on financial assets at B AABEFABHZ
FVPL TRMEEZ AN EBERG 27,148 5,936
Others Hh 2,616 977
128,016 822
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OPERATING PROFIT

The Group’s operating profit is stated after charging the

followings:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

8 AEEAF

FEBEE DA EMNRUT :

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
EEFT BT
Employee benefit expenses (excluding BE®RFIZH (FEEES
benefits and interests of directors) B RF ) BEE9)
(Note 9) 239,746 158,263
Benefits and interests of directors BSEEMKEF = (HFE35)
(Note 35) 8,872 5,702
248,618 163,965
Construction cost BB A 117,992 72,208
Amortisation of other non-current HIEm BN E = 8 i
assets (Note 15) (Hrz£15) 34,864 14,811
Auditor’s remuneration Z BN =
— Audit service — BT IR 3,503 4,228
— Non-audit service —JETB RS 1,428 1,162
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ ¥ -BERREITE
equipment (Note 13(A)) (HtzE13(A)) 7,082 6,031
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE
(Note 13(B)) (#1z£13(B)) 186,864 152,857
Minimum lease payments under T REBFRE&SHENET 2
operating leases in respect of land ®{EEE (Ha1308))
and buildings (Note 13(B)) 23,213 18,124
Legal and professional expenses FEREEXER 23,392 28,850
Research and development expense  fff 2% & F3 12,284 5,186
Service and management fees charged B HIEE 2R &
by Shougang Group (Note 33(a)) BIBER (WWaE33(a) 2,990 2,990
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9  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEFEANZH FaEESEN
(EXCLUDING BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF )& E)
DIRECTORS)
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Basic salaries and allowances EA# & RoRR 192,391 142,444
Retirement benefits scheme BRREA F B H R
contributions 45,435 15,819
Share options granted to employees % ¥ {8 8 BB IR 1,920 =
239,746 158,263
Note: Wzt
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no forfeited HZE2021F 12831 HIEFE > BEATARIK
contributions were utilised by the Group to reduce its retirement £ 7 5 B R AR AR R AR A 5T B AR IR U AR
benefits scheme contributions (2020: Nil). (2020 : %) o
(i)  Five highest paid individuals () H"BESHAL
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the five HZE2021F12A31HIEFE
individuals whose emoluments were the highest rEEMEEENAERALE
in the Group include two (2020: one) directors, B4 (2020 . —%) EE 0 H
whose emolument is reflected in the analysis in M RPN IS 2 DT BE
Note 35. The emoluments paid/payable to the 2021 522020F12H831H L&
remaining three (2020: four) individuals during EEN FEMEGT=% (2020
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are F ) ALZEISIT
as follows:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Salaries, share options and e ROBAER
other benefits HihiaF] 5,365 7,532
Contributions to retirement BB E B HRR
benefit schemes 34 20
5,399 7,552
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EiZE2021F12831HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERAZH FERIFEFEF
(EXCLUDING BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF BfmE) &)
DIRECTORS) (continued)
(i)  Five highest paid individuals (continued) () IZBREHALE

The emoluments of the highest paid individuals

e AT ZMENNUTE

I o

fell within the following bands:

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
Emolument band i & &5 [E
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 71,000,001 E
7 11,500,0007C 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 ##%1,500,0017C&
2 000,0007T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 ##2,000,0017TE
2 500,0007C 1 1
3 4
10 FINANCE COSTS 10 BB
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interests on lease liabilities and HEaERRTERAE
bank borrowings 74,343 79,433
Less: Interest capitalised B BTREAZHER - (2,265)
74,343 77,168
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax expenses charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represents:

PRSIz th
Rira2ERERRINBZMERE
HRER

2021 2020

HK$000 HK$'000

BMEFT EMEF T

Current income tax in the PRC I E BV ERFT 1SR 74,545 52,701
Deferred income tax (Note 28) IRIEPRISHR (FY5E28) 37,622 (16,136)
Withholding tax TR 15,507 -
127,674 36,565

Over-provision for prior year DEFEEBLEEE (3.261) =
Income tax expense PR 124,413 36,565

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
assessable profit in 2021 (2020: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
Hong Kong assessable profit for both years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

China enterprise income tax

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
2021 (2020: 25%).

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement was effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if
there is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on any dividends distributable by its subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated.
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AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 FRiSMZW (@)
The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FRZMBEZHEGEEE W HERT
(loss)/profit before income tax per the consolidated T2 BFREReE (5Bi8) /aF HIRN
statement of comprehensive income as follows: S ¢
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BEF T
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense FRFF1SMR B2 Al (B548) /7% A (989,113) 672,035
Calculated at domestic tax rates AR M & 5T E AR B AR
applicable to profits in the EHENRIE
respective countries (120,380) 165,462
Tax effect of amount which are not ~ RETEEZRRA BN AE
deductible/(taxable) in calculating R, (BEER) SR
taxable income: BRE .
Share of results of associates BB EARES (3,103) (57,423)
Share of results of joint ventures BhaE T ES (29,287) (85,017)
Expenses not deductible for tax AE[Hf 2 B
purposes 279,477 7,570
Income not taxable for tax purposes  HEZRRUA (60,780) (34,931)
Tax loss not recognised REEDINFFEE 46,240 41,002
Withholding tax TR 15,507 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB ERWIEBIRIEEE
recognised - (98)
Over-provision in prior year DUEFEEBLEEE (3.261) =
Income tax expense for the year FEMEMRZ 124,413 36,565
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AAF5 ER R M 5E

HZE2021F12831HLEE

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The basic (loss)/earnings per share for the year is
calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable
to the owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year and excluding shares held for employee
share scheme (Note 25).

12

sk #BHE &BF

(a)

SREX (E18) &
rEESREXR (FiB) &
DERARNBDIEERERIFTEA
FE1E (B548) /& FIBR U AR FEE
BETZERMEFTIH KT
BREGE B St BRI R DT E
(MFE25) :

2021 2020
HK Cents HK Cents
Ml Bl
Basic (loss)/earnings per share ZAA TR ABEHERER
attributable to the owners (K518) /& ¥
of the Company (15.19) 9.62
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) SRERE (B8 BH

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the
year is calculated by dividing the adjusted (loss)/
profit attributable to the owners of the Company
which have taken into account the after-tax
interest and other related after-tax financing
costs on potentially dilutive ordinary shares by the
adjusted weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue which have taken into account the
additional ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming that all potentially dilutive
ordinary shares have been converted.

FRNERER (BB /&8
BRIEHBENMERBREAR S
BREDFAA (BB EF
EERIFAEREN BN EE
EWR BN S BRI EMAE
B FT1S IR & R B Al 2 BR DUAE 8
BNWAFERTEBERMET
B EERBERRFIAFER
BHNEERkESEEHBMEN
BTHZER-

2021 2020
HK Cents HK Cents
Ml Bl
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share &xA B ¥EAE A B EREE
attributable to the owners of  (&538) /& #
the Company (15.19) 9.57
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 #ik (S8 B &

() Reconciliations of (loss)/earnings used in (0 BRHAESRK (EE) Bz
calculating (loss)/earnings per share (§518) BFHER

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Basic (loss)/earnings per SRELX (F58) BF
share

(Loss)/profit attributable to the AR EESRER (B1E)
owners of the Company used BB ZA&EATEE A
in calculating basic (loss)/ FE(L (B518) i@ F)

earnings per share (1,095,327) 658,613
2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$°000

BEFT EMEF T

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share  EiRiHRE (58) BF
(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners AR st EEREA
of the Company used in calculating (B518) ‘Bz

basic (loss)/earnings per share KABHEB AEWL
(B518) & #) (1,095,327) 658,613
Add: interest savings on convertible il : BRI ESRERE
bonds used in calculating (5518 ‘’Fz
diluted (loss)/earnings per share AERESH
MEHE - 2,492

(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners BB st B SR HERE
of the Company used in calculating (BB ‘'z
diluted (loss)/earnings per share RABIHEB AEMS
(B518) imFl (1,095,327) 661,105
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12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12 #ikk(EB) B &

(d) Weighted average number of shares d) FALEZRPZMEFY
used as the denominator 2
2021 2020
Number of Number of
shares shares
RIPEE BihEE
‘000 ‘000
TR T2

Weighted average number of ordinary 1E&QFARTEER

shares used as the denominator in BEX (B8 &'z

calculating basic (loss)/earnings per TR N

share 7,212,673 6,848,465
Adjustment for calculation of diluted Bt HERFERE

(loss)/earnings per share in relation (F518) /BF|hH

to convertible bonds Al E R ESEREN
A - 56,214

Weighted average number of ordinary fEAD SRR ESR

shares and potential ordinary Wi (51| ’BAlz

shares used as the denominator in ZiERMETEH

calculating diluted (loss)/earnings (H1 %)

per share (Note) 7,212,673 6,904,679
Note: Wi
The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted HE2021FE 12831 ILEEEREXR
in the calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per REE (BB5iE) /B IREN T @G
share for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been TN RE S 15 8 24 30 [ 7 £ B PG W S B =t
arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the BT AEESSZRH-

Group under the shares incentive plan of the Group.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(e)

(f)

Effects of convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued and converted
during the year are considered to be potential
ordinary shares and have been included in the
determination of diluted (loss)/earnings per share
from their date of issue. The convertible bonds
have not been included in the determination of
basic (loss)/earnings per share. Details relating to
the convertible bonds are set out in Note 23.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for basic (loss)/earnings per share has been
restated taking into account the effect of the
share consolidation being effective on 30 March
2020 as disclosed in Note 24.

Effects of share option

Options granted to employees under the share
incentive plan are considered to be potential
ordinary shares. These are performance-based
share option with a number of performance
conditions. As the performance conditions were
not met as at 31 December 2021, the options
are not included in the determination of diluted
(loss)/earnings per share. Details relating to the
options are set out in Note 25.

AR e MR M EE

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

12 Sk @R BN GE

(e)

()

ABRESFZRE

FRBETREBRNIEIRES
ERABEZBERREMD TEH%
FITHEFASKHRE (H8)
S BANEEFR o EIRES K
TASKRER (BB BIHW
FEF BRI EIRESNFE
BN MIEE23 0

SREX (BB BAZES
RMEFHHEEEEY > BHEHERR
MEHBER202053830H A
(P24 58) -

BRREZZE
RIFRERETE B FTETH
BREREABEZER -
BENREENRRE LAFS
BEEKRG -BREZE20214F
12A3THEAERGREER B
CEREFOETSERERE (B
B/ BANEF -BREER
RIS BB AP 5E25 ©
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

13(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13(A) % ~ IR EE B s 1
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
i
HEMELEE KERZE RE EL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BETFT
At 1 January 2020 1#2020%181H
Cost 3% 13,911 13,014 2,601 29,526
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (2,811) (6,880) (2,601) (12,292)
Net carrying amount RAFE 11,100 6,134 = 17,234
Opening net carrying amount  HA#IERE S (E 11,100 6,134 = 17,234
Addition RE 905 26,746 = 27,651
Depreciation e (984) (5,047) = (6,031)
Disposal HE - (8) = (8)
Exchange difference ERELE (60) 962 = 902
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 10,961 28,787 - 39,748
At 31 December 2020 1#2020%12H31H
Cost D& 14,969 40,703 2,799 58,471
Accumulated depreciation RETE (4,008) (11,916) (2,799) (18,723)
Net carrying amount IREEE 10,961 28,787 = 39,748
Opening net carrying amount ~ HA#)8RE & 10,961 28,787 = 39,748
Addition e 14 2,141 - 2,155
Depreciation nE (1,140) (5,942) = (7,082)
Disposal HE - - - -
Exchange difference ERE 133 709 = 842
At 31 December 2021 120216128318 9,968 25,695 35,663
At 31 December 2021 1#2021E12831H
Cost BEN 15,177 43,850 2,881 61,908
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (5,209) (18,155) (2,881) (26,245)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,968 25,695 35,663

256

During the year ended 31
impairment loss (2020: Nil) was provided for.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021F12831HLLEE

13(B) LEASES

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

13(B) &

MBRREEHI AT REERE
£5 .

VPN
[ =}
SN
LE

() REEMBRAREIZE

statement of financial position 1]
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°000
ABEFT BT
Right-of-use assets FREEE
Office premises BFIEYE 2,540 6,150
Car parking assets FEEE 2,202,228 1,747,020
2,204,768 1,753,170
Lease liabilities HEasE
Current R 77,275 122,828
Non-current JERE 1,512,358 1,011,584
1,589,633 1,134,412

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the
2021 financial year were HK$570,716,000 (2020:
HK$1,015,655,000).

P20 1A EE FREEE
N A #570,716,00075(2020 -
#1,015,655,0007T) ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F128318LEEE

13(B) LEASES (continued) 13(B) 1HE (&
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) RiFe2ERERERIZE
statement of comprehensive income %8
The consolidated statement of comprehensive GecEWlmEKRHEI AT EA
income shows the following amounts relating to BEEM &%
leases:
2021 2020
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
=23 BIEFT BT
Depreciation charge of FHEEEZIFEER
right-of-use assets
Office premises BFIBYE 3,721 3,675
Car parking assets FEEE 183,143 149,182
8 186,864 152,857

Interest expense (included in #] 2B

finance costs) GPNZE D% 10 50,533 31,376
Expense relating to short-  f2HAFA SARRARE =

term leases (included in G AITEZ 1)

administrative expenses) 8 23,213 18,124
73,746 49,500

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was 2021 FHEZIRE R H4E
HK$247,391,000 (2020: HK$291,000,000). A AM247 391,0007T(2020 - /%

#291,000,0007T) ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

13(B) LEASES (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various office premises and
car parking assets. Lease contracts are typically
made for periods of 1 to 20 years, but may have
extension options as described in (iv) below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included
in a number of leases across the Group. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group's operations. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.

AR e MR M EE

HZE2021F12831HILLEE

13(B) & (&

(iii)

(iv)

FEBZAEEHREARK
AR

AEEERZERTENER
FEEE-HEGNBEZRAHE
12205 5T T X E(iv)IE
Fir #itt BT 388 42 F LUEHA o FA E R X
DEENEEGEEESZSE
N EVMEFR R & 14 o FE & 17555 WL
BN AE R 3255 o

FEARRE R A8 L1

AEBRTHNZEEEHESIE
IR AR IEE - BT RRZRIL
EREEELXAEEEEMAE
ELrRERAEERE I IR
A BB 73 HE HA i R A% LR R AJ A
AEBITE  EEALBAARTIT
fig o
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HZE2021F12831HLEE

14 KEYE

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
EEFT BT
At fair value BANEE
Opening balance at 1 January P18 1H Z BB 4 R 158,521 148,856
Addition (Note) wNE (K1) 34,130 -
Change in fair value recognised in RiFe2ER@ERPEDZA
the consolidated statement of nBEEE (H577)
comprehensive income (Note 7) 59,518 -
Exchange differences bE 7 = RE 5,297 9,665
Closing balance at 31 December B12831H 2 HAR & B8R 257,466 158,521

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has acquired

o=

E BN ERLBELE34,130,0007c R IERUEE—

a carpark building of HK$34,130,000 in Beijing. EE(REIZ KIE o
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of MEEMENGS2ERGERAES
comprehensive income for investment properties: ZEEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Rental income WA 5,212 3,031
Direct operating expenses REBELHEWAZYEZ
from properties that generated BEEKETH
rental income (2,762) (2,863)
Gain from changes in fair value of KREMELINEBEREH 2
investment properties (Note 7) Wz (B1aE7) 59,518 =

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and

maintenance (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties situated in Chengdu and Beijing are
performed by the external independent valuer, China
United Assets Appraisal Group Co., Ltd to determine the
fair value of the investment property as at 31 December
2021.

Valuation of the Group’s investment property situated
in Chengdu is performed by the valuation team of the
Group, to determine the fair value of the investment
property as at 31 December 2020.

Independent valuation of the Group’s investment
property situated in Hong Kong is performed by the
independent external valuer, AA Property Services
Limited, to determine the fair value of the investment
property as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The revaluation gains or losses are included in
“other gains, net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 7).

Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses the investment properties
carried at fair value, by fair value hierarchy levels.

14

AR e MR M EE

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

REWME (&

FEBUNRKEMIERNKEYED
BIUSBMEEMTMEENGERS
[RABETHIUMGE UEENR2021
FNRANBREVENAREE

FEBURRAENREYERLRE
BEEBERETBILIGEE UEBEER
2020F12B3 1 HEEYWEN A AE
B o

AREBUREENREMENEILG
BEhHBE IS HEMERE DY EER
BRABIETUEENR20214 52020
F1I2E3NHEEMENANBE

EfRaNEENFAGEEERT
RARTEMRmZER) (I5E7) -

AREERR

TREBBEEHZDNRAAEETD
fRZREYF-

Significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

JEREBEMEZ
BEHREAA (BE=HREKH)
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Recurring fair value measurements BEMARBESFE
Investment properties: BEME
Carpark building — Beijing FESARE-IR 83,595 -
Carpark building - Chengdu EEBRIE W 166,671 151,321
Residential building - Hong Kong ETEE-FE 7,200 7,200
257,466 158,521
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AAF5 ER R M 5E

HZE2021F12831HLEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 RBEYXE @)
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AEBNKREANEEELENERE
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date BNBRAELAEHENRILAEE
of the event or change in circumstances that causes the EBHhzEEAREL -FRN > FE—HKR
transfer. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and AN B AR E =R AR ZE
3 during the year. Al R B4 o
Fair value measurements using significant RAEERRUEEEEHERADN
unobservable inputs (Level 3) [REESE (BE=ZREF)
Carpark Carpark Residential
building - building - building -
Beijing Chengdu Hong Kong Total
FEEAE FHEZAR EE
= - -&# Mt
HK$°000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETFT BETFT BETFT BEFT
Opening balance at K2021F18182
1 January 2021 R - 151,321 7,200 158,521
Acquisition HE 34,130 - - 34,130
Gains recognised in other gains R EM G2 I 48,303 11,215 - 59,518
Exchange differences ERELE 1,162 4,135 - 5,297
Closing balance at R2021£1283182
31 December 2021 R 83,595 166,671 7,200 257,466
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

REWME (&

RAFEBERMEEZEREAAN
AREEE (BEZREH) @)

Carpark Carpark Residential
building - building - building -
Beijing Chengdu Hong Kong Total
FERISAE FERIFAE E
-¥x — B —-&% Mt
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BETFT
Opening balance at R2020181BZ
1 January 2020 P = 141,656 7,200 148,856
Exchange differences ERELE = 9,665 = 9,665
Closing balance at 120201283102
31 December 2020 HAR A AR - 151,321 7,200 158,521
Valuation processes of the Group EEEGERE

The Group's investment properties were valued at 31
December 2021 by independent professionally qualified
valuers who hold a recognised relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. For
all investment properties, their current use equates to
the highest and best use.

The Group’s senior management reviews the valuations
performed by the independent valuers for financial
reporting purposes.

At each financial year end the senior management:

o verifies all major inputs to the valuation;

° assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation; and

° holds discussions with the internal valuation team
and independent valuers.

NREBZREYWETHFTBEARNMAE
FEXEREZT N EHEMREER
EMENIMBROBEEGHELSRDN
BIUBEXSERMGEEMN20215F128
BTHETHE -MMEREYMEMS
HERKFEAYAREARERRC

rERESREEEERBIGEMM
MBREMS PRETHMRE
REMBREFER SHREEE :

. RBEHENPMEZIZHEHA

. FEMELREERRBTFEE
HENES ; &

. FHERSGENERBIMG
(EEESE R
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation techniques

The Group obtains valuations for its investment
properties at least annually.

At the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent valuations.
The directors determine a property’s value within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar properties. Where such
information is not available the directors consider
information from a variety of sources including:

o current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature or recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, adjusted to
reflect those differences

o discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows

o capitalised income projections based upon a
property’s estimated net market income, and a
capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of
market evidence.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.
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FEREVEF-ARHEREWER
SaEe.

RERSHR EFUEERRAN
HEENRENEVWENRIABEN
FME-BENGEQAABEMGSHE
WNEEYXBE

AREBEENRERESBEBELUNYE
EEBTHENERBR - WREIRE
ERBEN EFNEEREEXEZHAE
NEK 81 !

. TRTENYER ERTHH
ERERUBLUIPEELERD
EEMHBPARER (AR
BR_E3tE RAFHERE)

. BIBEARRREREN A FE A5
MmBEANFERERE
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14
Valuation techniques (continued)

The following table analyses the level 3 investment
properties carried at fair value, by valuation techniques.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

REWE (&
HERM (&

TREGERMDOTE ZHRRAKE
ME @R AREBETIER) -

Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Property Fair value at 31 December  technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
FaEELEZ
FREBBEEZ NG
ES ’2B31AZAREE  HERSE BBEA FREERNEZUBUAEE A/BEZRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
HKS'000 HK$ 000
BT FEFT
Carpark building - Beijing 83,595 Market approach Comparable’ s unit RMB258,000 N/A The higher the unit
BERAE-LR [k ) selling price per parking TER  selling price, the
LEMEZBUER space higher the fair
SEGE value
AEH BUEEER AnE
258,0007% BHE
Carpark building - 166,671 151,321 Income approach (discounted ~ Comparable" s unit RMB120,000 -  RMB80,000 - The higher the unit
Chengdu cash flow) and market selling price RMB150,000  RMB150,000 selling price, the
FEFRE-HB approach ALEYEZEMERE  per parking perparking  higher the fair
WAE BRRERE) k5% space space  value
SEFEM SEGSEN BUEEHR ARE
AE%120,000  AE80,000 s
TEAEE TEARE
150,0007T 150,0007¢
Rental rates 3% over 5% from  The higher the growth
growth rate 3 years 1-5 years, the first rate, the
REEXRHEX 3EN EA3% and 2.5%  higher the fair
[ater on value
BIESER BRXHE AnEE
5% FEA Hs
2.5%
Discounted rate 6.27% 7%  The higher the discount
BRE rate, the lower the
fair value
EREUE AnEBE
peas
Capitalisation rate 3.27% 5% The higher the
BER{ELEX capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value
BACLEES 25
EEHEE
Residential building - 7,200 7,200  Income approach (term and  Term rate 2% 2% The higher the term
Hong Kong reversionary method) i lES rate, the lower the
HEg-54 WA (EBRESE) fair value
RBtEEs ARE
BHE
Reversionary rate 2.5% 2.5% The higher the

BELE

reversionary rate,
the lower the fair
value

BRLEES ANE
=
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F128318LEEE

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 15 HERBEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
EWEFT BT T
Intangible assets (Note a) EmLEE (Wita) 145,899 57,440
Goodwill (Note b) EE (BaEh) 142,737 139,500
Others (Note ¢) HAth (At5tc) 124,971 142,030
413,607 338,970
Note: Htat .
(a) The carrying amounts of intangible assets as at 31 (a) B BEEZREREENR2021F128
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 31HAM2020F128318BWF ¢
Carpark Funds
Operating Concession management
Rights Rights contracts
(Note (1) (Note (i) (Note (i) Total
EHBREE B EEEEEN
(H1z20)) (HizE)) (i) 4ast
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BEFT BIEF T BT BT
At 1 January 2020 1202051818
Cost A 65,955 - 26,571 92,526
Accumulated amortisation Kt (17,046) = (8,793) (25,839)
Net carrying amount REFE 48,909 = 17,778 66,687
Opening net carrying amount  EA SR EEE 48,909 = 17,778 66,687
Amortisation charged HHER (8,960) - (4,067) (13,027)
Exchange differences ERER 2,807 = 973 3,780
At 31 December 2020 1120205128310 42,756 = 14,684 57,440
At 31 December 2020 1£2020512H318
Cost A 70,433 - 28,384 98,817
Accumulated amortisation RET# (27,677) - (13,700) (41,377)
Net carrying amount REFE 42,756 = 14,684 57,440
Opening net carrying amount  BREE 42,756 - 14,684 57,440
Transfer b - 105,420 - 105,420
Amortisation charged BHEER (9,070) (6,393) (4,827) (20,290)
Exchange differences ERERE 582 1,396 1,351 3,329
At 31 December 2021 12021FE12831H 34,268 100,423 11,208 145,899
At 31 December 2021 120215128310
Cost YA 72,302 106,906 30,167 209,375
Accumulated amortisation REtEH (38,034) (6,483) (18,959) (63,476)
Net carrying amount REZE 34,268 100,423 11,208 145,899
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(b)

Carpark operating rights represent the carpark operating
rights held by E Park Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“E
Park”), Urban Parking Beijing Limited (“Urban Parking”)
and their subsidiaries. The rights entitled the Group to
operate a number of carparks in the PRC for 3 years to 10
years over which the cost will be amortised.

Concession rights represents right to operate a number
of carparks in the PRC for 10 to 24 years over which the
cost will be amortised pursuant to service concession
arrangements.

Funds management contracts represent the contracts
entered by a subsidiary of the Group, Shoucheng Rongshi
(Beijing) Fund Management Company Limited (formerly
known as Jingji Tiancheng (Beijing) Fund Management
Company Limited) and its subsidiaries with other parties.
The contracts granted the Group to manage the funds
held on behalf of other contracting parties and receive
management income as return for 1 year to 10 years over
which the cost will be amortised.

Goodwill is allocated to the following cash generating units:

HERSEE (2
i3k © (4

(i) FESKERERFFE bR REE
EBRRAR) (MEEHE) 5 (ERN)
FEEEARARD (EHFEFE) kK
ENNBEARNFAENEESGEE#-
FERERETHEEZEFESS
FE10F HIERSHERMN A o

(i) B EEEPREEZEFEEHI0E
24F B - 7E UL HA B R AR SR AR 75 45
S E R BB RL A o

(iif) BT ERGNELAEEZNELATE
BRA (R E2EEARAS (B
BAREXR R BE2EEARA
B) REMBARREMALITIIZA
M-ZEANERAEEEEAREA
METNAFAEZEERWEEEREA
EREI%R  BEIFEZE105 R #
BRBLAS ©

(b) BAENEEUTHEELS T

Fund

Parking  management Total

FEHT HEEER st

HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BT BT BEFT

At 1 January 2020 1£2020181H 81,789 53,682 135,471
Exchange differences EREZRR 2,728 1,301 4,029
At 31 December 2020 12020%128318 84,517 54,983 139,500
Exchange differences ERELE 3,114 123 3,237
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 87,631 55,106 142,737

The balance mainly represents prepayment of expenditures
in relation of certain carpark operating projects.

(© ERTIEEERETEEEEERE
ZHRMNRIE-
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R #5 ¥R AR P 5

HZE2021F12831HLEE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

Goodwill impairment assessment

(i)

Impairment testing on Carpark operation

For the purpose of impairment testing, the
goodwill as set out above with carrying amount of
HK$87,631,000 (2020: HK$84,517,000) has been
allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU") in the
carpark operation segment.

The recoverable amount of the carpark operation
as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020
was determined based on value-in-use calculations.
The value-in-use calculations used cash flow
projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a pre-
tax discount rate of 12% (2020: 13%). Cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 5% (2020: 3%) growth rate for this CGU.

The key assumptions are budgeted revenue,
discount rate and growth rate determined based
on the management’s expectations for the market
development.

No impairment on this CGU was made for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the
recoverable amounts, which were the value-in-
use, exceeded the carrying amount. The directors
believed that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
the recoverable amount of the CGU.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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=R - BAAFHZRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Goodwill impairment assessment (continued)

(ii)

Impairment testing on fund management segment
For the purpose of impairment testing, the
goodwill as set out above with carrying amount
of HK$55,106,000 (2020: HK$54,983,000) has
been allocated to CGU in the fund management
segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from
fund management was determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations
use cash flow projection based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five — year
period and a pre-tax discount rate of 15% (2020:
15%). Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2020: 3%)
growth rate for this CGU. The key assumptions
are budgeted revenue, discount rate and growth
rate determined based on the management’s
expectations for the market development.

No impairment on this CGU was made for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the
recoverable amounts, which were the value-in-
use, exceeded the carrying amount. The directors
believed that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
the recoverable amount of CGU.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

15 EHthIERBEE (&

MizE : (#8)

(d) AR E G ()

(i)

H o BB 508 E B 5t
AETRENS  EXFEZ
&2 RmEEBKS5,106,000
7t (20204 : #¥554,983,000
7T ERESEENTNEE
BEELETe

EcEBEELENRSES
B kOB REE
BEEHEET FREE
HRAEREEBIANT
FHMBEEER15% (2020
F115%) RAERENES
MEEMN -BALEHES
RERRRRESELEBMNE
EB3% (20204 :3%) EE
EHEH - FEBRIAREEE
BrhmGERBHEECHE
HRA MBBEERIEERX.

R Ak El 48 BIMEREBE)
BEEREE UL E ZE2021
FR2020F12831BLEEE
TWERILRSEEETEL
BE-BEHMRAE TAZER
Rz AEAEEIEEH BT
CERRESELEETZER
MEBBRSELEETZO
U [o] 48 o

16 HEREISZEMIA

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAnBEFAHEMEZE YRR
ZEMEE 185,025 -
Financial assets at FVPL BARBESFAEBGRZ
EMEE 2,414,103 1,131,035
Financial assets at amortised cost BB AARZ ERHEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BFREKRIBEEEY) 3,108,717 4,588,415
Financial liabilities Ed )=
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ# RN AAEZ SHAEES 2,871,817 2,204,930
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AAF5 ER R M 5E

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

HZE2021F12831HLEE

31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Issued and fully

17 FEWWEAT

TERES2021F12831HHM2020F
12B31HZFEWNB AT :

Proportion of issued share/

Name of subsidiary operations paid share registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
RIS, BETR FARAREERTRG/
B AR R REME BHR R EME AR TERER
Directly Indirectly
E# ik
2021 2020 2021 2020
% % % %

Shoucheng Management Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - - Provision of management
Company Limited 5E Ordinary shares services

BREERRAT 7 8100,0007T RUEEERE

BER
Shoucheng Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary 100 100 - - Provision of management
BERBERAR A shares services
BEOTERR RUBEERS
Shouhe Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of asset
HABRAH A Ordinary shares management services
7#15,000,0007T REEEEERS
BBk

Shoucheng Rongshi (Beijing) The PRC RMB303,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of private fund
Fund Management Company HE AR management services
Limited* (formerly known 303,000,0007% RELSESERRS
as Jingji Tiancheng (Beijing)

Fund Management Company
Limited*)
(Note (i) and (ii))

BRRMEG (IR ELEEERAT

RIBARERR R RLEE
BIRATE) (H20)RMEH ()

Beijing West Fund Management ~ The PRC RMB90,000,000 - - 100 90 Provision of equity
Company Limited HE ARE investment
("Beijing West")* 90,000,0007% RERERE
(Note (i) and (ii))

IRRABAERERTER
BIRAT (W0 RM )

Beijing Shoutong Tianhe The PRC RMB105,049,935 - = 100 100 Provision of investment
Investment Limited* FE INELS management services
(Note (i) and (ii)) 105,049,9357% RUKEEER

IREBRERERRAF
(M) R M 22 i))

E Park Investment Management The PRC RMB1,182,155,326 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
Company Limited FE AR EEIgmg

(Note (i) and (iii)
BEE (bR REEEERAR
(520 R M &)

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

17  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 XEMBAR &
Place of
incorporation
or registration/  Issued and fully Proportion of issued share/
Name of subsidiary operations paid share registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
R szE R, B&Tk FARRBEERTRG/
MEARHAE R E BRERR AMERLH TELH
Directly Indirectly
B ik
2021 2020 2021 2020
% % % %

Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking The PRC RMB220,000,000 - - 99 99 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited ~ H1E] AR FEFLE
("Shouzhong Parking")* 220,000,00070
(Note (i) and (i)

TRETEEEERRAR
(=)

(HE20) R M2 i)

Beijing Lu Tong Shun Jie Car The PRC RMB20,851,500 - - 80 80 Carpark operation
Parking Management Company &l AR FEHEE
Limited* (Note (i) and (i) 20,851,5007¢

TREEIREFRGEE
BIRAR ()R M i)

E Park (Chengdu) Car Park The PRC RMB33,000,000 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited* ] AR FEFLE
(Note (i) and (ii) 33,000,00070

BEE (M) FEFEEERAR
(a2 ()Ri)

Nanjing Qinhuaizhuyi Car Parking ~ The PRC RMB4,000,000 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited* 1] AR #4,000,0007% FEFLE
(Note (i) and (i)

ARAEREFEEERRAR
(Hya () Redii)

Nanjing Shouginzhuyi Car Parking  The PRC RMB33,000,000 - - 98 98 Carpark operation
Management Company Limited* 1] AR FEFLE
(Note (i) and (i) 33,000,00070

ARERREFEEEARAR
(Hya () Redii)

Beijing Shouyuan Xinneng The PRC RMB30,000,000 - - 100 60 Provision of equity
Investment Management H NG Investments
Company Limited* 30,000,0007C RIUERERE
(Note (i) and (i)

TRETHEREERERAA
(52() R i)

Beijing Shouzhong Jingtai The PRC RMB200,000,000 - S 80 80 Carpark operation
Transportation Car Parking HE AR EHEBRE
Management Company Limited* 200,000,0007T
(Note (i) and (i)

TRETSERBEEEERR
RB) (M) R (i)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F128318LEEE

17

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(i) Limited company established in the PRC

(i) Subsidiaries under fund management segment
(iii) Subsidiaries under parking segment

*  For identification purpose only

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

None of the subsidiaries have non-controlling interests
that are material to the Group.

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

272

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2021 which, in the opinion of the directors,
are material to the Group. The entities listed below
have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares,
which are held directly by the Group. The country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is
the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18(A) REE AR ZIRE (&
All of these associates are accounted for using the equity REEHBRERPABLEEFEBRZ A

method in these consolidated financial statements. B ARNBEEREEIETER
The carrying amounts of investments in associates as at BEAB 2 REREENR2021F128
31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 318 #2020 12H31BWF ©

Proportion of
issued shares/

Place of Principal place Measurement registered capital held
Name of entity incorporation of operation  method by the Group Carrying amount Principal activities
FEABEEETRG/
R AMEIE TELEME HERE EMERZ LA REE TEEH
2021 2020 2021 2020
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Shougang Fushan Resources Hong Kong The PRC Equity method 28.98% 28.98% - 5,106,025 Coking coal mining,
Group Limited N HE s production and sale of
("Shougang Resources”) coking coal products
(Note (a) & (b)) and side products
ERBLERERERAT EEER EERHER
(TEWER)) (Hta)Rb) BEMREER
Immaterial associates below
UTAREABEAT
Beijing Vstartup Investment and ~ The PRC The PRC Equity method 21.77% 21.77% 138,774 133,512 Leasing of shared
Development Co., Ltd.* HE HE ik workplace for startups
TRAEAHRERBERRAR BAFHELZTE
2l
Beijing West Business Factoring  Hong Kong The PRC Equity method 11.68% 11.68% 20,106 22,521 Provision of trade
Company Limited* &% FE ik financing
REEEREFRAR REBZHE
Other immaterial associates 14,658 7,629
HiFEAREAT
173,538 5,269,687
*  For identification purpose only * (BB
Note (a) On 28 September 2020, Shougang Resources announced HtzE(@) 20209828 BB REHME T
that it completed a share buy-back transaction by [E1#%250,000,000% B2 15 > 4B R BA &
repurchasing a total of 250,000,000 shares at a total A 1500,000,0005c o B2 KM E
consideration of approximately HK$500,000,000. Such RERTFEREBEHE AEiHERED
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled during BEERM SIREAEEFAGERNE
the year. As a result of the share buy-back, the Group's TR H27.61% EFE28.98% » th3
interest in Shougang Resources increased from 27.61% SAREBTERAEMT1,194,00070H
to 28.98%. A gain on deemed acquisition of interest RRBEEENWEZ  WETAZE2020
in an associate of HK$71,194,000 was recognised and F1N2AMHLEFEZGZEaE2ERER
included as part of the share of results of associates in the FEEBE AEEE -

consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18(A) RIS AT ZIRE (&

BiaE®b) 12021 F 1B 158 A RABZE2EMN

Note (b) On 15 January 2021, Shoujing Yifei Holdings Limited

274

(“Shoujing Yifei”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sale and purchase agreement
(the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with King Rich
Group Limited (“King Rich”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang
Holding”), one of the substantial shareholders of the
Group, pursuant to which Shoujing Yifei conditionally
agreed to sell, and King Rich conditionally agreed to
purchase the sale shares (“Sale Shares”) which represent
the entire issued share capital of each of Excel Bond
Investments Limited (“Excel Bond"”), Fine Power Group
Limited and Fair Gain Investments Limited (collectively the
“Subject Companies”). The Subject Companies directly
and indirectly held 1,463,962,490 shares of Shougang
Resources which represents 28.98% of all issued shares
of Shougang Resources and all interests of Shougang
Resources held by the Group, at a consideration of
HK$3,513,509,976 (“"Proposed Disposal”).

Completion of the Proposed Disposal is subject to and
conditional upon the fulfillment of certain conditions
precedent, including, amongst others, the waiver from
King Rich’'s and/or Shougang Holding's obligation to
make a mandatory general offer for Shougang Resources’
shares not already owned or agreed to be acquired by
King Rich and its parties acting in concert (as defined in
the Code on Takeovers and Mergers (“Takeovers Code”)
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong (“SFC")) under Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code
as a result of the transactions contemplated under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement (”“Waiver”) having been
obtained from the SFC and remain valid and effective.

The management of the Group expected the Proposed
Disposal to be completed within one year. As a result,
the entire equity interests in Shougang Resources held by
the Group was reclassified as held for sale on 15 January
2021.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18(A) RIS AT ZIRE (&
Note (b) (continued) Hiztb) ()

On 18 February 2021, the Company published a
supplemental announcement stating that the Company
was informed that King Rich and Shougang Holding did
not successfully obtain a Waiver from the SFC. As a result,
on the same date, Shoujing Yifei and King Rich entered
into a supplemental agreement to amend and restate
the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Amended and
Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement”) such that
the Sale Shares under the Sale and Purchase Agreement
was amended as relating to the entire issued share capital
of Excel Bond (the “Revised Sale Share”) and the
consideration was revised as HK$1,440,000,000. It was
expected that at completion, Excel Bond will indirectly
hold 600,000,000 shares of Shougang Resources.

On 28 May 2021, the Amended and Restated Sale and
Purchase Agreement and other transactions contemplated
thereunder was approved in a general meeting of the
Company. Despite the amendment and restatement of
the Sale and Purchase Agreement above, there was no
change in overall business plan of disposal of all interests
of Shougang Resources held by the Group.

The equity interest in Shougang Resources classified as
held for sale during the year was measured at the lower
of the carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell
at the time of the reclassification and re-measured at
each period end. It was reclassified from investment in
associate to asset classified as held for sale and measured
at fair value less cost to sell on 15 January 2021. It was
subsequently re-measured at its fair value less cost to
sell as at 31 December 2021. The total impairment loss
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021 was
HK$1,615,179,000. The fair value of the equity interest
of Shougang Resources was determined with reference to
the market price of Shougang Resources as at 15 January
2021 and 31 December 2021 respectively.

On 27 January 2022, all the conditions precedent of the
Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement
have been satisfied and the sale of the entire issued share
capital of Excel Bond, which represented 11.88% of all
issued shares of Shougang Resources, took place.

R202152818H » KA ZEREM
MRENEHERKREMRINESS
EeRHSRR EHER SR
It > Shoujing Yifeif 2 REHF H %
MR mE MBI RETEE RS
(TRETRETEEHZE) ES
s T B9 RF & R 175 1B 5] ZExcel Bond
NeHBEETRE (TRETHFER
%1) > KRBT A8 11,440,000,000
TCo Fast e A BFExcel Bondi§REEEIFA
600,000,000/ B I E RS °

R20214F58288 R EIKREFTEE
pE R EBETRETZHEMRBER
NERRAG LEESHE-FBE Lt
BEERBRETTBINE A&
HERENENERENEANER
¥t mmeEfto

FRENERNRERESEARAE
RENEERERREAERANEE
WIHEMAFHNREESE > TRE
FAREMtEM2021FE18158%
REME AR ZREENDEATAR
ENEE WUARAABEREHEN
KAEE-FEHBE2021FE12831BUE
AABERBEERRNENTE-HE
20215F 128318 L FEANRBHRIE
5B 488 48 151,615,179,0007c° &
HERRENQAABEDNZEEH
BEIRF2021F18158 &20215FE128
3THNHIBERERE -

K2022F 18278 BRIETRETEE
%E T B ARG HEEEN Bb
B ERE2EEETRMNI1.88%H
Excel BondZ 2 & B &ETRAB TN
HE-
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

276

(i)

(i)

Contingent liabilities in respect of
associates

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have
any material contingent liabilities in respect of
associates (2020: Nil).

Summarised financial information of
material associates

Summarised financial information in respect
of each of the Group’s material associates
is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown
in the associates’ financial statements prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs. They have been
amended to reflect adjustments made by the
Group when using the equity method, including
modifications for differences in accounting policy.

18(A) L Bk
0]

(i)

BARIZIKRE (&
ERBEATNHAERE

HIEFE2021F12A318LEE
B AEBITRETAMNEE
NBEEAMNEAEE(2020EF :

p
diE) o
it

FTEMEATMBELIE

ERAEREIEBHEATNZ
MBERBEZEHIWMT - T5R
BENBZEREADRES
BUYBREENREZMBR
RFFT & -BEEAHNBETE
5] URPRAEEEEBER R
R BYEREE » IR 5t IR
ERNELE-

Shougang Resources =Fi=pd
2020
HK$'000
BT T
Current assets RENEE 6,901,499
Non-current assets ERBEE 14,532,147
Current liabilities mENEE 2,488,195
Non-current liabilities ERBERE 1,654,381
2020
HK$°000
BT T
Revenue EHERE 3,996,951
Profit for the year FEHF 1,187,283
Profit for the year attributable EIERERB A
to owners of Shougang FEAS T EE F)
Resources 1,080,041
Other comprehensive income  EEH 2 W a
for the year 482,759
Total comprehensive income  FEZ2ENFELEEE
for the year 1,670,042
Dividends received from the FEBWRBERBIRE
associate during the year 231,965

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EiZE2021F12831HILFE

18(A) REHE AR ZIE (@)

Summarised financial information of () FEHEATNUBERBE
material associates (continued) (#)
Shougang Resources (continued) BEE (&
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial T BEENBERESME
information to the carrying amount of the interest BREANBIBNMELAT 2R
in the associate recognised in the consolidated IREEZHER:
financial statements:
2020
HK$'000
BT
Net assets of Shougang EMERFEE
Resources 17,291,070
Non-controlling interests JEERR R (1,453,904)
15,837,166
Proportion of the Group's FEBRERERS
ownership interest in VR RERE 7 EE A
Shougang Resources 28.98%
4,589,611
Effect of fair value adjustments FUREERF A A B E
at acquisition BEZE (412,393)
Goodwill e 1,048,488
Other adjustments HhzEze (119,681)
Carrying amount of the REBNREHNERER Y
Group's interest in Shougang  BREIE
Resources 5,106,025
Note: Wzt

No summarised financial information of Shougang
Resources is presented as the equity interest in Shougang
Resource has been classified as held for sale during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

BEMERZE2MBRBENDOEATA
HENEE ALLRA#HT2021612
A31HENERMBENBIE-

BREERARAT 2021FFR 277



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F128318LEEE

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

18(A) REHE AR ZIRE (&

(i)

Summarised financial information of
material associates (continued)

Individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed
above, the Group also has interests in a number
of individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method.

0]

FTEMEATMBELIE
(#)

1EFIFEEX B E L A

FR ESORBERBE AR oI
AEETEREETERIFEKR
BMEATDNED UE@mEA
AR

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Aggregate carrying amount BRIIEEREE ABNREE
of individually immaterial Ka g
associates 173,538 163,662
Aggregate amounts of the AEBBEUTEIENELE !
Group's share of
Profit/(loss) for the year FERAN,/ (Bi8) 4,222 (4,754)
Other comprehensive income  Eth 2@ = =
Total comprehensive HENE (B18) #%E
income/(loss) 4,222 (4,754)

Goodwill

Included in the cost of investment in Shougang
Resources, associate of the Group, is goodwill of
approximately HK$1,048,488,000 arising from
the acquisition of Shougang Resources as at 31
December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i)

Summarised financial information of
material associates (continued)

Impairment assessment
Shougang Resources

No impairment loss has been recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2020 in respect of the
interest in Shougang Resources with carrying
amount of HK$5,106,025,000 after considering
that the recoverable amount of Shougang
Resources is higher than the respective carrying
amount. The recoverable amount of the interest
in Shougang Resources has been determined by
calculating the value in use of the investment. For
impairment purpose, the management estimates
the Group's share of Shougang Resources’ future
cash flows which are based on the financial
budgets attributable to the equity interest of
the Group approved by management covering
a 5-year period and using a pre-tax discount
rate of 12% and the cash flows beyond 5 years
are extrapolated using a zero terminal growth
rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculation relate to the estimation of future cash
inflows which include revenue growth rates and
gross margin. Such estimation is based on the
associate’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

As at 31
amounts of Shougang Resources are higher than

December 2020, the recoverable

the carrying amounts and thus no impairment loss
is recognised regarding the Group's investments
in Shougang Resources.

As at 31 December 2021, the equity interest
in Shougang Resources is reclassified as assets
held for sale and thus no impairment assessment
regarding the Group's investment in Shougang
Resources is carried out.

AR e MR M EE

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

18(A) REHE AR ZIE (@)

0)

FTEMEATMBELIE
(%)

HEEFE
BEHER

REEREME R U O & 48
BREEEESERZ REE
202012831 HIEEE » W
AR ERERER ZRMESR
#5,106,025,000 70 FE 52 36 {8 &5
BoREMERER I REE
HERBHEREZCHREE
BT -mAEEARME BERE
RIERER TR BEE G
AEEEGEENERZ REIR
ERE > WHEH12%WRATAGIR
EHoBUESENRESRBRETKE
BEXEZ - FHRBENERE
ZHEMEZHE{EARKIRE R
AdEt B P EERAEER
EREFZE  MARBGE IR
ZHEANDBERENREER
HMBEREZENAEE

20205128310 HilER
ZeElHESREEE @it
FEBTEMNEBEERZE
B ERIE -

R2021FE128310BIEEE &
HER IR EENDES
FEFENEE -RItAEE W
ERRENE R EERIR
BRI -
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18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

280

18(B) REERBZIRE

Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group as
at 31 December 2021. The country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place of business, and
the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the

proportion of voting rights held.

Proportion of
issued shares/

s
S8R

MTFHAI&AEER2021F1283182
B ZERNTMIUKEMAR
NAREZ T EEEME B A #
e 2 Lo B B R 3% 2 2 LE AR (R o

Place of Principal place  Measurement registered capital held
Name of entity incorporation  of operation ~ method by the Group Carrying amount Principal activities
$$Eﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁ/
AGES ERIE  FELEME  HERE HREFZ LA RER TEEH
2020 2021 2020
HKS'000 HK$ 000
BT BB
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu The PRC The PRC Equity method 70.07% 70.07% 541,932 488,949 Carpark management services
Corporate Management Limited ~ HE FE 3 FEREERRE
Partnership*® (Note (a))
ENERENERERABEER
(ieta)
Other immaterial joint ventures 312,762 167,194
HitFEARE AT
854,694 656,143
A Limited company established in the PRC A RAPBRIIZBREERE
g For identification purpose only e fE{H R
Note (a): On 13 November 2019, E Park Investment Management KtzE@): H2019F11813H  ARFT 22 E

*

Co., Ltd.("E Park”) (B2/F8E (It R) REEEARAH),
formerly known as Shouzhong Investment Management
Co., Ltd*(BEFRHREEEAFRAE), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Guangzhou Shouzhong
Wanwu Carpark Management Co., Ltd.* (BMNE T &Y
FHEIHZEEAFRAE)and Shenzhen Wanwu Chengchang
Consultancy Service Ltd.* CRYIT BYI R EBHRBE SR
‘A E)) entered into the Partnership Agreement in relation
to the formation of Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu
Corporate Management Limited Partnership*.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group indirectly owns
approximately 70.07% (2020: 70.07%) equity interest in
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate Management
Limited Partnership* (“Guangzhou Shouzhong
Wanwu”). Pursuant to certain terms and conditions
given in the equity owners’ agreement, the financial and
operating policies of Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu
require approval from all equity owners. Guangzhou
Shouzhong Wanwu is jointly controlled by the Group and
another equity owner and, as such, it is accounted for as
a joint venture of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020.

For identification purpose only

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

WEABEEE OIR) REEER
Ram) (MBEFEE) FEEAE PR
EEEARQR) -BEMNEREDE
EREEARADRRINTEY M
RABARBBERADHLILEMNE
FEYCEEESE LY (BRA
B)IUBB R

R2021F12831H KEREBZE
BEMNETEYEXEESELE
(ERa®) (IBEMEREY XN
70.07%(2020 : 70.07%)P& 1 - iR %
BoEB A BES A TR
B - BNEREY 2B REE
BRAKERERERS AL E R
2021512831 HM2020512831
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18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

AR e MR M EE

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

18(B) REE AR ZIRE (&)

(continued)
(i) Commitments and contingent liabilities () HEHREASEQATNKERIA
in respect of joint ventures 1=Fi=]
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have HIEFE2021F12A31HLEE
any material commitments or contingent liabilities E AEBETRZEAABERE
in respect of joint ventures (2020: Nil). ERAEANEAKBERAREE
(2020%F : #®) ©
(ii) Summarised financial information of (i) FESEQATHMBERHE
material joint venture
Summarised financial information of material TESGERNBZHBENBEE
joint venture is set out below. The summarised WM T e Tz BB RS E
financial information below represents amounts IERESAVBERSEENGR
shown in the joint venture’s financial statements CEERBEIRBRRAITZE
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. LER
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate BMNEREYLEEESELE
Management Limited Partnership* (BIRE#)
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Current assets MENE E 122,183 206,482
Non-current assets ERBEE 847,497 599,210
Current liabilities mEmas 196,265 107,891
Non-current liabilities ERBERE = -
Revenue YA 188,878 244,787
Profit for the year FEim A 166,546 269,995
Other comprehensive income forEE Hith 2 &I
the year 18,651 43,232
Total comprehensive income for F & & E U & 42 58
the year 185,197 313,227
Dividend paid BENKRE 109,645 -
The above amounts of assets B EREBESIEDE
and liabilities include the UTRA:
following:
Cash and cash equivalents BERIFEEEEY 8,175 19,916
Current financial liabilities mEEHEas
(excluding trade and other (FEFEET R
payables and provisions) HE B R EE) 2,636 2,611
Non-current financial liabilities 3EFE& R E &
(excluding trade and other (FEEEMERT A
payables and provisions) H e RIB B B) - S
*  For identification purpose only O EBHEE
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

282

18(B) REE AR ZIRE (&)

(continued)
(ii) Summarised financial information of (i) FESEQATHMBERHEE
material joint venture (continued) (&)
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate BNEREYLEEESHBEE
Management Limited Partnership* (continued) (BIRER) (@)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial T BEENBERGRSME
information to the carrying amount of the interest REANERINREE R 2R
in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated REEZHER
financial statements:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Net assets of Guangzhou BENEFEREE
Shouzhong Wanwu 773,415 697,801
Proportion of the Group's AEBRENETEYZ
ownership interest in DL
Guangzhou Shouzhong
Wanwu 70.07 % 70.07%
Carrying amount of the Group’'s ZEBEREMNEFEY#ER
interest in Guangzhou ZEREE
Shouzhong Wanwu 541,932 488,949
(iii) Individually immaterial joint ventures (iii) 1@5']%57(%%"&%
In addition to the interest in joint venture R EXIBENGE R B EmIN
disclosed above, the Group also has interests in a ZiK?E%?TﬁEﬁE:FTE AMIEEKXR

number of individually immaterial joint ventures
that are accounted for using the equity method.

BERBNED UEDmEA
Ao

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
Aggregate carrying amount of fERIIEE KRG E QB
individually immaterial joint IREEAEER
ventures 312,762 167,194
Aggregate amounts of the REBRGUTEEN
Group's share of: AazE .
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB aF (1,917) 155,134
Other comprehensive income  EH&2E K ZH - S
Total comprehensive income EHEIN SRR (1,917) 155,134

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE
INVESTMENTS 19 KE
2021 2020
HKS$000 HK$'000
EBETFT BT T
Financial assets at FVPL BARBEFAERZZ
ETRIEE
Debt securities (Note (a)) BB (B3t (a) 380,721 278,463
Investment funds (Note (b)) KREEE (WaEb)) 916,226 717,663
Other securities (Note (c)) HM:B 5 (/3% (c) 1,093,304 =
Wealth management BRE & (5E(d)
products (Note (d)) 23,852 134,909
Financial assets at FVOCI BAREBESAHMEE
WEZ SRS E
Other securities (Note (e)) HAME 5 (W) 185,025 =
Financial assets at amortised cost IHMIREAARZEHEE
Debt securities B8 2 - 93,671
2,599,128 1,224,706
Less: non-current portion o IETRENEE S (1,075,915) (709,910)
1,523,213 514,796

The Group classifies the following financial assets as financial assets

ABHZEHEE !

at FVPL:

3 debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at .
either amortised cost or FVOCI;

3 equity investments that are held for trading, and .

3 equity investments for which the entity has not elected to .

recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI.

Note (a): It represents investment in listed debt securities in Hong

Kong of HK$380,721,000 as at 31 December 2021. The
fair value gain relating to the investments are included

in “other gains, net” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income (Note 7).

Mfat(a):

TRHEURBBEMEAGFTERE AR
BESAEMEZERGEZEGHRE

RERGZRERE ; &

RWIETE BB HE M2 E U R
ARBERGEREENREKE -

HigE®MN2021F1283188%
380,721,000t AR MIBETES
KRB -HZREFRNAABEKNT
FFAGREEEWERPH TH MK &
FEE (MIEE7) ©

BREERARAT 2021FFR 283



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R #5 ¥R AR P 5

4= A
7177 O e |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

19

284

HZE2021F12831HLEE

INVESTMENTS (continued)

Note (b):

Note (c):

Note (d):

Note (e):

It represents unlisted investment funds. The Group has
interests in investment funds which are also under the
Group’s management or advisory services. The Group
earns fees and investment returns from investment
management or advisory activities and fund distribution
activities.

It represents investment in listed securities in the
PRC of HK$1,093,304,000 as at 31 December 2021.
The fair value gain relating to the investments are
included in “revenue” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (Note 5). The purchase of
HK$965,875,000 of these investments are included in
“Cash flows from operating activities” in the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

It represents the wealth investment products issued by
banks with interests at floating rates ranging from 1.35%
to 2.90% (2020: 0.88% to 4.35%) per annum and will
mature within one year.

Financial assets at FVOCI comprise the investment in
securities which are not held for trading and which the
Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to
recognise in this category. These are strategic investments
and the Group considers this classification to be more
relevant. As at 31 December 2021,
comprise listed securities in Hong Kong and Singapore of
HK$84,808,000 and HK$100,217,000 respectively.

these investments

On disposal of these investments, any related balance

within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to accumulated

losses.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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e (&)

mfE®b):

MfEt(c):

Mfat(d):

et (e):

TREEERERER

HIFFELmREES AEENZSE
REESTHEERETD MZEEET
BAERNEENER BNREEE
EER RS EREE RGP E
BER-

Hig®M2021F1283188%
1,093,304,000c WY P E A it A B
MBETZHMEBS - HZLER
AN ARBERGES AKERE
WaRRFW M) (WEE5) o« B
965,875,000t 2 REBEHELREIR

EREBRNICEEBELEZRE) -

HIEH N F1.35%E2.90% (2020
F10.88%F4.35%) ZFHEFE
HERTZEVEEER BER—
FREHF

AEEBRREAABESAEMEZE
WRzeMEELE BEFEFEAR
ZMmEA BEREBEEREDELR
‘Hﬁﬁz%ﬁé’twg?%faiﬁﬂuDPT:E‘E”E’\JHQ

FH o ELERHKRE AEER
%%mﬁééﬁ%ﬁ’”ﬁﬁﬁ%m%ﬁ IS
20215128310 ZEREQEE
#%84,808,0007T & #&1100,217,000
TR EBRHMME EHaES -

BARBEE

sPAHMEEWE 2 #EPERE

RAERRER E D48
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

INVESTMENTS (continued) 19 KBE @)
During the year, the following (loss)/income were FRo U (B8 WESFAREMEE
recognised in other comprehensive income and in profit W BE e
or loss:
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Loss recognised in other REMEEWRES 2 B8
comprehensive income (14,975) -
Dividends from the financial assets st Az HEHMMUTA =2
at FVOCI recognised in profit or KERARBHETA
loss in other income (Note 6) Ht2EWEZEMEEZ
&8 (Htste6)
Related to investments held at the end B3R &S EARITE R EERE
of the reporting period 5,795 -

Note (f): Information about the methods and assumption used in K1)
determining fair values of the financial assets at FVPL and
FVOCI are provided in note 3.3.

Note (g): The investments above are dominated in HK$, RMB and Ktat(g):
Singapore dollar.

ERBRERAABES ABEZS
MEENZAABESAREMEE
BHEZEMEENTZNRRNE
EHA M EE3. 352 f#t o

N ERELIBTT ARBMHMIKT
AmEe
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEWARFR B PR RRIE IR B R H
fthFE U =R IR

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
EBETFT BT T
Trade receivables FE U BR 3R
— Third parties —5%=5 84,949 70,096
— Related parties —REE AL 51,846 122,801
Trade receivables E W BR =R 136,795 192,897
Less: Provision for impairment losses 8 : J{E A5 I & & (1,651) (2,223)
135,144 190,674
Prepayments, deposits and other FE{THRIEIRE R HMAE
receivables IR IE
Prepayments and deposits FENRIEREZE 196,267 376,925
Value added tax recoverable AR [EEER 84,786 61,551
Other receivables HihpE W EIE 82,863 165,567
Amounts due from related companies & FREH AT 2 FIE 32,025 26,257
395,941 630,300
Less: Non-current portion B IETRENES
Prepayments and deposits FENRIEREE (132,994) (296,736)
Current portion binEkia 262,947 333,564

The credit terms of trade receivables are normally 30
to 180 days as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 30 to
90 days). The following is an ageing analysis of trade

receivables net of provision for impairment losses based

on the invoice date at the end of the year, which were

similar to the respective revenue recognition dates:

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

R2021F 128318 EWERAZEE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEWARR R TR R E R H
g RIR (&)

(continued)
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Within 60 days 60H A 32,898 117,818
61 — 90 days 61E90H 9,405 34,599
91 - 180 days 91ZE180H 22,416 38,257
Over 180 days #Bi8180H 70,425 =
135,144 190,674

Due to the short-term nature of the trade receivables,

their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as

their fair value.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to

measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime

expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

Movement in the provision for impairment losses for

trade receivables is as follow:

AR ERERBRERMTE  HiRE
ERESEEAREERR-

AEEBAEBYHREENFINRMG
ERZFERMEEHE AMAR
WEARMRE AR ETRBIERERE - B
R REBRERZEFHIIWT

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

At 1 January »1B18 2,223 2,623
Write-off i 2 (2,290) (1,471)
Provision of impairment loss AEEEEE 1,718 1,071
At 31 December R12831H 1,651 2,223

The entire balance of the provision for impairment

losses for trade receivables with an aggregate amount
of HK$1,651,000 (2020: HK$2,223,000) are individually
impaired trade receivables. Note 31(b) provides for

details about the calculate of the allowance.

FEWBR R 2 BB R 1B E 2 FT B A R
EHSEEAAEM1,651,00075T (2020
& 1 B12,223,0007T) BERREZIE
WERR - BRABEREEHENFEEH
FAHIEE31()
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AAF5 ER R M 5E

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting

period.
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, a subsidiary
of the Group, which is a general partner of an investment
fund, has entered into revised limited partnership
agreement with a limited partners pursuant to which
the limited partners withdrew their partnerships and
corresponding investment stakes within the investment
fund. The subsidiary of the Group has recognised a
management fee income amounted to approximately
HK$69,013,000 and the management fee income
remained receivable from the limited partners up to the
revised agreement date. These trade receivables were
assessed to be uncollectible and were written off during
the year ended 31 December 2021. There were no write-
off of trade receivables during year ended 31 December
2020. For details of the above limited partnership
agreement, please refer to the Company’s voluntary
announcement published on 30 May 2019.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, restricted bank deposits
of approximately HK$36,890,000 represented bank
deposits restricted by certain banks to secure the
issuance of letters of credit. The restricted bank deposits
amounting as at 31 December 2020 was to be released
upon the settlement of the letters of credit, which will
be within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period and are therefore classified as current assets.
The restricted deposits as at 31 December 2020 are
denominated in RMB and US$ respectively.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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FEWARFR B PR RRIE IR B R H
g TRIA (&

HMEWRESAERT - RERE
RESHERBES —FREE-

Bzt - HE2021F12831H  ZEBHMKH
BAREAREESEEAEAD
H—HBEREBATIEEBINEG
ReBinzE BILAERESE ARNE
HEBREENEEESANEE
B - AEENBASICHIERE
BIRAXEEE69,013,0005 BEE
EBiItEHRAL ZEBEEBERA
BEREBAMNMGCEEKERESR L
HE2021F12B31HILEE 2%
FE WS BR =R B 4% 5T 1 43 71 BT Ui [2] 7
HoH E2020F12831HIEEE
FE W BR R0 R 8 o AR R A IR
BB mEFE F2EARQT2019
FS5H30HZEEAS

ZIREIERITER

120205128318 ZBRHIRITER
ERBEEREMS A TIRITRGZ
RITEMM2020F 1283 1HMWZ R
HE A 136,890,000 3R & HA A
REFRF+Z@EAANBE A ERES
B ALDEARBEE ZRE
FERH2020F12B31H D BIMU AR
KFETEE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND 22
TIME DEPOSITS AT BANKS

IRITHER MR T UK
IRTTEHIER

As at 31 December

HENANMMBLEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITEMKRRE 1,549,872 1,419,625
Time deposits at banks RITEHRER 1,123,590 2,318,908
2,673,462 3,738,533
Less: time deposits with maturity over 8 : 2R =ZEBRNF 2
three months TEHER (100,000) =
2,573,462 3,738,533
As at 31 December
HE1NAMBLEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$000
BT AT
Bank balances and cash and time RTE G RIEE UKRIRITER
deposits at banks are denominated ~ FRLLTI SEEHIE :
in the following currencies:
RMB AR 1,837,664 1,018,145
HK$ BT 331,415 1,748,496
us$ ETT 504,383 971,888
Others Hh = 4
2,673,462 3,738,533

The time deposits at banks carry interest at market rates
which range from 0.35% to 2.90% (2020: 0.4% to
3.13%) per annum.

RITEHERNENE » BN F0.35%
Z2.90% (2020%F : 0.4%E3.13%) =~
MBEEEEXEFTE
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(a)

Issue and conversion of HK$1.2 billion
convertible bonds (November 2019)

On 29 November 2019, the Company entered
into convertible bond subscription agreements
(“the CB Subscription Agreements”) with
ORIX Asia Capital Limited (“ORIX Asia”), Matrix
Partners China V, L.P. (“Matrix Partners V") and
Matrix Partners China V-A, L.P. (“Matrix Partners
V-A") (together as the “CB Subscribers”).
Pursuant to the CB Subscription Agreements, the
Company conditionally agreed to issue and the
CB Subscribers conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, the zero-coupon convertible bonds (the
“Convertible Bonds”) in the principal amount
of HK$1,231,685,000. On 17 January 2020, all
conditions of the CB Subscription Agreements
were fulfilled and completion of the issuance of
the CB took on the same date.

Pursuant to the CB subscription agreement, the
Convertible Bonds are:

a convertible at the option of the CB
Subscribers into ordinary shares of
the Company at HK$0.30 (subject to
adjustment and before the effect of Share
Consolidation) at any time on or after
the issuance date and up to the second
anniversary of the issuance date (the
“Maturity Date”);

b mandatorily converted if the closing prices
of the ordinary shares of the Company as
quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in at least 10 trading days out of any
20 consecutive trading days are higher
than or equity to 115% of the prevailing
conversion price; and

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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AR

(a)

BATAEIR AN 128 T FHif
&% (2019FE118)

12019118298 AAF
BMAOTENERBRAE (TR
FEEEMI) s Matrix Partners
China V, L.P. (T Matrix Partners
V) EMatrix Partners China
V-A, L.P. (T Matrix Partners
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(a)

Issue and conversion of HK$1.2 billion
convertible bonds (November 2019)
(continued)

C redeemed at their principal amount on the
Maturity Date, unless they were previously
redeemed, converted or cancelled.

The proceeds from the issuance of Convertible
Bonds of HK$1,231,685,000 have been split into
liability and equity components on the issuance
date. On the issuance date, the fair value of
the liability component of the Convertible
Bonds is estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using an equivalent market
interest rate for a similar convertible bonds
with consideration of the Group’'s own non-
performance risk. Subsequently, it is measured at
an amortised cost basis until it is extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds are allocated to the equity component
of the Convertible Bonds. A transaction cost of
HK$2,859,000 is apportioned between liability
and equity components of the Convertible Bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components on the issuance date.

The fair value of the liability and equity
components were determined based on the
valuations performed by Flagship Appraisals and
Consulting Limited, an independent external
professional valuer, using Black-Scholes model
with Binomial Tree method.

The liability and equity components recorded on
the issuance date were HK$1,106,657,000 and
HK$122,169,000 respectively.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(a)

Issue and conversion of HK$1.2 billion
convertible bonds (November 2019)
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
interest of HK$2,070,000 was accrued in the
liability component of the Convertible Bonds.

On 17 January 2020, the Company received a
conversion notice from each of Matrix Partners
V, and Matrix Partners V-A, in respect of the
exercise of the conversion rights attached to
the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount
of HK$105,693,000 and HK$10,992,000,
respectively. As a result of the conversions, the
Company allotted and issued 352,310,000 and
36,640,000 conversion shares (before the effect
of share consolidation) to Matrix Partners V, and
Matrix Partners V-A, respectively on 20 January
2020.

On 4 February 2020, the Company issued a
mandatory conversion notice to Mountain Tai
Peak | Investment Limited (“Mountain Tai
Peak"”) (being ORIX Asia’s designated person
under relevant CB Subscription Agreement)
to convert the CB in the principal amount
of HK$1,115,000,000 and as a result of the
conversion, the Company allotted and issued
3,716,666,666 conversion shares (before the
effect of share consolidation) to Mountain Tai
Peak on 5 February 2020.

As a result of the conversions completed on 20
January 2020 and 5 February 2020, liability and
equity components of HK$1,108,727,000 and
HK$122,169,000 were transferred to ordinary
shares.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

23

AR (@)

(a)

BATMEIR AN 12 T FHif
&% (2019F118) #E)

2020 12831HER > AJ &
BMESBEBDZESNES
& 2.070,0007T ©

R2020F 18178 AR a 5
A EMatrix Partners V&Matrix
Partners V-ABREBRBITEAE
DRI %A B1105,693,0007T &
7 #510,992,0007c 2 Al B
SRS EREZEIRMEA -
B R RRFIR2020F18
20H 73 Bl EMatrix Partners Vi
Matrix Partners V-ARD3% R 217
352,310,0004% 536,640,0004%
Hiam (RHEHFERF) ©

12202052848 > AR EH
MO NREETEIR®E
SREHBEE N ZEEAL
Mountain Tai Peak | Investment
Limited ("Mountain Tai Peak 1)
FHRBIEHIREA > URIAAE
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23 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)

Issue and conversion of HK$300 million
convertible bonds (July 2020)

On 27 July 2020, the Company entered into
convertible bond subscription agreements (“Poly
Platinum Subscription Agreements”) with Poly
Platinum Enterprises Limited (“Poly Platinum”).
Pursuant to the Poly Platinum Subscription
Agreements, the Company conditionally agreed
to issue and Poly Platinum conditionally agreed
to subscribe for, the convertible bonds with an
interest of 1% per annum (the “Poly Platinum
Convertible Bonds”) in the principal amount
of HK$300,000,000. On 10 August 2020, all
conditions of the Poly Platinum Subscription
Agreements were fulfilled and completion of the
issuance of the Poly Platinum Convertible Bonds
took place on the same date.

Pursuant to the Poly Platinum Subscription
Agreements, the Poly Platinum Convertible Bonds
are:

o convertible at the option of Poly Platinum
into ordinary shares of the Company at
HK$1.93 (subject to adjustment) at any
time on or after the issuance date and up
to the third anniversary of the issuance
date (the “Maturity Date”);

AR e MR M EE
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#300,000,0007T Z FF] %1%
A #EiES (TPoly Platinum
ATEHES]) 102020588
10H > Poly PlatinumzR#& 1% :%
ZHERGBEER > BPoly
Platinumr] B E 5T E R E
—H5EmR -

B4 Poly PlatinumzR &7 %
Poly Platinum AJ BRI fE 524

. Poly Platinum#A #iEE7%
BROTHABTHZEE
2247 H = B G AV 1 (] FE RS
(TRIHAE)) BEEKRS
RAB)EER > SRES
7B UE1.937T (ATETH
BRERBGEHZAD

BREERARAT 2021FFR 293



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
7177 O e |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

23

294

AAF5 ER R M 5E

HZE2021F12831HLEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)

Issue and conversion of HK$300 million
convertible bonds (July 2020) (continued)

mandatorily converted by at least 50%
of the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the Poly Platinum Convertible
Bonds if the closing prices of the ordinary
shares of the Company as quoted on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in at least 10 trading
days out of any 20 consecutive trading
days are higher than or equity to 115%
of the prevailing conversion price, and the
average trading volume of the underlying
shares during the corresponding are no
less than 10,000,000 shares; or

redeemed at an aggregate price of (i)
103% of the outstanding principal amount
on the Maturity Date; and (ii) all accrued
and unpaid interest thereon from the issue
date of the Poly Platinum Convertible
Bonds up to the Maturity Date and any
unpaid default interests (if any) accrued.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

23

A8IRES (&

B ITAMERANE T ER
&% (2020E78) (#&)

(b)

EEM0EEERSH
R EL+HERZHZ
EBBMERBFBERA
& (THE 32 Fry) R U™
BREREREHRES
115% » B R A8 FE B ER
ZERMHIEFHBERS
2 R~1&510,000,0008%
KR EHREELXRS
HETEIR50% M Poly
Platinuma] G 51T
R ; 3

EIHRHERERAEERSE
B103% > K iEREBRH
Poly Platinuma] B (&%
RAaEShESFETEE
HAH (BFEIER) B
FESH R T B U K 8 5t
FEERE (MA) BEEH
KREHAIPoly Platinum®]
BG5S BRIELRIEE
(O] ~ BRIt Ko 5 8 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

23 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)

Issue and conversion of HK$300 million
convertible bonds (July 2020) (continued)

The proceeds from the issuance of Poly Platinum
Convertible Bonds of HK$300,000,000 have
been split into liability and equity components
on the issuance date. On the issuance date,
the fair value of the liability component of the
Poly Platinum Convertible Bonds is estimated
by discounting the expected future cash flows
using an equivalent market interest rate for a
similar convertible bonds with consideration
of the Group’s own non-performance risk.
Subsequently, it is measured at an amortised cost
basis until it is extinguished on conversion or
redemption. The remainder of the proceeds are
allocated to the equity component of the Poly
Platinum Convertible Bonds. A transaction cost
of HK$5,300,000 is apportioned between liability
and equity components of the Poly Platinum
Convertible Bonds based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components
on the issuance date.

The fair value of the liability and equity
components were determined based on the
valuations performed by Flagship Appraisals and
Consulting Limited, an independent external
professional valuer, using Monte Carlo stimulation
method.

The liability and equity components recorded on
the issuance date were HK$291,590,000 and
HK$3,110,000 respectively.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)

Issue and conversion of HK$300 million
convertible bonds (July 2020) (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
interest of HK$422,000 was accrued in the
liability component of the Convertible Bonds.

On 7 September 2020, the Company received a
conversion notice from Poly Platinum in respect
of the exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the Poly Platinum Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$200,000,000. As a result
of the conversions, the Company allotted and
issued 103,627,000 Poly Platinum conversion
shares to Poly Platinum on 9 September 2020.

On 5 October 2020, the Company received a
conversion notice from Poly Platinum in respect
of the exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the Poly Platinum Convertible Bonds in the
remaining principal amount of HK$100,000,000
and as a result of the conversion, the Company
allotted and issued 51,813,471 Poly Platinum
conversion shares to Poly Platinum on 9 October
2020.

As a result of the conversions completed on 9
September 2020 and 9 October 2020, liability
and equity components of HK$291,961,000 and
HK$3,110,000 were transferred to ordinary shares
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SHARE CAPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

24 g

Number of share

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

Share capital

L 4E] e
‘000 HK$000
& BIETFT
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: EBR{TREHEZER:
At 1 January 2020 20201811 28,928,934 10,125,972
Issue of new shares on 17 January 2020 12202018173 &7 KRG

(Note (a) (Hf3t(a)) 93,333 28,000
Conversion of Convertible Bonds on 12020515208 R AT BIRES

20 January 2020 (Note 23(a)) (H1a#23(3)) 388,950 116,414
Conversion of Convertible Bonds on 1202052 858 R AR B ES

5 February 2020 (Note 23(a) (Ba223(a)) 3,716,667 1,114,482
Issue of new shares on 21 February 2020 12202052821 B #1715

(Note (b)) (Hfzt b)) 1,500,000 450,000
Share consolidation on 30 March 2020 12020538308 £ M2 KD & 6

(Note (c)) (Htaz(c) (27,702,307) -
Conversion of Convertible Bonds on 20209898 RN B ES

9 September 2020 (Note 23(b)) (#3223(b)) 103,627 196,677
Conversion of Convertible Bonds on 1R2020F10B9H Rian EiRES

9 October 2020 (Note 23(b)) (Hrzt23(b)) 51,813 98,445
Transaction costs attributable to issue BITHRORRBTERES

of new shares and conversion of FEAER 2 A (Hf2E(d)

Convertible Bonds (Note (d) = (2,443)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 720205128318 %2021E181H 7,081,017 12,127,547
Issue of new shares on 3 February 2021 R2021E2A3B BT HRMN

(Note (&) (Hfzz(e)) 210,000 426,300
Transaction costs attributable to issue of new 2173711 FEMLZ 5 M4

shares = (7,000)
At 31 December 2021 20214128318 7,291,017 12,546,847
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note (a):

Note (b):

Note (c):

Note (d):

Note (e):

On 17 January 2020, the Company allotted and issued
93,333,333 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.30
per share to Shougang Holding. The total proceeds of
HK$28,000,000 has resulted an increase in share capital.

On 21 February 2020, the Company allotted and issued
1,500,000,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.3
per share to FTLife Insurance. The total proceeds of
HK$450,000,000 has resulted an increase in share capital.

On 26 March 2020, the shareholders of the Company
have approved a share consolidation on the basis of
every five shares into one consolidated share and become
effective on 30 March 2020.

Transaction cost incurred for insurance of new shares and
conversion of convertible bonds for the year ended 31
December 2020 were HK$746,000 and HK$1,697,000
respectively.

On 3 February 2021, the Company allotted and issued
210,000,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$2.03
per share to Shougang Holding. The total proceeds of
HK$426,300,000 has resulted an increase in share capital.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

24

Bz (&)

WfEE(a):

BfEE(b):

mfEt(c):

BfEE(a):

Bt (e):

202051 B17H > AR B ZERE
¥0.30c . REE R B TR
2 881793,333,333 A8 10 o FR1E X
TB48 284978 128,000,0007T E & #E
& A8 A0

112020528218 A RABZERE
030z RBEERNEBRBAIE
B #471,500,000,00082 & 15 © 18
TRIB4REEAY B 15450,000,0007T B 5K
fERGAIG N ©

20206348268 AR BIRRBE#
ERSIRBROMEHA—REHEK
MR EEETRMEH > MH2020
FE3F30H &M

HE2020F128B31HIEEE » 817
WD R RIG A EHRES DB RS
RGMAABIET46,000T B
1,697,0007T °

R2021F2B3H K AT RERAE
2. 03tz REER EMERAEDE
2 %£47210,000,00088 A% 1%  FR 1S =X
TB4AZE4 A 15426,300,0007c BB E
& A8 A0



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE2021FE12831HLLEE

25 SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN 25 RSB 8IFTIRR (5

2021 2021
Number of
Shares
dvE 4=
‘000 HK$°000
Fhie ABEFT
Shares held for share incentive plan B BEN 5+ B Fr 3R 15D 173,138 298,433
These shares are shares in Shoucheng Holdings Limited RSB TEIFTIFNEREZEREBRR
that are held by the Company's trustee for the purpose EIRMDAB/ARAZTEAMFTREZR
of granting shares under the Company’s share incentive 7o ARRE A SR BT 8
plan. Shares issued to employees are recognised on a FTzBRM - -AEEEITHRMULE
first-in-first-out basis. ST ST o
Number of
shares
KRir 8B
‘000 HK$°000
FhiZ BEFT
At 1 January 2020 and 20201818 &
31 December 2020 2020F12831H = =
Acquisition of shares W EE B 1D 173,138 298,433
At 31 December 2021 2021412831 H 173,138 298,433

BREERARAT 2021FFR 299



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERR M

7177 O e |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

25

300

HZE2021F12831HLEE

SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN
(continued)

Share incentive plan

The adoption of the share incentive plan (the “Plan”)
was approved by shareholders at the general meeting
on 3 November 2021. The Plan is designed to provide
long-term incentives for senior managers and above
(including executive directors) to deliver long-term
shareholder returns. Under the Plan, participants are
granted options which only vest if certain performance
standards are met. Participation in the Plan is at the
Board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual
right to participate in the Plan or to receive any
guaranteed benefits. The amount of options that will
vest depends on the Group’s performance and the
individual grantee’s performance of each year during
the grant and exercise periods. Once vested, the options
remain exercisable for a period of 60 months. Options
are granted under the Plan for no consideration and
carry no dividend or voting rights.

Set out below are summaries of the options granted
under the Plan:

25

RRIERRB St RIFRFRIR1D (2

P CIRE]
RABIZ R HE TS (T8 2
FR2021EFE1MB3HZREAGREKE
HAERM - AABEERAEQATNE
MEEAB (BENTES) EEHESH
12E R RAKRELHR A8 T
FHNEREESTEMEREZES
AER - BEFENBFRE2HALE
FUWERERAFRENGNER - HTF 2
EBREEBRR AR B EEB S RE A
ERFHNTEPRSEFNERERTR
ERENENIAE R FEIECOEA -
EEREDREASIEERELY BF
MR BT ERE

UTRRERE AR HOEREN
B

2021

Exercise Number of
price per share
share option options

BHhEkEZ
FHTEE fBRRIEHE
HKS$ ‘000
A Fhe
As at 1 January R1A1H - =
Granted during the year REAEE 1.624 138,500
As at 31 December ®12831H 1.624 138,500

Vested and exercisable at 31 December X128 31HE R B KA 1T1E - -
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SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN 25 BRHESEN:HBIFRIFARS (&
(continued)
Share incentive plan (continued) RRIE MBIt (&)
No options were expired, exercised and forfeited during ERAORENFRILEEREDE
the year covered by the above tables. TR R U
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have MUTARERERTENERENE
the following expiry dates and exercise prices: BB RITES !
Grant Date Expiry date 2021
Exercise price 2021
per share option Number of
HK$ share options
=R b=t 2021 2021
BHBRIEZITEE fERtE
A T
5 November 2021 5 November 2024 1.624 45,705
202111 85H 2024F1185H
5 November 2021 5 November 2025 1.624 45,705
20214 1185H 2025%1185H
5 November 2021 5 November 2026 1.624 47,090
202111 85H 2026511 85H
138,500
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options
outstanding at end of year
FRERITERRENMNETL IR T SNERR 3.86 yearstE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
recognised an equity-settled share-based expense of
HK$2,387,000 for the share options under the Plan in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

HE2021F1283 18 EEE  K&EH
BEGeE2ERERTHMZE TH
ERERAUEZEENROEZCE
FB781£2,387,0007T °
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

SHARES HELD FOR SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN
(continued)

Fair value of options granted

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$0.31
per option The fair value at grant date is independently
determined using an adjusted form of the Binomial Tree
Approach that takes into account the exercise price,
remaining life of the option, number of intervals, the
share price at grant date and expected price volatility of
the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and
the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

The model inputs for options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2021 included:

25

RRAERB St RIFRIRD (B

RUBREZAMEE
BE2021F12831HLEEE REY
EREDBAFEENERENLTHR
TEASKRBERB31T RIEEHA
HHNATFTENLDFERSHEZE X HEE
BRAEE BHstRERENTHEE
FIFFH - BENEE WBEX) P
BEEBHNRE HEARMONTEEE
MORIE - FREAR B W s UK RES
HAPI Y R B ) =K o

REE2021F12831HIEFEREHN
BRENZERHASIECRE

(a) Grant date

5 November 2021

RHBAH 2021511 85H
(b) Expiry date 5 November 2024
& B A 2024%F1185H
(c) Share price at grant date HK$1.620
KU BBNRE B&1.6207T
(d) Exercise price HK$1.624
TEE A 151.6247T
(e) Expected price volatility ~ 37.75%
TARRE R K13
(f) Risk-free interest rate 0.70%
i B bR A =X
(9) Expected dividend yield 6.00%
TR B
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5 November 2021

5 November 2021

202111 85H 2021F1185H

5 November 2025 5 November 2026
2025%1185H 2026511H5H
HK$1.620 HK$1.620
BH1.6207T B .6207T
HK$1.624 HK$1.624

BN .6247T ABlE1.6247T
37.75% 37.75%

0.91% 1.11%

6.00% 6.00%
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TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES,
PROVISION AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

26

FEITARR ~ Eth (I 7RIE ~ BB R
afiE

As at 31 December

HE12A3MHLEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEFT BIEFT
Trade payables FE (T BR R 389,337 204,622
Accruals FEst&E A 78,871 61,864
Other payables Hh eI 28 161,288 154,540
240,159 216,404
629,496 421,026

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables

presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the

years:

REXRE REZZAME7NZEMN

BRAZBREC DATINE ¢

As at 31 December

HENAMMBLEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMEFT FEMEF T
Within 90 days 90H A 89,633 66,410
91 — 180 days 912 180H 64,845 29,947
181 — 365 days 181&E365H 82,096 36,856
Over 365 days 365H L & 152,763 71,409
389,337 204,622

REEYMZFHEERRIOH K&
B %A MR T I ER LU R AR
MEMRIERNEERRA-

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that most of the payables are within
the credit timeframe.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

27 BORROWINGS 27 f&®
Bank borrowings
RITER
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$000
BT BT
Repayable within one year and ER—FEREERRTHEE
shown under current liabilities ETSIR
Unsecured IR 179,037 6,100
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Unsecured EE AL 573,605 476,832
Total borrowings fEFR4a%E 752,642 482,932
At the end of years, the Group's borrowings were RER REBZERERBUT :
repayable as follows:
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within 1 year or repayable on demand —F o BIREREE 179,037 6,100
Between 1 and 2 years 1225 29,981 9,816
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 203,166 88,348
Over 5 years SEDL E 340,458 378,668
752,642 482,932
Unsecured E T 752,642 482,932
As at 31 December 2021, the Company's weighted 22021128318 > KA BRITER
average interest rate per annum of bank borrowings was RIS EFE5H3.25% (20204 :
3.25% (2020: 4.39%). 4.39%) °
The carrying amounts of borrowings are approximately EMHEREEAE AN EEREE
to their fair values.
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are R2021F128318 > EREREEMN
denominated in RMB approximately HK$510,142,000 as ARISstEREB®510,142,0007T
at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$482,932,000). (20204 : B%5482,932,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated

statement of financial position, certain deferred tax

assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes:

28

AR e MR M EE

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

EIEFRISH
RESMBRREZ 2N BT
BIEREE AR A REAEES LT
BRI IBAE B2 D7 LU 5 8
SR

As at 31 December

HE12B31HILLEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
EIEFT B F T
Deferred income tax assets RIERIEE E (3,304) (16)
Deferred income tax liabilities RIERIEEBE 59,796 18,063
56,492 18,047

()

Deferred income tax assets

The following are the major deferred income tax
assets and liabilities recognised and movements

() EBEEREBEE
UTREERNFTFESES
ZEBBRERBEERERK

thereon during the current and prior year: Higg) !
Lease Tax losses Total
HE RIERE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BETFT BETT
At 1 January 2020 12202018 1H 3,076 = 3,076
Charged to consolidated MRa2EBEREA
statement of comprehensive
income (3,060) - (3,060)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 720205128318 &
January 2021 2021F 1818 16 - 16
Credited to consolidated REEE2ENRERSTA
statement of
comprehensive income - 3,258 3,258
Exchange differences fERELE - 30 30
At 31 December 2021 K2021%12H318 16 3,288 3,304
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 28 RIEFRSIR (BB
(ii) Deferred income tax liabilities (i) ERERBEEE
Fair value
adjustment Fair value Fair value
and  adjustment  adjustment
Concession  revaluation ~of other non- of
rights ~ of properties current assets  investments  Tax losses Leases Total
Eft3ERE
NERRERE BELR REQL
R BERER BEESEE BER% HEER e @
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Vil v E¥Tfr BB B BB EEfr BB
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1518 o 2,490 16,671 3,007 (664) 14,566 36,070
Credited to consolidated statement of REE2EMERA
comprehensive income - - (3,563) (1,109) - (14,524) (19,196)
Exchange differences EREE - 125 910 87 - 67 1,189
At 31 December 2020 120205128310 - 2,615 14,018 1,985 (664) 109 18,063
(Credited)/charged to consolidated REE2ENER
statement of comprehensive income GtA) /1 5,187 14,919 (3,088) 27,869 5 (4,007) 40,880
Exchange differences ERER 73 17 328 493 = (53) 853
At 31 December 2021 R20215126318 5,260 17,546 11,258 30,347 (664) (3,951) 59,796

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$697,781,000 (2020:
HK$684,128,000). A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$4,000,000
of such losses for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the HK$510,000,000 (2020:
HK$510,000,000) tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Except for tax losses of
HK$19,000,000 (2020: HK$19,000,000) will be expired
in 5 years, such tax losses do not have expiry date.

At 31 December 2021, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred income tax liabilities for the tax
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain Group’s PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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R2021F 128318 AEBRHAR
THE A A B15697,781,0007T (2020
F  #B18684,128,0007T) & E2021
FK2020F 128310 IEEE B
ZERIEBPR4E4,000,000 T HE
EERIBEE o H R EIATER KK
8 A > B L A 15510,000,0007T
(20204 : #%510,000,0007T) R
EHEERDRELERBEEE RREE
18781 19,000,0007c (20204 : B
19,000,0007T) &R AERFNHIN > R
EEBUEIEEH

R2021F 128318 > MIBH I EE K
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DIVIDENDS ig S
Year ended 31 December
H#E=12831ALFE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Final dividend for the year ended 31  #ZE2020F12831HIELFE
December 2020 of HK5.49 cents HNERBREBSERER
(2019: HK7.22 cents) per fully paid B 195,493
share (20194 : 7.2271l) 400,276 500,027
Interim dividend for the year ended  #ZE2021F12831HILELEE
31 December 2021 of HK4.11 NHHRRERSEREE
cents (2020: 4.27 cents) per fully B R4 117384
paid share (20204 : 4.27%4) 299,662 300,147
699,938 800,174

In a board resolution dated 30 August 2021, the Board
declared an interim dividend in the total amount of
HK$300 million (equivalent to HK4.11 cents per share,
based on the number of issued shares on 30 August
2021, i.e 7,291,017,194 shares) for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 (2020: HK$300 million).

In a board resolution dated 30 March 2022, the Board
resolved to recommend a final dividend in the total
amount of HK$400 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$400 million) payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business
on Friday, 15 July 2022. Based on the 7,285,117,194
ordinary shares in issue, such a final dividend would
amount to HK5.49 cents per share (2020: HK5.49 cents
per ordinary share).

The final dividend is subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2021
has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 December
2021.

H2021FE8H30BZEE G RGEF &
EFEIREE2021FE6830H LE/N1E
BZHHAREGHBEIRIT BER
S4B BR2021F88308 2
BE8TRMEE > B17,291,017,1945%)
(20204 : BHE3ETT) o

£2022% 3830 Z2EEgRAET
EEGREFERIREHE2021F12A
STHIEFEZRBRESGHBIEIMET
(20204 : BlE4ETT) TH20225%78
150 (28 R) ¥R BER/ELIA
NEBREREMAZRE-BALTE
1T EEMR7,285,117,19488 > 5%k
HIR B A SR ERS.4981l (2020
F . BRTERS.4981) °

ZARPREBFRIIBETZRES
FARE LEEREMETR20215F12
A31BE#E K 2 RAKRER2021412
BBl AERABEG
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

DIVIDENDS (continued)

In a board resolution dated 15 February 2022, the
Board declared a special dividend in the total amount of
HK$200 million, comprising the first tranche of special
dividend of HK$100 million was paid on 14 March 2022
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Thursday, 3 March 2022.
Based on the 7,291,017,194 ordinary shares in issue,
such a special dividend amounted to HK1.37 cents per
share.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Step acquisition in subsidiary

(a) On 27 March 2020, the Group acquired an
additional 33.136% equity interest of Shouzhong
Parking for a consideration of RMB94,410,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$105,000,000).
Upon the completion of this acquisition, the
Company’s shareholding in Shouzhong Parking
increased from 66.046% to 99.182%. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interest
of approximately HK$71,818,000 and decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$33,182,000.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group completed several transactions with non-
controlling interests. The Group recognised
a decrease in a non-controlling interest of
HK$30,799,000 and increase in equity of
HK$9,661,000 attributable to the owners of the
Company.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
non-controlling interests of certain non-wholly
owned subsidiaries and the Group completed
several rounds of capital injections into those
subsidiaries in proportion to the original equity
interests of the subsidiaries held by the Group
and the non-controlling interests. As a result
of the capital injections, the balance of non-
controlling interests increased by HK$1,604,000
(2020: HK$85,210,000).
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F20225 2R 15SHZESEgREHE
EEERFIKRESHRBE2EITF
—HS R R BB 1E T E 202243
B14B % F52022%3H3H (£
M) 25 RABREBLTMAZIREE 2
KABBETZE®ERK7,291,017,194
o ZERERASREER.378
flje

BLIFEZERERR

D E W IE—REME AT

(@)  HR20205F3H27H  AERWEE
B {EEMEEIN33.136%2 1 -
REAARKI4,410,0007T (18
BN 4B 1105,000,0007T) ©
RZzWBEEmE A28 RE
h{EBEMNFIRE66.046%12 F
99.182% o AEE R IEIE IR #E
R/ A HENET1,818,0007T &
RNB R NS DL
7 133,182,0007T °

(by BEE2021F12B31HIEEFE
NEBETRSEAIJEZTERE
MR G o REE R IEIE R R
@R /DB R30,799,0007T K7
NEHEB ANEBILERIEME
9,661,0007T ©

() HZE2021F12B31HIEEE >
HLrBEFTRNBZIEERRE
mAMAEEZRBRRFRLEASR
BT ZETFTRBNEHTE
MAEABNEHRAERRIEER
HRFEZE T BN ER -
JEE R R AR R E M 0
7B1&1,604,00070(20204F @ BHE
85,210,0007T) ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31 RARTAERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REXEBELZRE
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ez BT EBEFT
Cash flows from operating REEBREEZRERE
activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax  FRFTIEMAT (F518) /% F (989,113) 672,035
Adjustments for: MTHIEE LA
Interest income FEWA 6 (41,523) (93,422)
Interest expenses FEZH 10 74,343 77,168
Dividend income B WA 6 (254,669) =
Exchange differences ERER 7 (38,734) 6,091
Share of results of associates BOBMEABD 2 EE (16,632) (343,320)
Share of results of joint ventures #hEE AR 2 EE (114,826) (344,069)
Gain from changes in fair value REYEQAABEZSH
of investment properties W 7 (59,518) =
Depreciation of property, ME-BERZEZITE
plant and equipment 13(A) 7,082 6,031
Depreciation of right-of-use FERARBEZINE
assets 13(B) 186,864 152,857
Amortisation of other HIERENE E i
non-current assets 34,864 14,811
Write-off of trade receivables 88 FE WUR R 69,013 =
Fair value change of financial BRAREBSABRZ
assets at fair value through STHEEZANEEED
profit or loss (164,552) (10,770)
Non-cash employee benefits FREEERMER
expenses — share based payment —f&3 & 1T 2,387 =
Provision for impairment loss FEW R TR BB 18
for trade receivables 1,718 1,071
Provision for impairment —HEBERBZ
of investment in an associate CERERIBEE 18(A) 1,615,179 =
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

HZE2021F12831HLEE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

310

AR REBRME @

Cash generated from operations () REXBELEZIRE (B
(continued)
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$000
i3 EEFT BEFT
Operating cash flows before SEESEHAIZ
movements in working capital ~ KEHEEHE 311,883 138,483
Trade receivables FE WL AR X (10,986) (81,287)
Contract assets in respect HRBRFCS2HARN
of service concession BHNEE
arrangements (138,358) (88,274)
Prepayments, deposits and FARIA ZE R HAM
other receivables FEW A (47,072) (136,543)
Trade payables FE{T RN 176,852 170,760
Amounts due from related il VNCIpE S|
companies (5,768) (26,257)
Other payables, provision, EA I RIE B
accrued liabilities and EstBEREGNERE
contract liabilities (51,180) 115,309
Other securities HhzE s 19 (965,875) -
Cash (used in)/generated KEER FRA) EEZ
from operations RE (730,504) 92,191
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31 HGRERERERME &
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) RMEITEBZEEHIR
financing activities
This section sets out an analysis of liabilities KEDMRPIENEFERE
arising from financing activities and the EHELACZEEREEREDIF
movements in liabilities arising from financing o
activities for each of the years presented.
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
EEN HEAR HEt
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT EBIEFT BT
At 1 January 2020 1202061818 456,667 470,764 927,431
Financing cash flows RERERE (19,300) (272,876) (292,176)
Acquisition — leases WEE—-fE = 806,098 806,098
Interest expenses FEEH 45,565 31,376 76,941
Exchange differences EREL - 99,050 99,050
At 31 December 2020 1220208128318 482,932 1,134,412 1,617,344
At 1 January 2021 120211818 482,932 1,134,412 1,617,344
Financing cash flows MERERS 232,855 (224,178) 8,677
Acquisition — leases WE-HE = 570,716 570,716
Interest expenses MNEER 23,810 50,533 74,343
Exchange differences ERERR 13,045 58,150 71,195
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12831H 752,642 1,589,633 2,342,275

(c)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
acquisition of right-of-use assets amounting to
HK$570,716,000 (2020: HK$1,015,655,000)
(Note 13(B)).

(0 EEFREXS

REZE2021F128318 1k
FE - WEBERAREEEBK
570,716,00070(20204F : H &
1,015,655,00070) (MFsE13(B)) ©
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE2021F12831HILEE

COMMITMENTS
Non-cancellable operating leases

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. For details
of the leasing arrangements, refer to Note 13(B).

The Group leases various office premises and car parking
assets under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within 1 to 20 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-
of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term
and low-value leases, see Note 2.28 and Note 13(B) for
further information.

No minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of investment properties not recognised
in the financial statements as at 31 December 2021 and
2020.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Company’s substantial shareholder with significant
influence is Shougang Holding, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. Shougang Group Co., Ltd., together
with its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
other than the Group, will hereinafter be referred to
as the “Shougang Group"”. Accordingly, the Group
is significantly influenced by Shougang Group. The
transactions and those balances with Shougang Group
are disclosed below:
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) Transactions with related parties

RN LIREE (B

B ZE2021F12831HIEEE

(@) HRBMALTETZRS

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31BLEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$000
BEFT BT T
Shougang Group BHiEE
— Advisory fee expenses (Note (i) —BAERRZ (H520)) 425 302
- Management fee expenses —EEHEMAY
(Note (i) (B2 (ii)) 2,990 2,990
— Other income by the Group —AEBRAMKA
(Note (i) (H5%()) 5,053 =
— Purchases by the Group — A EE R
(Note (i) and (ii) (B 220) %% (i) 6,751 114,807
— Rental expenses (Note (i) —E=Z @F20) 5,046 5,046
- Rental income (Note (i) — WA L) 132 132
— Promotion and advertisement —EBRESER
expenses (Note (i) (BPEE()) 1,856 =
— Services provided by the Group —AREEHEE
(Note (i) and (iii)) (FF521) R (i) 421,372 226,235
Associate of the Group TEBEZHE AT
— Loan to associate —MBTHE AT BN - 33,750

Notes:

miat -

(i) The terms of the transactions are mutually agreed between
the Group and the counter parties.

(ii) Shougang Group provides materials, leasing and
management services to the Group.

(iii) The Group provides fund management services to
Shougang Group and/or its associates.

(i)

(iii)

RG2FEREFEREANFHHEE
W °

ERNEERAEEREEDE - BER
BIRARTS

FrEERERNERK REBHE AT
RHESEERY-
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Balances with Shougang Group

Details of balances with the Group’s related
companies are set out in Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

33

FAEk A LIKEE (&
(b) HEWEBZER

ERAXEEREY AR ZER
BN MEE200

Compensation of key management (0 FEEEBABZFM
personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel, RERAREIRBDEENFE
which represents the Directors of the Company BIEABZHFMOT :
during the year was as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31MALEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIEFT T
Short-term employee benefits RHEERN 8,872 5,702
Post-employment benefits BIREH = =
8,872 5,702
The remuneration of key management personnel FTEEEBABZMEHRESTS
is determined by the Remuneration Committee BN iNEEgES UEE
of the Board of Directors having regard to the BB FEIEHINZ TR
market practice, competitive market position and MR BRI AL FRIE
individual performance.
Transactions with other PRC government- d BHHMPEBMFERER

related entities

The Group has entered into various bank
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities,
with certain banks and financial institutions and
use of public utilities which are state-controlled
entities in its ordinary course of business. In view
of the nature of those banking transactions, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
separate disclosure would not be meaningful.
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FABRZHBRARREFREES

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December
®12831H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RRBARZEE 284,924 284,924
Prepayment and deposits BNRIEREE 6,600 =
Investments — non-current KE—FFERD 565,746 372,134
857,270 657,058
Current assets MBIEE
Prepayments, deposits and BREEE R
other receivables Hh g EIa 19,602 197,157
Amounts due from subsidiaries BETHEAD ZRIE 13,260,065 11,451,809
Investments — current KE—RE 406,058 379,887
Time deposits with maturity over three #Bi@31E 3 2| ¥8 > E HIE =
months 100,000 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRKRIRE 1,328,256 2,738,079
15,113,981 14,766,932
Total assets mEE 15,971,251 15,423,990
Liabilities =i
Non-current liabilities ERBERF
Borrowings — non-current B —IERE 90,900 =
90,900 -
Current liabilities B R=RE
Borrowings — current B —mEh 151,600 =
Other payables and accrued liabilities EtAEFT RIS B EREEE 3,466 9,123
155,066 9,123
Total liabilities mars 245,966 9,123
Capital and reserves B A B (R
Share capital [N 12,546,847 12,127,547
Reserves (Note) 15 (B52) 3,178,438 3,287,320
15,725,285 15,414,867
Total liabilities and equity HREREE 15,971,251 15,423,990
The statement of financial position of the Company was KABIZHBRAFTEN20224F3A4
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 30BEESEeH A TR TIESN
and were signed on its behalf by: REE !
Zhao Tianyang Li Wei
FEPNE =&
Director Director
EE Ex
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

34 FARBZMBRRARKRFEFEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY =1
(continued)
Note: Mzt -
Shares
held under
share Security
incentive investment Other Retained
plan reserve reserve earnings Total
R #E B R =t 81
THAEZRHA ESREHE HitihEf RERF A
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT BT BEFT BT
Balance at 1 January 2020 20201 B1H 2 &R - - - 2,920,090 2,920,090
Profit for the year and total EERNREZERGER
comprehensive income - - - 1,167,404 1,167,404
Dividends BE - - - (800,174) (800,174)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020F 128318 2 &8k - - = 3,287,320 3,287,320
Balance at 1 January 2021 1#20215F1818 2 &8 - - - 3,287,320 3,287,320
Profit for the year FEEHR - - - 356,266 356,266
Fair value changes on financial BARBEHAHMEZE
asset at FVOCI WHZEMEEZ
ARBEEED - (14,975) - - (14,975)
Total comprehensive income PHEINEEE - (14,975) - 356,266 341,291
Repurchase of shares under R BB 5t 81 T i
share incentive plan B 17 [ F5 (298,433) - - = (298,433)
Wavier of amount due from HeETHBARZRE
subsidiaries - - 545,811 - 545,811
Recognition of equity-settled MR UGS TR
share-based payments &R - - 2,387 - 2,387
Dividends 3] - - - (699,938) (699,938)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021E12A310 248 (298,433) (14,975) 548,198 2,943,648 3,178,438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 E(ZE2021F12831HIEEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35 EEERAKEAE (@REBQEE
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 55622 553831% « £622GELR
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES 7 FANESEMNERHEE) RE
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES KREZE LEHHRAEREE)
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (A) EFRITHEHMSE
emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BN EEM+ 7% (202045 ¢
sixteen (2020: fourteen) directors were as follows: +rO%) EFESAZHMESUT -
Allowances Contributions
and benefits  to retirement
in kind benefit
Fees Salaries (Note (b)) scheme Total 2021
HitZA R
BUER RINER 20215
ne g (it e A
HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BEFT BEFT EEFT BEFT AEFT
2021 2021
Executive directors of the AARRTES
Company
ZHAO Tianyang [N - - 17 - 117
XU Liang e - - 83 - 83
LI Wei (Note (c)) & Wz c) - 2,536 150 9 2,695
Zhang Meng (Note (c)) R (M) - 2,091 17 9 2,217
LIANG Hengyi (Note () 2% (W) - 605 - 5 610
Non-executive directors of AAFFHRTES
the Company
LU Jingwei gk 350 - - - 350
HO Gilbert Chi Hang fIEE 350 - - - 350
LI Hao 5 250 - - - 250
Zhao Xianming (Note (1)) BB (i) 184 - - - 184
LI Yinhui (Note (2)) THE (Hize) 168 - - - 168
Independent non-executive ZARBIFRTES
directors of the Company
WANG Xin Iz 430 - - - 430
CHOI Fan Keung Vic RER 410 - - - 410
DENG Yougao BES 370 - - - 370
ZHANG Quanling RRE 430 - - - 430
Zhuge Wenjing (Note (7) E G B 208 - - - 208
QIAO Yongyuan (Note (f)) BXE W) - - - - -
Total emoluments ik 3,150 5,232 467 23 8,872

BRRERARQAE 2021FE®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EiZE2021F12831HILEFE

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(continued)

(A) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (continued)

35

EFEMN KM= EEBLEF

51155622 5538315 « 585622GEA
7 FANESEFNERIEE) RE
BEEELEHRAUNEXRKEE) &)

(A) EFKRITHRESME E

Allowances  Contributions
and benefits  to retirement
in kind benefit
Fees Salaries (Note (b)) scheme Total 2020
HEtEE R
ENER R 2020F
ik e (Wrzb) B At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
2020 2020
Executive directors of the AAFAHTESR
Company
ZHAO Tianyang [N - - - - -
XU Liang e - - - - -
LI Wei (Note (c)) =& W& ) = = = = -
LIANG Hengyi (Note (c)) 2% (W) - 2,702 = = 2,702
Zhang Meng (Note (c)) &g Wz c) = = = = =
Non-executive directors of AAFEHITEE
the Company
LI Yinhui (Note (e)) ZHIE (Wie) 410 = = = 410
LIU Jingwei AR’ 350 - - - 350
HO Gilbert Chi Hang G 350 - - - 350
LI' Hao T 250 - - - 250
Independent non-executive ZARBIFRTES
directors of the Company
WANG Xin I& 430 - - - 430
CHOI Fan Keung Vic RER 410 - - - 410
DENG Yougao #55 370 - - - 370
ZHANG Quanling REE 430 - - - 430
QIAO Yongyuan (Note () Bk (W) = = = = =
Total emoluments ik 3,000 2,702 = = 5,702
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(continued)

(A)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (continued)

Notes:

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company or
its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Allowances and benefits in kind include share
options.

Mr. Li Wei and Ms. Zhang Meng were appointed as
a director with effect from 22 May 2020.

Mr. Liang Hengyi was resigned with effect from 28
March 2021.

Dr. Li Yinhui and Dr. Qiao Yongyuan were resigned
as a director with effect from 28 May 2021.

Dr. Zhao Xianming and Ms. Zhuge Weijing were
appointed as a director with effect from 28 May
2021. Dr. Zhao Xiaoming was resigned as a director
with effect from 31 December 2021.

35

HE2021F12831HILLEE

EERAEAGE ZEBQTE
fl585622F 553831%  5622GE L
7 AN EFEMNERIEE) RO
REALTRUNERKEE) @)

(A)

BRRERARQAE 2021FE®

EERTHESEME @

PRATEENE EEZRK
ERMVEEELARDRAE
EEHEMZRBEMZAN - £
MIERTEENETETERNR
ERAERBDHAEWELE
ZEFRMIRBMT £t
BUYFHTEFHETERN
REEDERBDEFRMUR
sz e o

B ZE2021F%20205F12831
BIEFE > AERE N8B
EERhLEREFMALE
ERIBE MIERBERF
NIMASEMAREERE 2R
[Bh SN R B A 18 o

H 2 REYENCER
P 1 o

ETREENEELLTERE
ABE> 8202058228
Ef o

REBELEEHTEEREAM
B2021E3828HEEM -

THESTREKERLTE
BESZEERNM B2021F58
28HIEE R ©

HEAEIREFEXF LT
ERITAEE > B2021458
28HEBEM - AR T B
EEEBA 82021412831
B4R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 & E2021F12831BLLFE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of Directors’
services were paid or made, directly or indirectly,
to the Directors; nor are any payable (2020: Nil).

(C) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services (2020: Nil).

(D) Information about loans, quasi-loans and

other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and

connected entities with such directors

As at 31 December 2021, there are no loans,
quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the
Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and

connected entities (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EiZE2021F12831HILFE

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(continued)

(E)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 33 and Note 35, no
significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Group was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year ended 31 December 2021 or at any
time during the year (2020: Nil).

36 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(A)

Completion of the Disposal

Completion of the Disposal took place on 27
January 2022. For further details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 27
January 2022.

For details of the disposal, refer to Note 18(A).

35

36

EERAEAGE ZEBQTE
55622 553831% « £622GELR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

y= A
17 8 ==

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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HZE2021F12831HLEE

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(B)

©

(D)

Declaration of special dividend

The Board declared a special dividend in the
aggregate amount of HK$200 million, comprising
the first tranche of HK$100 million was paid
on 14 March 2022 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 3 March 2022. The second
tranche of HK$100 million is payable on 31
October 2022 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the
Company on 20 October 2022. For details of
the declaration of special dividend, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 15
February 2022.

For details of the declaration of special dividend,
refer to Note 29.

Share buy-back program

The Board approved a program to buy-back up
to HK$300 million in value of the Company’s
shares at a price not exceeding HK$2.75 per share
from the open market over a period of two years,
commencing 15 February 2022 and ending 14
February 2024. For further details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 15
February 2022.

Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19 outbreak”)

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2022, a
series of precautionary and control measures have
been and continued to be implemented across
the country/region. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. As at
the date of this report, the Group was not aware
of any material adverse effects on the financial
statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

oh
IEMBHE
RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 December
BENAMALEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT BIEF T BIEF T BEFT
Revenue A = 176,504 396,091 705,854 1,195,031
(Loss)/profit for the year SECEER
from continuing operations EE (BB /&7 = 312,501 441,161 635,470 (1,113,526)
Profit for the year from BARIEEEER
discontinued operations EERH 57,286 44,270 904 = =
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 /57 57,286 356,771 442,065 635470 (1,113,526)
Attributable to: PR AL
Owners of the Company ED 57,286 353,097 443,003 658,613 (1,095,327)
Non-controlling interests R ER = 3,674 (938) (23,143) (18,199)
57,286 356,771 447,065 635,470 (1,113,526)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHAH
At 31 December
®128318
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEFT BETFT BETFT BEFT BEFT
Total assets BEE 8,186,309 9,430,385 10,997,024 14,125,632 13,382,242
Total liabilities merE (942,657) (434,929) (1,174,400) (2,206,334)  (3,153,835)
7,243,652 8,995,456 9,822,624 11,919,298 10,228,407
Equity attributable to owners AREEBA
of the Company LR 7,024,789 8,966,257 9,684,305 11,772,290 10,140,637
Non-controlling interests R ER 218,863 29,199 138,319 147,008 87,770
7,243,652 8,995,456 9,822,624 11,919,298 10,228,407
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REVERE

Particulars of major investment properties held by the Group as ZAEBER2021FE12831BFEZFEREY

at 31 December 2021 are as follows: EFBUWT
Group Category of
Property Use interest  the lease
EEFE
LYES m& ZHExm AR
Flat A2 on 8th Floor, R Residential 100% Long-term lease
Pearl City Mansion, 5% TE RHEAMEA
Nos. 22-36 Paterson Street  f#E &
Causeway Bay, BEME22-365%
Hong Kong, China BRI K ESIEA2E
L1-L3 Floor, R Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
222 Jirui Five Road, PUPIIES parking lot BEER
Chengdu High-tech Zone, AL ER T FBEHKE
Sichuan Province =i
China = I L ER2225%
R 1-38
Underground, A Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
136 Logu Road, Emm™ parking lot BHEER
Shijingshan Zone, a=lE FEBKE
Beijing, BAKI1365%
China T
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